
 
    Department of Transportation 
   Board of Directors  
                                   Notice of Public Meeting 
   1263 South Stewart Street 
   Third Floor Conference Room 
   Carson City, Nevada 
   January 12, 2015 – 1:00 p.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Presentation of Retirement Plaques to 25+ Year Employees – Informational item only. 

 
2. Presentation of Awards – Informational item only. 
 
3. Receive Director’s Report – Informational item only. 
 
4. Public hearing to act upon a temporary regulation regarding road relinquishments by and 

between the Nevada Department of Transportation and local governments and 
consideration of adoption of the proposed temporary regulation and any comments 
received regarding the proposed regulation – For possible action. 

 Time Certain Agenda Item:  1:30 p.m. 
 
5. Equipment in Excess of $50,000 – Approval to Expend Funds for the Purchase of 

Automated Pavement Collection Equipment, Roadway Video Equipment and Data 
Storage Devices – For possible action. 

 
6. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 

Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins. Informational item only. 

 
7. December 15, 2014 Nevada Department of Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 

Minutes – For possible action. 
 

8. Approval of Agreements over $300,000 – For possible action. 
 
9. Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational item only.  
 
10. Briefing on Proposed Enhancement to Department’s Bonding Policy – Informational item 

only. 
 
11. Resolution of Relinquishment – For possible action. 
 
 Disposal of a portion of Wells Avenue, a strip of land over and across the Truckee River 

in Reno, NV  SUR 14-11 
 
12. Briefing on Nevada Statewide Public Safety Radio System – Informational item only. 
 
13. Briefing on Draft 2014 Facts and Figures Book – Informational item only. 
 
14.  Old Business 
 

a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters – Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report – Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated December 29, 2014 – Informational item only. 

 



 
15. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 

Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins.  Informational item only. 

 
16. Adjournment – For possible action. 

 
Notes:   
 

• Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
• The Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration 
• The Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda 

at any time. 
• Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring 

to attend the meeting. Requests for auxiliary aids or services to assist individuals with disabilities or 
limited English proficiency should be made with as much advance notice as possible to the 
Department of Transportation at (775) 888-7440.  

• This meeting is also expected to be available via video-conferencing, but is at least available via 
teleconferencing, at the Nevada Department of Transportation District One Office located at 123 East 
Washington, Las Vegas, Nevada in the Conference Room and at the District III Office located at 1951 
Idaho Street, Elko, Nevada. 

• Copies of non-confidential supporting materials provided to the Board are available upon request. 
• Request for such supporting materials should be made to Holli Stocks at (775) 888-7440 or 

hstocks@dot.state.nv.us. Such supporting material is available at 1263 South Stewart Street, Carson 
City, Nevada 89712 and if available on-line, at www.nevadadot.com. 
 

This agenda was posted at www.nevadadot.com and at the following locations: 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation 
1263 South Stewart Street 123 East Washington  310 Galletti Way 
Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada   Sparks, Nevada 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Governor’s Office   Washoe County    
1951 Idaho Street  Capitol Building   75 Court Street 
Elko, Nevada   Carson City, Nevada  Reno, Nevada 
 



 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 January 2, 2015 
 
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: January 12, 2015, Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 2: Presentation of Awards – Informational Item Only 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
This item is to recognize the Department of Transportation and staff for awards and recognition 
received. 
 
ITS of Nevada Project of the Year over $2 million 
Carlin Tunnel LED Intelligent Lighting System 
 
NDOT was awarded the ITS of Nevada project of the Year over $2 Million for the Carlin Tunnel 
LED Intelligent Lighting System.   The new intelligent lighting system is part of the $31 million 
dollar Carlin Tunnels Improvement CMAR Project that wrapped up last construction season.  
This  lighting uses a new communication system to control the LED lighting for all fixtures, which 
meets the current Tunnel Lighting Standards. This significantly reduces the operational and 
maintenance costs over the life cycle by adjusting the light levels inside the tunnel to match the 
ambient light levels outside, providing superior visibility and safety for drivers.  Other ITS items 
include video cameras inside and outside the tunnel, improved Road Weather Information 
System, and a fiber optic cabling system. 
 
ITS of Nevada Best New Product/Application 
NDEX/Nevada Data Exchange System 
 
NDOT was awarded the ITS of Nevada Best New Product/Application for the NDEX/Nevada 
Data Exchange System. NDEX is the Traffic Management Data Dictionary (TMDD) which is a 
standards based system developed by the Institute of Transportation Engineers. NDEX provides 
sharing of real time traffic data between different ITS systems and different Public Safety 
Operation centers such as NDOT road operations and NHP dispatch. Additionally, NDEX is 
capable of sharing real time data to the public through NV511 and other web based application 
for traveler information. NDEX  was developed to provide real time and historical 
transportation/weather data for use by NDOT and other agencies such as UNR, UNLV, MADIS, 
and NOAA.  NDEX reduces multiple access points into ITS systems by providing a single 
collection and distribution point through web services for NDOTs traffic data.  
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



 
ITS of Nevada Project of the Year under $2 Million 
SR 160 at Cimmarron Traffic Signal ITS Interconnect Project 
 
NDOT was awarded the ITS of Nevada Project of the Year under $2 million for the SR 160 
(Blue Diamond Road) at Cimmarron Traffic Signal ITS Interconect Project.  The new signal ITS 
interconnect project is part of the $1.4 million dollar traffic signal that was installed after a young 
pedesestrian was struck by a vehicle and killed at the intersection.  The new signal is making it 
safer for pedestrians and school children to cross the stretch of roadway with a more reliable 
fiber optic cabling system. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
This is an informational item only. 
 
Attachments: 
 
None 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Julie Duewel, Public Information Officer 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 Revised January 9, 2014 
 To fix grammatical errors 

 
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 

SUBJECT: January 12, 2015 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item # 4: Public hearing and Consideration of the adoption of a temporary regulation 

concerning road relinquishments by and between the Nevada Department 
of Transportation and local governments 

 ___________________________________________________________________ 
Summary: 
 
Today’s action will be to hold a Public Hearing to “Act Upon a Regulation” as required by the 
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS). This hearing has been noticed, 30 days in advance as 
required by NRS 233B.0603. The public hearing will be to allow for public comment. In addition 
it will allow the Board to consider the adoption of the proposed temporary regulation and guide 
book for the road relinquishment process. This proposed regulation and guide book has been 
developed through efforts of the Department, working in cooperation with the local governments 
throughout the state over the past year and a half as required by NRS 408.527. 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Department has worked with local governments over the past years to transfer roads 
between agencies. However, no formal process was in place and many conversations were had 
to relinquish roads, but in many cases, the relinquishment did not come to fruition.  Department 
and local government representatives recognized that a formal process should be developed. 
Some topics of concern to be addressed were protections from forced relinquishments, 
identification of appropriate points of contact, and a documentable process from initiation to 
action. From this information, NRS 408.527 was revised in 2013. 
 
One component of this revision was the addition of a provision that the Department, in 
cooperation with local governments, “adopt regulations governing procedural documents that 
address the process by which highways and roads are relinquished.” Over the past year and a 
half, the Department has worked with local governments throughout the state via workshops, 
teleconferences and one on one meetings to develop language and a guide book that would 
address the process of road relinquishments between the state and local governments. The 
final draft of this regulation and guide book was provided in July/August of this year to every city 
and county manager throughout the state and every mayor of every city and county 
representative of the Nevada Association of Counties (NACO) for comment and revision. No 
revisions were requested during this review period. 
 
In November of 2014, three (3) Noticed Public Workshops were held to present the final draft of 
the proposed regulation and guide manual to the public and to solicit public comment. These 
workshops were noticed and Posted as required by the NRS and were held in Elko, Las Vegas 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



and Carson City. A total of nine (9) persons attended the three workshops. The only public 
comment offered was to offer support for the regulation on record and a comment during our 
Carson City meeting on a misplaced word. No other public comment was provided and no 
written comment was received for the workshop actions. 
 
 
Analysis: 
 
The required Notice Public Workshops have been completed. The next step is the process of 
adopting a regulation is the requirement to hold a Public Hearing. This hearing today will allow 
for public comment and will allow the Transportation Board to consider any such comments and 
to consider taking action on the proposed regulation. If the proposed regulation is approved 
today, it will be filed with the Secretary of State, 35 days after its adoption, at which time it will 
become a regulation. 
 
The action undertaken to adopt a regulation is guided by the NRS. Since this action is being 
taken between August 1 of an even-numbered year and July 1 of the succeeding odd-numbered 
year the regulation will be considered temporary and expire by limitation on November 1 of the 
odd numbered year. However, a substantially identical permanent regulation may subsequently 
be adopted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the NRS. The Department intends to 
pursue the adoption of a substantively identical permanent regulation later this year in 
accordance with the applicable provisions of the NRS which will include a submission of the 
proposed permanent regulation to the Legislative Council. 
 
 
 
List of Attachments: 
 

A. Posted Notice of Intent to Act Upon a Regulation 
B. Proposed Regulations 
C. Draft ‘Guide to Road Relinquishments 

 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 

1. Staff recommends that the Board hold the public hearing and solicit comments regarding 
the proposed regulation and ‘Guide to Road Relinquishments’ and consider those 
comments.  
 

2. Staff recommends that the Board consider approving the proposed temporary regulation 
and ‘Guide to Road Relinquishments’ and authorize staff to submit the regulation and 
guide book to the Secretary of State, 35 days after its adoption. 

 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Bob Madewell, Chief-Roadway Systems Unit of Planning 

 



STATE  OF  NEVADA 

DEPARTMENT  OF  TRANSPORTATION 
1263 S. Stewart Street 

Carson City, Nevada   89712 

BRIAN SANDOVAL RUDY MALFABON,  P.E., Director 
Governor 

In Reply Refer to: 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ACT UPON A REGULATION 
Notice of Hearing for the Adoption  
Of Temporary Regulations of the 

Nevada Department of Transportation 
The Nevada Department of Transportation will hold a Public Hearing at  1:30 pm, on 
Monday, the 12th of January of 2015 at 1263 S. Stewart Street, 3rd Floor Conference 
Room, NDOT Headquarters, Carson City, Nevada. This public hearing is an agenda 
item on the Department of Transportation Board Agenda for this date. The purpose of 
the hearing is to receive comments from all interested persons regarding the Adoption 
of regulations that pertain to chapter 408 of the Nevada Administrative Code. 

The following information is provided pursuant to the requirements of NRS 233B.0603: 

1. This regulation is needed to insure that a process is in place to address road
relinquishments or road trades between the State and Cities or Counties. The
purpose is to insure that a formal process is in place for all agencies to follow
that will describe the process to begin, negotiate and complete road
relinquishments and road trades.

2. The proposed regulation is intended to:
a. Recommend new NAC 408.182 which will:

(1) Provide the definition of the term “Local Government” as used in 
     proposed regulation NAC 408.567. 

b. Recommend new NAC 408.567 which will:
(1) Requires the Department (Nevada Department of Transportation) to 
      work collaboratively with Local Governments to create a process to 

relinquish roads under each’s control. 
(2) Provide for the development of a Guide to identify the process for 
     proposing, developing, evaluating and completing road 
      relinquishments between the Department and Local Governments. 
(3) Provide for a process to request new or amended/revised language 
     to the regulation, after it’s adoption. 

3. The estimated economic effect of the regulation on the State or Local
Governments will be determined by negotiation between
the State and each Local Government agency at the time of a proposed
relinquishment or road trade.
a. There shall be no adverse effects on either the State or Local

Governments as each party will enter into a cooperative agreement in
writing before any relinquishment or road trade is completed. The intent of
this regulation is to insure that each agency receives equal or acceptable
benefit from the transfer of a road to its control. 

 NOTIFICATION OF HEARING TIME CHANGE
Please note this Hearing has been rescheduled for:

1:30 pm January 12, 2015

Item #4 Attachment A

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-233B.html%23NRS233BSec0603
h9002jam
Highlight

h9002jam
Highlight



b. The immediate effect will be to allow the State and Local Governments to
formally begin discussions regarding road relinquishments and road
trades and allow them to plan such action. The long-term effect will be
that the State and Local Governments may agree to the transfer of roads
in a cooperative manner, thus allowing each agency to make sound
decisions for their agencies and become good stewards of the taxpayers
money.

4. The cost to the Department of Transportation for enforcement of the
proposed regulation will be absorbed in the typical daily cost for staff services

5. There are no overlapping regulations of other state or local governmental
agencies or federal agencies that will be affected by this regulation.

6. The proposed regulations are not required by any federal law.

7. The proposed regulation is not federally regulated.

8. The proposed regulation does not place any new fee or increase any existing
fee as the current road relinquishment or road transfer process does not contain
a fee.

Persons wishing to comment upon the proposed action of the Nevada Department of 
Transportation  may appear at the scheduled public hearing or may address their 
comments, data, views or arguments, in written form, to Nevada Department of 
Transportation, Attn: Roadway Systems Unit, 1263 S. Stewart Street, 
Safety/Roadway Modular, Carson City, Nevada, 89712. Written submissions must 
be received by the Nevada Department of Transportation, Roadway Systems Unit on or 
before December 31, 2014 at 5:00 PM.  If no person who is directly affected by the 
proposed action appears to request time to make an oral presentation, the Nevada 
Department of Transportation may proceed immediately to act upon any written 
submissions. 

A copy of this notice and the regulation to be adopted will be on file at the State 
Library, 100 Stewart Street, Carson City, Nevada, for inspection by members of the 
public during business hours. Additional copies of the notice and the regulation to be 
adopted will be available at: 

Nevada Department of Transportation, 
District I Office,  
123 E. Washington Ave, 
Las Vegas, NV 89125,  

Nevada Department of Transportation, 
District II Office,  
310 Galletti Way,  
Sparks, NV 89431 

Item #4 Attachment A



Nevada Department of Transportation, 
District III Office,  
1951 Idaho St.,  
Elko, NV 89801 

Nevada Department of Transportation, 
1263 S. Stewart Street,  
Carson City, NV 89712 

Nevada Department of Transportation, 
Tonopah Maintenance Station,  
805 Erie Main,  
Tonopah, NV 89049 

Nevada Department of Transportation, 
Winnemucca Maintenance Station 
725 West 4th St. 
Winnemucca, NV 89446 

Nevada Department of Transportation, 
Ely Maintenance Station 
1401 Ave. F 
Ely, NV 89301 

and in all counties in which an office of the agency is not maintained, at the main public 
library, for inspection and copying by members of the public during business hours.  

This notice and the text of the proposed regulation are also available in the State of 
Nevada Register of Administrative Regulations, which is prepared and published 
monthly by the Legislative Counsel Bureau pursuant to NRS 233B.0653, and on the 
Internet at http://www.leg.state.nv.us/. Copies of this notice and the proposed regulation 
will also be mailed to members of the public upon request. A reasonable fee may be 
charged for copies if it is deemed necessary. 

Upon adoption of any regulation, the agency, if requested to do so by an interested 
person, either before adoption or within thirty (30) calendar days thereafter, will issue a 
concise statement of the principal reasons for and against its adoption and incorporate 
therein its reason for overruling the consideration urged against its adoption. 

 [Att’y Gen., Form of Notice Reg. § 1.3, eff. 10-12-77]—(NAC A 8-20-90; 11-29-95; R138-97, 11-14-97) 

Item #4 Attachment A

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-233B.html%23NRS233BSec0653


NOTICE OF INTENT TO ACT UPON A REGULATION 
January 12, 2015, 9:30am    

This notice of hearing has been posted at the following locations: 

Nevada Department of Transportation 
1236 S. Stewart St. 
Carson City, NV 89712 

Nevada Department of Transportation 
District I Office 
123 E. Washington Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89125 

Nevada Department of Transportation 
Tonopah Maintenance Station 
805 Erie Main 
Tonopah, NV 89049 

Nevada Department of Transportation 
District II Office 
310 Galletti Way 
Sparks, NV 89431 

Washoe County Courthouse 
75 Court St. 
Reno, NV 89520 

Churchill County Library 
5553 S. Maine St. 
Fallon, NV 89406 

Lincoln County Library 
93 Main St. 
Pioche, NV 89043 

Lyon County Library 
20 Nevin Way 
Yerington, NV 89447 

Pershing County Library 
P.O. Box 781 
Lovelock, NV 89419 

Storey County Library 
P.O. Box 14, 95 S. R St. 
Virginia City, NV 89440 

Nevada Department of Transportation 
District III Office 
1951 Idaho St. 
Elko, NV 89801 

Nevada Department of Transportation 
Winnemucca Maintenance Station 
725 West 4th St. 
Winnemucca, NV 89446 

Nevada Department of Transportation 
Ely Maintenance Station 
1401 Ave. F 
Ely, NV 89301 

RTC of Southern Nevada 
600 S. Grand Central Pkwy. 
Suite 350 
Las Vegas, NV 89106 

Grant Sawyer State Office Building 
555 E. Washington Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 

Goldfield Public Library 
P.O. Box 430, Fourth & Crook St. 
Goldfield, NV 89013 

Eureka Branch Library 
P.O. Box 293, 1125 Central Ave. 
Eureka, NV 89316 

Battle Mountain Branch Library 
P.O. Box 141, 625 S. Broad St. 
Battle Mountain, NV 89820 

Douglas County Library 
P.O. Box 337, 171 Central St. 
Minden, NV 89423 

Mineral County Library 
P.O. Box 1390, First & A Street 
Hawthorne,NV89415

1:30 pm

NOTIFICATION OF HEARING TIME CHANGE
Item #4 Attachment A

h9002jam
Cross-Out

h9002jam
Highlight



AGENDA UPDATE 

9:30 AM, January 12, 2015 

Department of Transportation, Transportation Board Meeting 

3rd Floor Conference Room 

1263 S. Stewart Street, Carson City, NV 89712 

1. Call to Order-Open the Public Hearing

2. (Staff) Report by the Department on proposed regulations to be adopted pursuant to the
requirements of NRS 408.527. The purpose of the proposed regulations is to:
A) Provide a definition of the term, “Local Governments”, as referenced in NRS

408.527; (Proposed NAC 408.182)
B) Set forth the requirements that the Department will use to work with Local

Governments in developing and modifying a guide that will direct the process of
relinquishing and trading roads between the Department and Local Governments.
(Proposed NAC 408.567)

3. Public Comment and discussion:
A) Only public comment relative to the proposed regulations will be taken. Public

Comment may be limited to five (5) minutes per person at the discretion of the Board
Chair.

4. This item has been included on the agenda as an ACTION ITEM.
A) Staff recommends that the Board adopt the Temporary Regulation, Proposed NAC

408.182 defining the term “Local Government” as referenced in NRS 408.527.
B) Staff recommends that the Board adopt the Temporary Regulation, Proposed NAC

408.567. 
1) Requires the Department to work with Local Governments to create a process to

relinquish roads under their control. 
2) Provides for a process of developing a working manual (referred to as the

“Guide”) that will be used to propose, develop, evaluate and complete road 
relinquishments between the State and Local Governments.  

3) Provides for a process of modifying the working manual which may be submitted
to the Transportation Board only in the months of October or November each 
year. 

5. Action-Vote on the proposed regulation in Item 4.

6. Close Public Hearing-Adjournment

This notice and agenda has been posted on or before 9 a.m. on the thirtieth (30th) day before the 
meeting at the locations listed above.  

Date: December 9, 2014  

1:30 PM

Item #4 Attachment A

h9002jam
Cross-Out

h9002jam
Highlight



LCB # T001-14 (Proposed Temporary Regulation) 
 
Chapter 408 of NAC is hereby amended by adding thereto the provisions set forth as 
sections_________ and _________ of this regulation. 
 
 
(NEW) NAC (Recommended Number 408.182)  “Local Government” defined. (NRS 
408.215). “Local Government” for the purpose of NAC 408.567 means the legislative body of 
any county or city. 
(Added to NAC by Dep’t of Transportation, eff. _-_-14) 
 
 
(NEW) NAC (Recommended Number 408.567)  Requirements for the relinquishment of 
roads and road trades between the Department and Local Governments. (NRS 408.527) 
 
  1.  The relinquishment process provided for in NRS 408.527 shall be conducted as set forth in 
this section. The Department shall work collaboratively with Local Governments to create a 
process by which the Department and Local Governments may relinquish those roads under 
each’s control to the other entity as provided for in this section. 
 
  2. The Department, in cooperation with Local Governments, shall develop a working manual, 
which shall identify the process for proposing, developing, evaluating, and completing road 
relinquishments between the Department and Local Governments. This manual shall be entitled 
“State of Nevada, Department of Transportation, Guide to Roadway Relinquishments” (the 
“Guide”). The development of the Guide shall be accomplished in the following manner: 
 

(a) The Department shall develop preliminary recommended language for the Guide and 
shall submit the proposed Guide to the Chief Administrative Officer of each Local 
Government.  Each Local Government shall have a minimum of 45 calendar days to provide 
comment on the proposed language for the Guide. 
 
(b) Upon completion of the 45-day review period, the Department shall develop a written 
response to each comment received. The list of comments and responses shall be sent to all 
Local Governments within 20 calendar days of the close of the 45-day review period. 
 
(c) The Department shall use its best efforts to resolve disagreements, if any, between the 
Department and any Local Government. If an agreement cannot be reached, the Department 
shall submit the Guide to the Board for approval at a scheduled public meeting. 
 
(d) All persons in attendance at the scheduled Board meeting shall have an opportunity to 
provide comment and recommendations to the Board concerning the proposed language. 
 
(e) The Board shall consider the recommendations from the Department and those comments 
and recommendations of persons in attendance at such scheduled meeting regarding the 
proposed revisions to the Guide. The Board shall approve or deny the proposed language to 

1 
 

Item #4 Attachment B

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-408.html%23NRS408Sec215
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-408.html%23NRS408Sec215


the Guide. In the event the Board denies any portion of the language in the Guide, it shall 
direct the Department to meet with Local Governments to work on alternative language and 
submit such alternative language to the Board at a subsequent Board meeting for approval. 
This resubmission of language to the Board shall not be considered a new request subject to 
the time limits for a Revision Cycle set forth in Subsection 3 to this Section.  
 
(f)  Once approved by the Board, the Department shall place the Guide on its website for 
public viewing. 
 

  3.  The process to seek approval of new or revised language may be commenced by the 
Department by bringing such revision to the Board once per year during the months of October 
and/or November upon the prior completion of the following required procedures (the “Revision 
Cycle”): 
 

(a) At least 90 calendar days prior to a scheduled Board meeting to approve any revisions to 
the Guide, the Department shall provide a copy of such proposed revisions to the Chief 
Administrative Officer of each Local Government. 
 

 (b) All Local Governments shall have no less than 30 calendar days to review the proposed 
revisions to the Guide and provide their comments, if any, to the Department (the “Review 
Period”).  

 
(c)  The Department shall evaluate all written comments within 15 calendar days of the close 
of the Review Period (the “Evaluation Period”).  
 
(d) The Department shall provide its comments to the Chief Administrative officer of each 
Local Government within 5 calendar days of the close of the Evaluation Period (the 
“Notification Period”).  
 
(e) If necessary to resolve any conflicts in the proposed language, if any, between the 
Department and the Local Governments, the Department shall meet with the representatives 
of the Local Governments within 10 calendar days of the close of the Notification Period to 
discuss the disputed language. Such meeting between the Department and Local 
Governments shall be completed at least 30 calendar days prior to the scheduled Board 
meeting date as set forth in this subsection 3. 
 
(f) In the event the Department and Local Governments are unsuccessful at resolving any 
disputed language, the Department shall submit the Guide with its proposed revised 
language to the Board for approval at the scheduled meeting. 
 
(g) All persons at attendance of the scheduled Board meeting shall have an opportunity to 
provide comment and recommendations to the Board concerning the proposed language. 
 
(h) The Board shall consider the recommendations from the Department and any comments 
and recommendations from persons in attendance at the scheduled meeting regarding the 

2 
 

Item #4 Attachment B



proposed language. The Board shall make a final determination as to the approval of any 
revisions to the Guide. 
 
(i) If the Board approves of the revisions to the Guide, the newly approved Guide shall 
become effective upon the Board’s approval. The Department shall place the revised Guide 
on the Department web site along with a statement of the Board’s approval.  
 
(j) Those proposed revisions not approved by the Board shall not be adopted into the Guide, 
and the Department shall continue to use the Guide in existence prior to the scheduled Board 
meeting. The Department shall not bring to the Board any additional requests for revisions 
to the Guide until the next subsequent Revision Cycle in accordance with this subparagraph 
2. 
 

(Added to NAC by Dep’t of Transportation, eff. _-_-14) 
 

3 
 

Item #4 Attachment B



STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

GUIDE TO ROADWAY RELINQUISHMENTS  
 

 
Rural Highway                                                                                       
  

Nevada Department of Transportation  
1263 S. Stewart St  

Carson City, NV 89712  
(775)888-7000 

 
 

Published by the Planning Division  
Roadway Systems Section, 1213 Oregon St, Carson City, NV 89712  

For information please contact the State Systems Unit of the  
Roadway Systems at (775) 888-7179 or (775) 888-7675 

 

             

    DRAFT      
Vers.(11/2014)               Rudy Malfabon, P.E., Director 

 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

Table of Contents 
 

Table of Contents…………………………………………………....................... 2 
 

Section 1: INTRODUCTION 
1.1 Definitions ……………………………………………………………………….. 3 
1.2 Department Responsibility…………………………………….………………….. 4 
1.3 Purpose and Intent …………………………………………………......................  4 
1.4 History…………………………………………………………………………...... 5 

 
Section 2: LEGISLATIVE ACTION 

2.1 Legislative Statutes NRS 408.527............................................................................ 8 
 
Section 3: RELINQUISHMENTS & ROAD TRADES 

3.1 Types of Relinquishment………………………………………………………...... 10 
3.2 Appropriateness of Relinquishment.......................................................................... 10 
3.3 Cost to Relinquish..................................................................................................... 11 
3.4 Road Trades……………………………………………………………………...... 11 

  
Section 4: PROCESS 

4.1 Initial Process……………………………………………………………………....12 
 4.1.1 Letter of Intent 

  4.1.1 (a)    Procedure from LG to Department 
  4.1.1 (b)    Procedure from Department to LG 
 4.1.2 Response to Letter of Intent 
 4.1.3 In House-Field Review 
 4.1.4 Road Traffic and Safety Evaluation 
4.2 Joint Party Field Review…………………………………………………………... 13 
4.3 Negotiation with Local Government..................................................................... 14 
4.4 Determining State of Good Repair………………………………………………... 14 

 
Section 5: NON-AGREEMENTS AND CONFLICT RESOLUTION  

5.1        Non-agreements…………....................................................................................... 15 
  5.1.1 Non-agreement Memo received by NDOT from LG 
  5.1.2 Non-agreement Memo received by LG, from NDOT 

5.2 Conflict Resolution………….................................................................................. 16 
 
Section 6: AGREEMENTS AND RESOLUTIONS 
 6.1 Written Agreements……………………………………………………………….. 17 
 6.2 Resolutions………………………………………………………………………... 17 
 6.3  Final Official Resolution and Recordation……………………………………….. 17 
 
Section 7: APPENDICES AND FIGURES  

 Appendix A Determining What Exceeds the Departments Needs…………….. 18 
 Appendix B Determining What Constitutes the Need to Elevate a  

Road to a State Highway………………………………………… 19 
 Figure 1 In-house Check List……………………………………………… 20 
 Figure 2 Road Traffic and Safety Evaluation Form (RTSE)........................ 22 
 Figure 3 Joint Party Field Review Form....................................................... 23 
 Figure 4 Negotiation Check List................................................................... 24 

 
 

2 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Definitions 

*(The definitions listed below with an asterisk are found in their entirety in the Code of 
Federal Regulations, CFR 23, Chapter 1, Section 460.2. The full definition found in the CFR 
shall apply). 

 
Betterment - A physical improvement to a facility (roadbed, roadway or roadside element) 
either geometrically or structurally, that would be considered above and beyond a state of 
good repair. 

  
Cost to relinquish - A level of work or financial contribution to facilitate the relinquishment.  

 
Department -  State of Nevada, Department of Transportation 

 
Division - Division of State Lands 

 
Exceeds the Departments Needs – A determination by the Department, county or city, that 
the highway no longer is needed, based on a system analysis.  

 
Equitable Trade Value – Value can be in the form of monetary compensation, other land 
value including roads, public land or a combination of compensation and land.  

  
Federal Aid Highways – Highways where federal funds have participated in either right-of-
way or physical construction. 

 
FHWA- Federal Highway Administration 

 
Highway – NRS 408.070, Highway means roads, bridges, structures, culverts, curbs, drains 
and all buildings, communication facilities, services and works incidental to highway 
construction, improvements and maintenance required, laid out, constructed, improved or 
maintained as such pursuant to constitutional or legislative authority. 
 
Local Government Agency (LGA) - NAC 408.182. The term, “Local Government” for the 
purpose of NAC 408.567 means the legislative body of any county or city. 

*Maintenance – The preservation of the entire highway, including surfaces, shoulders, 
roadsides, structures, and such traffic control as necessary for its safe and efficient utilization.  

 
NDOT – Nevada Department of Transportation 

 
*Open to public travel – Road sections that are available, except during schedule periods, 
extreme weather or emergency conditions, passable by four-wheel standard passenger cars 
and open to the general public for use without restrictive gates. (Further defined in 23 CFR, 
Chapter 1, Section 460.2, Code of Federal Regulations). 

 
*Public Authority – A federal, state, county, town or township, Indian tribe, municipal or 
other local government or instrumentality thereof, with authority to finance, build, operate, or 
maintain toll or toll-free highway facilities. (Defined in 23 CFR, Chapter 1, Section 460.2, 
Code of Federal Regulations). 

 
3 

 

Item #4 Attachment C



 
*Public Road – Any road under the jurisdiction of and maintained by a public authority and 
open to public travel. (Defined in 23 CFR, Chapter 1, Section 460.2, Code of Federal 
Regulations). 

 
Relinquish – The act of turning over to another entity the property rights, liability and 
maintenance responsibilities of a portion of a state, county or city highway.  

 
Relinquishment by legislative enactment – Using legislative action to delete a portion of a 
state highway from the State Highway System that no longer serves inter-regional or 
statewide transportation needs.  

 
Relinquishment by relocation – The same as “relinquishment by superseding.” 

 
Relinquishment by superseding – A state highway has been realigned or built on an 
alignment that is different than the existing alignment making the old alignment redundant.  

 
Relinquishment of Federal Aid Highways – Conveyance of a portion of a highway right-
of-way or facility by a State Highway Agency (SHA) to another government agency for 
highway use. (Defined in CFR 23, Chapter 1, Subchapter G, Part 620, subpart B, 620.203 
(b),Code of Federal Regulations). 

  
 Road Traffic and Safety Evaluation (RTSE) – See Figure 2 of this manual. 
 

Relinquishment of collateral facilities – Those local streets and roads that were built or 
modified during the course of a state highway project and are no longer needed for the State 
Highway System and are to be relinquished to the appropriate local agency. 
 
Repair- To fix or mend something: to restore something broken or damaged to good condition. 
 
Roadway – NAC 408.245, Means the portion of a highway for vehicular use, including the 
shoulders and the portion of the highway within the limits of any construction. For the purpose of 
this manual and its processes, shall also include all appurtenances associated with the highway 
within the rights of way. 
 
Right-of-way- NRS 408.080, Means land, property or any interest therein acquired for or 
devoted to highways whether or not the entire area of such is actually used for highway purposes. 
 
Safe Road- As determined by joint agreement after the joint field review and is based partly 
on data reported using the Road Traffic and Safety Evaluation form shown in Figure 2. 
Generally means a road that has little or no correctable accidents, that contains pavement 
widths, cross slopes, and striping that are standard to a road of the nature in question. The 
road contains no exigent roadside cautions the overall road conditions would lead a prudent 
person to feel safe, driving the road. 
 
State Highway – For the purposes of this manual, any reference to a State Highway or State 
Maintained Highway, shall mean highways under the control and ownership of the State of 
Nevada, Department of Transportation, NDOT. 
  
State of good repair – To fix or mend the roadway to a safe, maintained travel area for 
vehicles, pedestrians and all other modes in a good condition. This term does not include 

4 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 
betterments or capacity increasing improvements. (See section 4.4 of this manual for more on 
the State of Good Repair). 

 
1.2 Department Responsibility 
 
Road relinquishments and road transfers have occurred between Local Government Agencies 
(LGA) and the state, for many years. In 2013, Assembly Bill 18 was approved and revised NRS 
408.527 thus clarifying the process that enables these transactions. 
 
The Roadway Systems Unit of the Planning Division of NDOT is responsible for managing the 
completion of road transfers between the Department and LGA’s. Requests to consider road 
transfers by an LGA starts with a request to the Roadway Systems Unit. 
 
1.3 Purpose and Intent of Manual 

 
The purpose of this manual is to provide guidance in the process and completion of roadway 
relinquishments either to or from the State of Nevada, Department of Transportation. This 
manual is to provide a smooth process by which roads can be transferred between the department 
and LGA’s working together in the process. NRS 408.527 shall be followed when completing 
road relinquishments or road transfers. 
 
This manual was developed with assistance from the following: NDOT Administration-
Headquarters, NDOT District Engineers, League of Cities-Nevada, Nevada Association of Counties-
NACO, Agency representatives from various local governments representing, cities, counties, and 
RTC’s, NDOT Right of Way Division and NDOT-Roadway Systems Division.  

 
1.4 History 
Since the creation of the Department of Transportation in 1957, the state maintained road network 
has grown and evolved significantly as a result of growth, changing regional economics, and the 
national development of the Interstate system of highways. As these demographic changes 
developed, some of the original road system was, or continues to be superseded by relocation, and 
significant portions no longer serve areas of state significance. The Department currently maintains a 
mix of 5,400 miles of roadways that service as many as 250,000 + vehicle trips a day down to less 
than 50. 

In recognition of this, the 1999 legislature passed Assembly Concurrent Resolution 3. This resolution 
directed the director of the Department of Transportation to study the feasibility of transferring state 
owned roads used primarily for local traffic to local governments. In addition, the study was to 
examine transferring local roads serving regional or statewide interests to the State. Assembly 
Concurrent Resolution 3 can be found in the NDOT library or you may request a copy from the 
office of Roadway Systems, 1263 S. Stewart Street, Safety/Roadway Modular, 93712. 

The Department conducted the above mentioned study and submitted its findings to the legislature in 
June of 2001. Several elements were considered in conducting the study to determine whether a 
highway should be a state or local route. The most important were: connectivity, accessibility, 
maintenance costs, travel volume, safety issues, geography, roadway appurtenances, jurisdictional 

5 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 
issues and ownership. The study identified 109 highways (599 miles) under NDOT jurisdiction along 
with 27 highways (271 miles) under local government jurisdiction for possible exchange of 
maintenance and in most cases ownership.  

Generally, the study defined that the state should maintain roads that are heavily used or provide 
interstate, inter-county, intercity, intermodal, or national-defense connectivity. The results of the 
study identified roadways that the state may have interest in transferring to local entities and 
conversely roadways that local entities may have an interest in transferring to the state. Utilizing the 
criteria, the study identified a significantly higher number of overall mileages for roadways under 
state jurisdiction for transfer than for the local entities. The results of the study made it clear that the 
equitable exchange of roadways represented limited potential when considering the entire list of 
roadways identified.  

In September of 2005, the Nevada Department of Administration Division of Internal Audits 
conducted an audit of the Departments road transfer process due to the limited success in transferring 
roads to local governments. In all, only 22 miles of roadway were transferred as of that date. The 
audit made 3 recommendations to improve the process including: “Eliminating time spent 
determining road ownership”, “Use alternative methods to transfer roads”, and “Assign staff to 
coordinate the transfer process”. All 3 recommendations were implemented however, the department 
was still met with limited success due to local entities reluctance to take on new roadways without 
long term compensation for maintenance costs or in many cases inability to maintain what is 
currently in their jurisdiction. Most of the successes to date are the result of a local entity requesting 
the exchange when it is in their interest for control of access, and to initiate improvements of a 
priority to the entity. A copy of the September 2005 Division of Internal Audits can be found in the 
NDOT library or you may request a copy from the office of Roadway Systems, 1263 S. Stewart 
Street, Safety/Roadway Modular, 93712. 

As a result of assigning staff to coordinate the transfer process, additional parameters were 
established to define what type of roadways should be maintained by the state. Those parameters can 
be found in Appendix A of this manual. 

To date 903 miles of state maintained highways have been identified as candidates for transfer from 
the State to LGA’s. Of these, 98 miles have been successfully transferred.  

Due to the limited success with completing transfers, the director of NDOT at that time, proposed a 
new strategy to the Board. The department identified roads to be relinquished that had projects in the 
2006-2008 Statewide Transportation Program (STIP) for resurfacing, reconstruction and 
rehabilitation. The proposal to offer “Lump sum” payments was brought to the Board in February of 
2006. The Board indicated that we already had approval to use whatever means necessary to 
relinquish these roads.  

During the following years, some road relinquishment and road trades were proposed and a few, such 
as a road exchange between Carson City and the Department occurred with the construction of 
Interstate 580, were completed but the list of roads for relinquishment remained high.  

In January of 2012, the director of NDOT made a presentation to the Transportation Board on the 
background, process and current status of State Highway relinquishments to local governments. That 

6 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 
presentation to the Board discussed the 2001 Report to the Legislature and Assembly Concurrent 
Resolution 3, and the 2005 Audit referred to earlier, and miscellaneous other documents of interest 
and was concluded as an information item only. However, the need to revitalize the relinquishment 
process was born from this presentation. NDOT staff was directed to look at NRS 408.527 and revise 
it to make it work better both for the State and local governments. Staff began later that year to meet 
with local governments, first via teleconference, then through on-site workshops that occurred in the 
spring of 2013 to develop a process for addressing relinquishments and road trades. The results of 
those meetings created the language that was presented to and adopted by the Legislature of the State 
of Nevada In May of 2013 which amended NRS 408.527 and helped develop this manual as you see 
it today.  

This manual is a first step in providing a focused direction to both, the Department and the local 
governments on an identified process for developing a road relinquishment or road transfer between 
agencies. It is a living document and as we move forward, is intended to be modified as issues arise 
with those modifications only coming after agreement between the Department and local 
governments.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

SECTION 2: LEGISLATION  
 
2.1 Legislative Statutes: 
 
Nevada Revised Statute NRS 408.527  
Procedure for relinquishment of roadways; regulations 
 

1. Whenever the Department and the county or city concerned have entered into a written 
agreement providing therefor, and the legislative body of the county or city has adopted a 
resolution consenting thereto, the Board may relinquish to the county or city: 

a. Any portion of any state highway which has been deleted from the state 
highway system by legislative enactment:  

or 
b. Any portion of any state highway which has been superseded by relocation or 

which the Department determines exceeds its needs. 
      

2. Whenever the county or city concerned and the Department have entered into a written 
agreement providing therefor, and the Board has adopted a resolution consenting thereto, 
the county or city may relinquish to the Department any portion of any county or city road 
which the Department agrees qualifies to join the state highway system. 

 
3. By resolution of the Board, the Department may upon request relinquish to the Division of 

State Lands of the State Department of Conservation and Natural Resources for the public 
use of another state agency any portion of any state highway which has been superseded by 
relocation or which the Department determines exceeds its needs. 
 

4. Relinquishment must be made by a resolution. A certified copy of the resolution must be filed 
with the legislative body of the county or city concerned. The resolution must be recorded in 
the office of the County Recorder of the county where the land is located and, upon 
recordation, all right, title and interest of the State in and to that portion of any state 
highway vests in the county, city or division, as the case may be. 
 

5. Nothing in NRS 408.523 limits the power of the Board to relinquish abandoned or vacated 
portions of a state highway to a county, city or the Division. 
 

6. If the Board relinquishes property pursuant to subsection 5, and the purpose for which the 
property was relinquished is abandoned or ceases to exist, then, absent an agreement or 
provision of law to the contrary, and regardless of the interest of the Department in the 
property before it was relinquished, all right, title and interest in the property shall vest in 
the county, city or Division without reversion to the Department. 

 
7. The Board may accept from a county or city any portion of any county or city road which has 

changed in function such that it has risen to the level of functioning as a state highway. Such 
a road may be traded for any portion of a state highway relinquished by the Department or 
accepted by the Department after equitable compensation or trade values have been 
negotiated and agreed to in writing. 
 

8. A county or city may accept from the Department any portion of any state highway which no 
longer functions to support the state highway system and which exceeds the needs of the 

8 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 
Department. Such a highway may be traded for any portion of any county or city road 
relinquished by the county or city or accepted by the county or city after equitable 

  compensation or trade values have been negotiated and agreed to in writing. 
 

9. Any portion of a state highway or county or city road that is relinquished or traded pursuant 
to this section must be placed in good repair, or the parties must establish and agree in 
writing to equitable monetary compensation. If any highways or roads, or portions thereof, to 
be relinquished or traded are not of comparable value, the parties must negotiate and agree 
in writing to equitable monetary compensation or equitable trade considerations. 
 

10. The Department, in cooperation with local governments, shall adopt regulations governing 
procedural documents that address the process by which highways and roads are 
relinquished. 
 

11. The vesting of all right, title and interest of the Department in and to portions of any state 
highways relinquished previously by the Department in the city, county or state agency to 
which it was relinquished is hereby confirmed. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

SECTION 3: RELINQUISHMENTS and ROAD TRADES 
 

Road trades and Relinquishments should be completed for the entire portion of right of 
way. Portion relinquishments have occurred in the past causing jurisdictional issues, 
including maintenance, accident investigation, and confusion to the public. Therefore, 
relinquishments should include the full width of any road from right of way to right of 
way and should include the full changeover of all responsibility for the road. Split 
Jurisdiction roads should be considered for relinquishment only in the case where all 
jurisdictions with ownership in the road and after its relinquishment are in agreement 
with the relinquishment. 

 
3.1  Types of Relinquishment 
 

In Nevada there are three types of relinquishments:  
 

• Relinquishment by Legislative enactment  
a. This relinquishment is completed using legislative action to delete a portion of a state 

highway from the State Highway System that no longer serves inter-regional or statewide 
transportation needs. For example, during a legislative session, a highway is 
recommended for relinquishment and it is completed by legislative vote and not through 
an agreement process as required by other processes. This action will generally only be 
used when there is agreement between the Department and the LGA involved and the 
agreement is in the form of a written letter from the LGA stating their agreement. 
However, nothing in this manual replaces the ability of the legislature to enact legislation 
of any kind, including the relinquishment of a state highway. 

• Relinquishment by the superseding or relocation of new state highway 
a. This process is used when a highway is relinquished to an LGA upon the completion of a 

new roadway that has been realigned or built on an alignment that is different than the 
existing alignment making the old alignment redundant. This requires a formal process of 
relinquishment covered by this manual. 

• Relinquishment by the changing of a highways primary functionality from a system 
perspective 
a. This relinquishment occurs when the Department determines a road to be in excess of its 

needs or that the road no longer functions as a state highway or when a local agency feels 
a road has risen to a level of functioning as a state highway. This requires a formal 
process of relinquishment covered by this manual. 

 
3.2 Appropriateness of Relinquishment 
 
The Department must first determine if a relinquishment makes sense from a system perspective.  
Criteria have been developed and are applied to a road that is considered for relinquishment, this 
criterion is primarily system connectivity and functionality related. (See Appendix A). Other factors 
should also be considered when determining the appropriateness of a relinquishment, such as: 

• Future Projects Pending 
• Economic Development 
• Regional Recreation Use 
• Land Use 
• LGA’s Master Plan 

10 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 
The goal is for the relinquishment or trade to neither be a benefit or burden to either parties but to 
best serve the travelling public and communities of the State of Nevada. 
 
3.3 Cost to Relinquish 
 
The cost to relinquish or trade roads is established in the negotiation between the State and the Local 
Public Agency.  A joint review of the roads shall be conducted to identify needs and advantages for 
the relinquishment or trade.  Negotiations can include monetary compensation but must be agreed 
upon in writing, by the negotiating parties. In the event that the State agrees to monetary 
compensation, the negotiating agent must have budget approval from the Department of 
Transportation’s Director and the budget division, prior to finalizing the agreement. 
 
3.4 Road Trades 
 
NRS 408.527, as it has been changed, allows for the trade of roads from the Department to a county 
or city (LGA) and also from a county or city (LGA) to the Department. In this sense, a 
relinquishment does not occur but a trade occurs. Language in the law requires that there be equitable 
trade of value. Value can be in the form of monetary compensation, other land value including roads, 
public land or a combination of compensation and land. During the negotiation process, the equitable 
trade of value component will be discussed and the final agreement between the entities will describe 
what items have been determined to be used as the equitable trade value.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

SECTION 4: PROCESS 

4.1 Initial Process  
 
All process of developing a road relinquishment or trade shall follow this manual as required by NRS 
408.527 and NAC 408.182. 
 

4.1.1 Letter of Intent: 
 

When the Department or LGA wants to relinquish or trade a road, and has determined the 
type of relinquishment involved, a letter of intent shall be sent to the other party stating the 
intent to open up dialog for the consideration of a relinquishment.  The letter should delineate 
the highways or roads to be discussed and a reason why they are being considered. At 
minimum, the letter should contain information such as; 

• A description of the highway to be relinquished; i.e., its limits, functionality, connections to 
other state highways or other relinquishments, and the results of the system analysis decision.  

• A short summary of the agency's primary concerns (e.g., lack of maintenance funds, 
requested improvements, traffic control devices, etc.)  

• Clear, legible maps and other attachments as appropriate that show the highway to be 
relinquished, the condition of the highway, and other features that are of concern to the local 
agency or NDOT.  
 
• Names, phone numbers, and locations of the appropriate contact persons. 

 
4.1.1(a) Procedure from Department to LGA: 
1. Initiation by Roadway Systems using the current list of roads recommended for 

relinquishment. 
a. Roadway Systems will develop a letter to the Chief Manager of the LGA (usually 

the City Manager, County Manager, or Director) recommending dialog be opened 
b. Cc copy of letter to the District Engineer and Right of Way 

2. If initiated by other than Roadway Systems  
a. Contact Roadway Systems and provide information as shown in item 4.1.1 above. 

Note that the road must meet the criteria contained in Appendix A.  
b. Once request to Roadway Systems is made, then Roadway Systems will follow 

the procedures established in Section 4 of this manual to initiate the process and 
tracking. 

 
4.1.1(b) Procedure from LGA to the Department: 
1. Send Letter of Intent to: 

Nevada Department of Transportation 
ATT: Chief of Roadway System Division 
1263 S. Stewart Street 
Carson City, NV, 89712 
 
a. Letter should contain, at minimum, the information shown in item 4.1.1 above 

and must fit into the criteria identified in Appendix B. 
 

 
 

12 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 
4.1.2 Response to letter of Intent: 
 
A response letter should be returned to the initiating agency acknowledging the intent letter 
and whether or not further discussion should be made. It should indicate the reasons why 
discussions or negotiations should or should not continue. If the letter of Intent indicates a 
willingness to proceed with discussions, then a tracking number shall be assigned using the 
current system in place through the Right of Way division at NDOT for surplus property. 
This number will be for tracking only. 

 
4.1.3 Initial In House-Field Review:  
(The in-house field review is conducted by the Roadway Systems unit for the Department. LGA’s should 
assign this to an appropriate representative) 
 
After the response letter is received and there is indication of further action, a field review 
should be conducted to gather the basic information about the road(s) in question, i.e., 
location, length, width, number of lanes, pavement condition, general location and type of 
visible utilities, structures, intersections, and photographs, etc. This step will provide valuable 
data for use when the joint field review is set. It will allow the representative to make 
determinations on issues of interest in preparation for the joint field review which should 
allow for better discussion. 

Figure 1 is a form that can be used to complete the in-house field review. 
 

 4.1.4 Road Traffic and Safety Evaluation  
  
 A Road Traffic and Safety Evaluation (RTSE) is required to be completed by the initiating  

agency and will provide data on traffic counts, accident information, proposed planned 
construction and observations on travel conditions of the road based on a visual review. This 
information will be helpful to both the initiating agency and to the receiving agency in 
evaluation of the current and future plans for the road and its current operating 
characteristics.  
 Figure 2 is a form to be completed by the initiating agency. 

 
 
4.2 Joint Party Field Review 
 
After the initial in-house field review issues are evaluated, a Joint Party Field Review should be 
scheduled. Upon completion of the In-House field review, copies of the review and any issues of 
concern shall be forwarded to the LGA or the Department, depending on who completed the in-
house review. The joint field review should include, at minimum, a representative from the LGA, 
who shall represent the interest of the LGA, and the District Engineers office for NDOT, along 
with a representative from the Roadway Systems Unit of NDOT whose role will be to document 
the discussions and issues raised in the joint review, and to assist with moving the process 
forward after the completion of the joint field review. The joint review should also include a 
representative from the various groups at NDOT that may be involved in the discussions of 
specific items, such as Right of Way, Traffic Operations, Maintenance, Structures etc., if feasible 
and available. If not available during the joint field review, representative divisions and units 
shall respond in writing to issues raised by the joint field review team within 30 calendar days of 
being notified of the request for their response by the Roadway Systems Unit. 

Figure 3 is a format that can be used to complete the Joint Party Field Review.  
 

 
13 

 

Item #4 Attachment C



 
4.3 Negotiations between Local Government Agency and the State 
 
Once the Joint Party Field Review is completed, a meeting should be scheduled by the leading 
party that first requested the initiation of the relinquishment or road trade. That meeting should 
include representatives from each agency that are familiar with the issues of the joint field 
review and other issues of interest, and should also include representatives that are designated to 
make decisions on behalf of their agency relative to final negotiations but prior to official 
resolutions.  
 
This negotiation is the beginning of the process to identify the final items that are open for 
negotiation and resolution of issues prior to the relinquishment process formalizing. Once 
negotiations have reached a point of agreement, a document should be prepared by the initiating 
agency delineating the issues and agreements that were reached. This agreement shall be signed 
by an agency representative charged with authority to sign agreements. The shall become a part 
of the process for final approval through the body charged with formal approvals in their 
jurisdiction, such as a City Council, County Commission, State Transportation Board or other 
charging body empowered to enter into agreements.  
 Figure 4 is a checklist that can be used to assist in the negotiation process. 
 
4.4 Determining State of Good Repair 
 
State of good repair, for the purpose of this document is to have a safe, well-maintained road that all 
users, including vehicles, bicycles, motorcycles, pedestrians and all other modes of travel allowed 
with the right-of-way, can expect as a prudent user. It is the expectations that a prudent driver, 
bicyclist, or pedestrian (whether walking or in a ada compliant product) would have while using the 
road, sidewalk etc. Those expectations include but are not limited to, not encountering obstacles in 
the roadway, not driving or walking on rough or poorly maintained travel areas, poor drainage, 
inadequate striping and signage, poorly operating traffic signals, poorly operating lighting systems, 
and roadside obstacles that deter from the safety of the roadway. The term, “State of Good Repair” 
does not include the installation of new items, betterments or capacity increasing improvements and 
generally means bringing the existing items found at the time of review, up to a good, useable 
product. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

14 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

SECTION 5: NON-AGREEMENT AND  CONFLICT 
   RESOLUTION   

5.1 Non-agreement 
 

If there is no agreement as to a condition relative to ‘Good Repair’ or there is no agreement 
on what is an acceptable means of putting the road into a state of good repair, or on any other 
item, such as trade value, equitable value, etc, the agency not agreeing shall formulate a non-
agreement memo.  
 
For memos being sent to the Department (NDOT), the memo should be sent to: 
 

Roadway Systems Office 
Attn: Roadway Systems Division Chief  
1263 S. Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada  89712 

  
For memos being sent to the LGA, the memo should be sent to the party assigned by that 
agency as their representative, who was identified as required in section 4.1 Process, of this 
document. 
 
The memo shall state what the item of the non-agreement is, the issue or concern with the 
item of non-agreement, the date of observation that formulated the concern, the reason they 
feel there is no agreement, and recommended resolutions. 
 

5.1.1 Non-agreement Memo Received by the Department (from LGA) 
          
Once a Non-agreement Memo is received at NDOT it will be logged into the file and 
forwarded to the District Engineer (or their representative) for review. Within 30 
calendar days of receipt of the memo, a meeting will be scheduled by the Roadway 
Section of NDOT to include necessary NDOT staff that will make a determination as 
to the response from NDOT on the item or items of disagreement. The District 
Engineer will formulate the response to the sender after conferring with necessary 
NDOT staff.  
 
If the District Engineer agrees with the issues raised in the memo, the memo will 
reflect this agreement and will include suggestions on resolution, which may include 
agreement with the recommended resolution identified by the sender in the Non-
agreement Memo.  
 
If the District Engineer does not agree with the issues raised in the memo, the memo 
will reflect the disagreement and will include recommended resolutions for resolving 
the issues raised.  
 
All responses from the District Engineer to the LGA shall include Carbon Copy 
(CC’s) to the Roadway Systems Unit of NDOT, and the Director’s Office of NDOT.  
 
It is the goal of NDOT and NRS 408.527 to create a mechanism that allows for a 
positive resolution to roadway relinquishments or road transfers. All NDOT staff 

15 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 
should attempt to find resolution of disagreements that would best represent the 
interest of the people of the state of Nevada. 
5.1.2 Non-agreement Memo received by an LGA (from the Department) 
 
Once a Non-agreement Memo is received by an LGA, the LGA shall respond within 
30 calendar days of receipt of the memo as to their agreement or non-agreement with 
the issues raised in the Non-agreement Memo.  The response shall include their 
agreement or non-agreement with the issues raised and if in Non-agreement Memo. 
The memo should state the reasons for the non-agreement and include recommended 
solutions to resolve any non-agreement. 

 
 
5.2 Conflict Resolution 
 
 If, after receipt of, and response to the Non-agreement Memo, there does not appear to be  

a foreseeable resolution on the issues raised, a meeting shall be set between the two 
parties to confer on the items of non-agreement and an attempt to work out a responsible 
solution.  Documentation of this meeting and its results should be sent to the Roadway 
Systems office of NDOT for addition to the working file. 
 
If it appears that no resolution can be found, the relinquishment or road transfer shall be  

 terminated and each party shall notify the other that they no longer wish to consider this 
 relinquishment. 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

16 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

SECTION 6: AGREEMENTS AND RESOLUTIONS 

6.1 Written Agreements  
 

Each relinquishment or road transfer shall be formalized by the District Engineer, of each 
NDOT District, or their representative, in the form of a “Cooperative Agreement”. The 
agreement document must be approved by both the Department and LGA. Agreements 
that contain monetary transfer from the Department shall first be approved by the Budget 
Division to insure funds are available to complete the transaction. This Agreement must 
be fully executed prior to moving forward with getting the Resolutions, as discussed 
below, approved. 

 
6.2 Resolutions 
 

Each relinquishment or road transfer shall be prepared by the Right of Way Division of 
the Department and will consist of a Resolution Consenting to Relinquishment.  The 
Resolution Consenting must be approved by the body charged in the LGA’s body that is 
charged with formal approval of resolutions/agreements. The Resolution of 
Relinquishment is the document that transfers the title to the road. 

 
6.3 Final Official Resolution for Recordation 
 

Once the Resolution Consenting has been approved by the LGA’s body, the matter shall 
be taken to the State’s Transportation Board for final approval. If approved by the 
Transportation Board, the Resolution of Relinquishment will be completed and will be 
recorded in the office of the County Recorder of the county where the land is located  

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

17 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

Appendix A 
 

DETERMINING WHAT “EXCEEDS” THE DEPARTMENTS NEEDS: 
 
A determination by the Department, county or city, that the highway no longer is needed, based on a 
system analysis. The system analysis shall include but not be limited to the following determinations for 
the highway: 

a. No longer serves to provide connectivity. 
b. No longer serves to provide accessibility 
c. The cost has exceeded the benefit ratio. 
d. Travel volumes are of a nature that the justification of the highway cannot be made. 
e. Safety issues, including the geography and roadway appurtenances overshadow the need for the 

roadway. 
f. Jurisdictional issues and ownership are of a nature to warrant the relinquishment of the highway 

to a local entity. 
 

A: Criteria for routes that should be removed from the state roadway system (absent 
additional justification for inclusion): 
1. Routes that cross state and/or county lines, and are functionally classified lower than Rural 

Major Collector or Urban Minor Arterial.  
2. Urban routes functionally classified lower than Urban Principal Arterial\Other. 
3. Rural routes functionally classified lower than Rural Minor Arterial. 
4. Rural routes with <= 1 million 2-directional ESAL (equivalent single axel load). 

 
B: Criteria for routes that may be considered for abandonment: 

1. Route meets the criteria for removal from the state roadway system. 
2. The local public agency has declined to accept responsibility for the route. 
3. Route does not meet any of the “should”, or “may” criteria contained in Appendix B for 

inclusion in the state roadway system. 
4. The underlying fee ownership* of the route in question belongs to a public agency and, the 

abandonment does not adversely affect an abutting property owner’s access.  
*If NDOT is the underlying fee owner and the property was acquired on or after April 1st, 1957, 
the property must be disposed of in accordance with NRS 408.533. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

18 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

Appendix B 
 

DETERMINING WHAT CONSTITUTES THE NEED TO RAISE A ROAD 
TO A STATE HIGHWAY BY AN LPA: 

A determination by the LPA that the highway has raised to a level of performing as a state 
highway, based on a system analysis. The system analysis shall include but not be limited to the 
following determinations for the highway: 
 
A:  Criteria for routes that should be included in the state roadway system: 

a. Route is part of the Interstate and\or US Route system(s). 
b. Routes or portions of routes with right of way identified for future corridor needs. 
c. Route is required by previous NDOT agreement for providing access and the purpose of the 

original agreement is still viable. 
d. Route provides Inter-state and\or Inter-county and\or Inter-city connectivity for travel and\or 

commerce. 
e. Routes that cross state and\or county lines, provide connectivity to higher order facilities, and are 

Functionally Classified by NDOT as Rural Major Collector, Urban Minor Arterial, or higher. 
 
B: Criteria that may be considered as additional justification for a routes 

inclusion in the state roadway system: 
a. Truck traffic (ESAL) 

Rural roadways with > 1 Million 2-directional ESAL where the local jurisdiction doesn’t have the 
resources to maintain the route, or where it causes a significant burden. 

b. Routes “Functionally Classified” higher than Local that: 
1. Include a major mountain pass requiring snow removal where the local jurisdiction lacks the 

resources to keep the route open during severe weather. 
2. Provides the exclusive connectivity of an important agricultural or commercial area to the 

state roadway system. 
3. Provides exclusive connectivity of “Tribal” facilities or population centers to the state 

roadway system. 
4. Provides exclusive connectivity to inter-modal facilities of regional significance. 
5. Provides exclusive connectivity of a population center (rated at a minimum of “Census 

Designated Place”) to the state roadway system. 
6. Route provides direct connectivity to a County Seat. 
7. Provides access to a state correctional facility. 
8. Is an Access Route (AR) for an important infrastructure facility (Radar, Weather, Radio Site). 
9. Provides access to state maintenance stations or critical material sites. 
10. Provides exclusive access and\or connectivity to a national or state park, state roadside park, 

or a state established welcome station. (SP, RP, WS) 

 
 
 
 
 

19 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

FIGURE 1 
INITIAL IN-HOUSE CHECK LIST 

 
Date of Review________________  Reviewer Name_________________________   
 
Road or Route Name_________________________________________________________ 
Location           _________________________________________________________ 
(By county and GPS coordinate @ Begin and End Point)  

Limits:   _________________________________________________________ 
(i.e., MP to MP or intersection to intersection)  
 
Number of Lanes NB____ SB____ EB ____ WB____ 
 
Lane Widths   NB #1____ NB #2____ NB #3____ 

SB #1____   SB #2____ SB #3____ 

   EB #1____ EB #2____ EB #3____ 

WB #1____   WB #2____ WB #3____ 
 

Condition of Striping (include information on bike lanes etc)_______________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Medians  Yes____ No____  Type__________________ Width__________ 
 
Visible Pavement Condition 

NB/EB_________________________________________________________________________ 
            _________________________________________________________________________ 

SB/WB_________________________________________________________________________ 
            _________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Shoulder Type and Width (if sidewalk-how wide and type) 
(considered shoulder from painted edge line to edge of pavement) 

NB/EB__________________________________________________________________________ 
SB/WB__________________________________________________________________________ 

Describe any graded gravel or dirt areas off the edge of pavement. Give approximate measurements of the 
graded/gravel area from edge of pavement to edge of defined area. 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Sidewalk (type and condition, i.e. cracked, broken, weathered, missing small portions etc) 
 NB/EB___________________________________________________________________________ 
 SB/WB___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ADA Facilities present at corners? _____Yes _____No 
 Condition and Location _____________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

20 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 
Number of Driveways  

NB ____ SB ____  EB ____  WB_____ 

 

Visible Utilities (What type if known) 
Overhead  _________________________________________________________________________ 
Underground  ______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Traffic Signals/Stop Signs   ____________________________________________________________ 
(by Location-on mainline)  ____________________________________________________________ 
    ____________________________________________________________ 

 
Bridges/Culverts/Structures _____________________________________________________________ 
(Location and type-Photo)  _____________________________________________________________ 
 
Fences/embankments/slopes adjacent to 
roadway___________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Visible safety concerns _______________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 (example: visibility, bushes, road damage, striping, pavement width, missing signs, etc.)  
(This information is subjective and should be evaluated by all members in the joint field review) 
 
Misc.Information________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(all reviews must include a photo of a typical lane in each direction, shoulders, and general pavement condition) 
 
In the space below add any additional notes  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
21 

 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

FIGURE 2 
ROAD TRAFFIC AND SAFETY EVALUATION (RTSE) 

Assessment requested for road relinquishment or trade?: _________________________  

Specific location of proposed RTSE : 
City/County______________________ 
Route(s): ________________________ 
From/To ___________________________________________________________ 

Segment Length: ________Miles 

Describe any improvement plans, planned or scheduled, (including scoping, design, 
construction, etc.), for this location: 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

What is the crash experience for the most recent 3-year period (total crashes, fatal crashes, 
injury crashes, crash rate, pedestrian/bicycle, etc)  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 

What types and causes are shown in the crash statistics for each crash? 
 Crash 1______________________________________________________________ 
 Crash 2______________________________________________________________ 
 Crash 3______________________________________________________________ 
 Crash 4______________________________________________________________ 
(attach additional sheets if necessary) 

Average Daily Traffic (ADT) volume for road(s): 
________________________________________ 

Describe any observations that would lead you to believe that a prudent person would have a 
safety concern for this road: (example such as visibility, road condition, striping issues, construction 
adjacent to road edge etc). 
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________
(attach separate sheet if necessary) 

Please include any photos and/or other information that is factual to the location: 
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature of Representative providing data________________________________________ 
Date__________ 

22 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

FIGURE 3 
JOINT PARTY FIELD REVIEW  

 
Date of Review________________   

Reviewer Name/s (LPA)______________________________________________________  
   ________________________________________________________ 

Reviewer Name/s (NDOT)____________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________ 

 
Road or Route Name_________________________________________________________ 
Location (MP to MP) ________________________________________________________ 
 

(Give each item below a number then attach a separate sheet with the item number and a description of your issue.)  

Pavement   Rutting______ Cracking______ Pavement Drainage_____ 
   Full Reconstruct Needed______  Overlay Needed_____ 
 
Striping  Centerline ______ Lane Lines______ Edge line _____ 
  
Medians  Yes____ No____  Type__________________ Width__________ 
 
Shoulder Type and Width (if sidewalk-how wide and type) 
(considered shoulder from painted edge line to edge of pavement) 

NB/EB__________________________________________________________________________ 
SB/WB__________________________________________________________________________ 

Describe any graded gravel or dirt areas off the edge of pavement. Give approximate measurements of the 
graded/gravel area from edge of pavement to edge of defined area. 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Number of Driveways  

NB ____ SB ____  EB ____  WB_____ 
 

Visible Utilities (What type if known) 
Overhead  _________________________________________________________________________ 
Underground  ______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Traffic Signals/Stop Signs   ____________________________________________________________ 
(by Location-on mainline)  ____________________________________________________________ 
 
Bridges/Culverts/Structures _____________________________________________________________ 
(Location and type-Photo)  _____________________________________________________________ 
 
Misc.Information________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(all reviews must include a photo of a typical lane in each direction, shoulders, and general pavement condition) 

23 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 

FIGURE 4 
NEGOTIATION CHECK LIST 

 
 
 
Essential Items for Negotiation 
 

Road surface and PCI data 
Concrete condition, including sidewalks, curbs-gutters, bridges, sound/retaining walls 
All road striping 
Signage/signals/street lights/-in place and functioning satisfactorily 
Clear property rights 
Shoulder/guardrails in good condition 
5 year maintenance history 
Right of way – full width information and ownership 
Copies of all permits, leases, R.O.W. records, maintenance agreements etc. 

 
 
 
 
 
Items that may be Negotiable  
 
 Landscaping 

Lighting 
 Storm drains 
 Discussion of exchange types (i.e., owned lands traded for roads, road for road e.t.c.) 
 ADA items (America with Disabilities Act items) 
 Funding exchange for work 
 Funding for utility improvements 
 Road design and improvements to meet road classification 
  
 
 
Information needed 
 
 Age of roadway  
 Accident rates 
 Prior rights 
 ESALs 
 Permits/utilities/encroachments/easements 
 Utility data 

24 
 

Item #4 Attachment C



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 December 23, 2014 
 

TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 

SUBJECT: January 12, 2015 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #5: Equipment Purchase in Excess of $50,000 
 Approval to Expend Funds for the Purchase of Automated Pavement 

Collection Equipment, Roadway Video Equipment and Data Storage 
Devices – For possible action 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
 
The FY15 State Budget includes $615,000 for the purchase of equipment necessary to carry out 
the requirements identified in the State’s approved Federal FY15 State Planning and Research 
(SPR) Program, TASK 2002. This task includes two elements which are used to satisfy the 
requirements of MAP-21 and the Federal reporting of highway conditions called the Highway 
Performance Monitoring System (HPMS). The two elements include Video Log of all Classified 
Routes in the state and the collection of pavement data throughout the state on National 
Highway System (NHS) Routes and HPMS Sample Locations. The funding also includes the 
purchase of data storage devices necessary to retain the collected data. The funding for these 
programs comes from the Federal SPR program with 80% Federal funding ($492,000.00) and 
20% State funding match ($123,000.00).  
 
Background: 
 
The video log of routes has been ongoing since 1999 and was originally completed using State 
equipment and staff. In 2005, the state ended its collection activities when the need for a new 
vehicle arose and a change in the collection process occurred from VCR to Digital. After that, in 
2008, 2010 and 2012, consultants were used and in FY2012, the consultant also was hired to 
not only collect video data but to collect electronic pavement data.  
 
Since 2008, when we began using consultants, the program has spent over $2.35 million dollars 
to video roads, collect pavement data and collect some asset data. However, over this time, 
issues have risen regarding the quality of the data, the lack of ability to adjust the contracts, and 
the time spent by staff monitoring and analyzing the data before it was produced in final form. 
Due to these concerns, NDOT staff began to look at this long term task and the anticipated 
costs as this program as it continues. We also looked at the necessary goals of the data 
collection with the addition of new MAP-21 requirments for reporting data on National Highways.   
 
In looking at these issues, it was felt that NDOT could better address the needs of both 
programs by utilizing NDOT staff and NDOT equipment. The video program and pavement 
programs would be enhanced by allowing better quality control of data and allow us to analyze 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



data and adjust while in the collection mode, thus saving valuable time due to retakes and 
unsatisfactory data found after the fact. This would also allow for  staff to adjust scheduling to 
accommodate weather events and other non-planned events. 
 
Staff met with FHWA representatives and discussed the needs of the MAP-21 and HPMS 
reporting areas and the proposal that NDOT assume the field role of this program. That meeting 
was followed at a later date by FHWA approving the 2015 SPR Annual Work Program with 
TASK 2002, Photolog, showing NDOT obtaining the equipment necessary to complete this role 
and further provided a ‘sole source’ approval letter for the purchase of the laser pavement 
equipment to upgrade NDOT’s current pavement vehicle.  
 
Analysis: 
 
The State of Nevada has approximately 5,400 miles of State Highways and an additional 7,200 
miles of classified roads that must be video logged every 3 years. There are approximately 
1,158 HPMS sample locations that too require collection of various data items for reporting. In 
addition, Pavement data collection for federal reporting is required every two years for NHS 
routes to comply with MAP-21. Under the last contract in 2012-2013, the State Routes only 
were video logged and pavement data collected. The classified roads and NHS routes are due 
to keep on track for the required rotations of data collection. 
 
To provide the ability to complete the Task duties in approved Federal TASK 2002, the 
Department is requesting approval to purchase equipment in an amount not to exceed to 
$615,000 (80% federal, approved budet item) for the following: 
 

• Road Video Equipment $405,000.00 (Request for Quote to be completed and awarded) 
Video Equipment and electronics for collection of Navigation Points, Curve and Grade 
data, and Distance Measuring. (To be installed in an existing State Vehicle) 
 

• Pavement Equipment $150,000.00 (Sole Source approvals have been received) 
Electronic Pavement Laser and Inertial Navigation device. (To be installed on an existing 
State Vehicle) 
 

• IT services $60,000 (Will be purchased by IT services) 
Data Storage Devices for collected data 

 
List of Attachments: 
 

A. Copy-SPR Task 2002-Approved SPR program doc for Photo log program 
B. Copy-Operating Equipment Approved FY15 Budget 
C. Copy-Sole Source Approval Letter for pavement equipment from FHWA 
D. Copy-Sole Source Approval Form for pavement from State Purchasing 

 
Recommendation for Board Action: 

 
1. Staff recommendation to  approve purchases up to $615,000.00 as identified in the 

approved equipment operation budget for C805, Roadway Systems for 
(a) The purchase and installation of add-on equipment to the existing pavement profile 

van under the ‘sole source’ process. (up to $150,000) 

 



(b)  ‘Request for Quotes’ from vendors, and the purchase of the slow speed video 
equipment and items necessary for installation into a state supplied vehicle. (up to 
$405,000) 

(c) Allow the IT Services Division to purchase data storage devices for the storage of 
collected data. (Up to $60,000) 

 
Prepared by: 
 
Bob Madewell, Chief-Roadway Systems Unit of Planning 
 
 
 

 



Item #5 Attachment A



Item #5 Attachment A



NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FY 2015 OPERATING EQUIPMENT BUDGET REQUEST

DIST AD OBJ CAT Pr
io

rit
y

DIV
DIVISION 
NAME  DESCRIPTION QTY

Legislatively 
Approved

Requested 
Non Rental 
Requests  Projection 

HQ TL OE 805 Roadway 
Systems

Slow speed Video 
cameras & digital 
Internal 
navigation 
approve June 
15th

1  $        615,000  $         615,000 - 

WP C30204 approved at IFC on 
8/27/14. $440,000 Federal authority 
and $175,000 state funded. Program 
data required from this equipment has 
to be reported by June 15th of 2015.  
These are reimbursable at 80/20 
through the SPR program (this is 
included in the approved FFY 2015 SPR).  
Funding is 80% federal and the amount 
requested for for this system totals 
$615K.  REQUIRES TRANSPORTATION 
BOARD APPROVAL - EQUIPMENT 
>$50K (NRS 408.389).

TOTAL  $ -    $         615,000  $             -   

Item #5 Attachment B



Item #5 Attachment C



Item #5 Attachment D



Item #5 Attachment D



Item #5 Attachment D



Item #5 Attachment D



 
 
 
 
 

This item has been postponed until the  
February 9, 2015 Meeting 



 
MEMORANDUM 

                             January 5, 2015   
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      January 12, 2015, Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #8: Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 -  For Possible Action 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to provide the Board a list of agreements over $300,000 for 
discussion and approval following the process approved at the July 11, 2011 Transportation 
Board meeting.  This list consists of any design build contracts and all agreements (and 
amendments) for non-construction matters, such as consultants, service providers, etc. that 
obligate total funds of over $300,000, during the period from November 22, 2014, through 
December 19, 2014. 
 
Background: 
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the development, construction, operation and 
maintenance of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. The attached agreements 
constitute all new agreements, new task orders on existing agreements, and all amendments 
which take the total agreement above $300,000 during the period from November 22, 2014, 
through December 19, 2014. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These agreements have been prepared following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures. They represent the necessary support services needed to 
deliver the State of Nevada’s multi-modal transportation system.  
 
List of Attachments:    
 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Agreements for Approval, November 22, 

2014, through December 19, 2014 
 
Recommendation for Board Action:    
 
Approval of all agreements listed on Attachment A 
 
Prepared by:  Administrative Services Division 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 1 of 13



Attachment 

A 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 2 of 13



Attachment A

Line 
No 

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

 Original 
Agreement 

Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount  Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend 
Date

Agree 
Type Project Manager Notes

1 15414 00 MICHAEL GALLIS & 
ASSOCIATES

FREIGHT PLAN Y 1,200,000.00  -                  1,200,000.00    -           1/12/2015 1/31/2018           - Service 
Provider

BILL THOMPSON 01-12-15: DEVELOPMENT OF A NEVADA STATE 
FREIGHT PLAN. STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: NV20131736882-
R

2 10512 02 STANTEC 
CONSULTING 
SERVICES, INC

BRIDGE INSPECTION 
SERVICES

Y 1,896,783.94  542,176.00      4,207,900.76    -           9/14/2012 9/30/2016 1/12/2015 Service 
Provider

MICHAEL PREMO AMD 2 01-12-15: INCREASE AUTHORITY $542,176.00 
FROM $3,665,724.76 TO $4,207,900.76 TO INCREASE 
CONSULTANT STAFFING DUE TO DEPARTMENT 
STAFFING ISSUES AND UNFORESEEN SPECIAL 
INSPECTIONS.                                                                                                             
AMD 1 04-03-14: INCREASE AUTHORITY $1,768,940.82 
FROM $1,897,783.94 TO $3,665,724.76, AND EXTEND 
TERMINATION DATE FROM 09-30-14 TO 09-30-16 TO 
PROVIDE ADDITIONAL BRIDGE INSPECTION AND 
LOAD RATING SERVICES.                                                                          
09-14-12: PROFESSIONAL AND TECHNICAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES TO PERFORM BRIDGE 
INSPECTION AND LOAD RATING SERVICES, 
STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: NV20101021081-R

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Agreements for Approval

November 22, 2014 to December 19, 2014

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 3 of 13



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 4 of 13



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 5 of 13



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 6 of 13



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 7 of 13



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 8 of 13



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 9 of 13



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 10 of 13



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 11 of 13



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 12 of 13



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
Page 13 of 13



 
MEMORANDUM 

          January 5, 2015   
 

TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      January 12, 2015, Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #9:  Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational Item Only 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to inform the Board of the following: 

• Construction contracts under $5,000,000 awarded November 22, 2014, through 
December 19, 2014 

• Agreements under $300,000 executed November 22, 2014, through December 19, 2014 
 
Any emergency agreements authorized by statute will be presented here as an informational 
item. 

 
Background: 
 
Pursuant to NRS 408.131(5), the Transportation Board has authority to “[e]xecute or approve all 
instruments and documents in the name of the State or Department necessary to carry out the 
provisions of the chapter”. Additionally, the Director may execute all contracts necessary to 
carry out the provisions of Chapter 408 of NRS with the approval of the board, except those 
construction contracts that must be executed by the chairman of the board.  Other contracts or 
agreements not related to the construction, reconstruction, improvement and maintenance of 
highways must be presented to and approved by the Board of Examiners.  This item is intended 
to inform the Board of various matters relating to the Department of Transportation but which do 
not require any formal action by the Board.  
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the construction, operation and maintenance 
of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. Contracts listed in this item are all low-bid per 
statute and executed by the Governor in his capacity as Board Chairman. The projects are part 
of the STIP document approved by the Board.  In addition, the Department negotiates 
settlements with contractors, property owners, and other parties to resolve disputes. These 
proposed settlements are presented to the Board of Examiners, with the support and 
advisement of the Attorney General’s Office, for approval.  Other matters included in this item 
would be any emergency agreements entered into by the Department during the reporting 
period. 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 1 of 13



The attached construction contracts, settlements and agreements constitute all that were 
awarded for construction from November 22, 2014, through December 19, 2014, and 
agreements executed by the Department from November 22, 2014, through December 19, 
2014.  There were no settlements during the reporting period. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These contracts have been executed following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures.  
 
List of Attachments: 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Contracts Awarded - Under $5,000,000, 

November 22, 2014, through December 19, 2014 

B) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Executed Agreements – Under $300,000, 
November 22, 2014, through December 19, 2014 

 
Recommendation for Board Action:   Informational item only 
 
Prepared by: Administrative Services Division 
 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 2 of 13



Attachment 

A 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 3 of 13



STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
CONTRACTS AWARDED - INFORMATIONAL 

November 22, 2014 – December 19, 2014 

1. November 6, 2014 at 1:30 PM the following bids were opened for Contract 808-14, Project No.
SP-MS-2224(005), Fallon Maintenance Station in Churchill County, Vehicle Storage Bay
Extension:

Reyman Brothers Construction, Inc. ........................................................... $470,000.00 
Bison Construction ..................................................................................... $503,500.00 
West Coast Contractors of Nevada, Inc. ..................................................... $541,450.00 
Frank Lepori Construstion, Inc. ................................................................... $550,350.00 
Walker River Construction, Inc. .................................................................. $552,611.00 

Engineer’s Estimate ................................................................................. $666,107.00 
The Director awarded the contract December 16, 2014, to Reyman Brothers Construction, Inc. 
for $470,000.00. 

2. November 6, 2014 at 2:00 PM the following bids were opened for Contract 3578, Project No. SP-
000M(208), I 580 and US 395 in Carson City and Washoe Counties, Permanent Washoe Valley
Wind Warning System.

PAR Electrical Contractors, Inc. .............................................................. $3,123,589.00 
Transcore ITS LLC .................................................................................. $3,559,366.44 
Titan Electrical Contracting, Inc. .............................................................. $4,069,768.25 

Engineer’s Estimate .............................................................................. $3,680,188.12 
The Director awarded the contract December 11, 2014, to PAR Electrical Contractors, Inc. for 
$3,123,589.00. 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 4 of 13



Line Item #1 – Contract 808-14 

Project Manager:  Donald Twichell 

Proceed Date: January 19, 2015 

Estimated Completion: 120 Working Days 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 5 of 13



Line Item #2 –  Contract #3578 

Project Manager:  Rodney Schilling 

Proceed Date: January 12, 2015 

Estimated Completion: 220 Working Days 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 6 of 13



Attachment 

B 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 7 of 13



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Project 
Manager Notes

1 18712 01 CARSON CITY PUBLIC 
WORKS

STORM DRAIN ON HELLS 
BELLS

Y 250,000.00       (39,977.42)        210,022.58       - 5/18/2012 12/31/2015 12/8/2014 Cooperative Dean Morton AMD 1 12-08-14: REDUCE FEDERAL FUNDING AND 
REPLACE WITH STATE FUNDING AND EXTEND 
TERMINATION DATE FROM 12-31-14 TO 12-31-15.
05-18-12: ALLOW CITY TO DESIGN, ADVERTISE, 
AWARD, AND MANAGE CONSTRUCTION OF FENCE, 
PEDESTRIAN, AND STORM DRAIN IMPROVEMENTS 
ON HELLS BELLS ROAD, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: 
EXEMPT

2 47814 00 CARSON VALLEY 
CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT

EROSION CONTROL 
MEASURES

N 2,000,000.00    - 2,000,000.00    - 12/1/2014 12/31/2018           - Cooperative Eric Yount 12-01-14: CONSTRUCT MITIGATION AND EROSION 
CONTROL MEASURES, STABILIZE EROSIVE 
DRAINAGES, REPAIR FAILED DRAINAGE SYSTEMS, 
CARSON CITY, WASHOE, PERSHING, CHURCHILL, 
MINERAL, STOREY, LYON, AND DOUGLAS 
COUNTIES. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

3 53614 00 CITY OF MESQUITE LIGHTING ON SR170 N 50,000.00         - 50,000.00         - 12/8/2014 12/31/2015           - Cooperative Tonia 
Andree

12-08-14: PROVIDE LIGHTING ON SR170 IN CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

4 33810 01 DEPARTMENT OF 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
OFFICE OF TRAFFIC 
SAFETY

NCATS CRASH REPORTING 
SYSTEM

Y 1,800,000.00    - 1,800,000.00    - 12/6/2010 12/31/2020 12/11/2014 Cooperative Kim Edwards AMD 1 12-11-14: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
12-31-14 TO 12-31-20 FOR CONTINUATION OF 
SERVICES.
12-06-10: TO FUND NEW STATEWIDE CRASH 
REPORTING SOFTWARE, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: 
EXEMPT

5 53713 01 NEVADA DIVISION OF 
STATE LANDS

MAINTENANCE OF 
WETLANDS

N 150,000.00       - 150,000.00       - 2/25/2014 1/1/2024 12/11/2014 Cooperative Jason 
Perock

AMD 1 12-11-14: BECAUSE THE DIVISION OF STATE 
PARKS DOES NOT HAVE A BUDGET FOR WETLAND 
MITIGATION A LANGUAGE UPDATE WAS NEEDED TO 
HELP FACILITATE REIMBURSEMENT AND TO 
PROVIDE FUNDS IN ADVANCE OF REPLACEMENT OF 
INFRASTRUCTURE ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
WETLANDS.
02-25-14: CONTINUE TO MAINTAIN WETLANDS 
CREATED AS MITIGATION FOR IMPACTS TO OTHER 
WETLANDS AFFECTED BY VARIOUS HIGHWAY 
PROJECTS BY REPLACEMENT AND ENHANCEMENT 
THEREOF AT WASHOE LAKE STATE PARK, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

6 47714 00 TAHOE 
TRANSPORATION 
DISTRICT

TRANSPORTATION PLAN N 4,000.00           - 4,000.00           - 12/1/2014 4/1/2015           - Cooperative Kevin Verre 12-01-14: DEVELOP THE NEVADA UNIFIED 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY, 
STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

7 42714 00 NV TAHOE 
CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT

STORMWATER REDUCTION 
LOAD PLAN

N 35,000.00         - 35,000.00         - 10/1/2014 6/30/2015           - Interlocal Matt 
Nussbaumer

12-11-14: RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT, AND 
FINALIZATION OF A STORMWATER LOAD 
REDUCTION PLAN, CARSON CITY, DOUGLAS, AND 
WASHOE COUNTIES. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Informational

November 22, 2014 to December 19, 2014

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 8 of 13



8 32712 02 UNIVERSITY OF 
NEVADA, LAS VEGAS

CONDUCT RESEARCH Y 141,253.00       - 141,253.00       - 10/1/2012 9/30/2015 12/1/2014 Interlocal Manju Kumar AMD 2 12-01-14: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
12-31-14 TO 09-30-15 TO ALLOW COMPLETION OF 
THE RESEARCH PROJECT.                                                                      
AMD 1 01-13-14: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
04-30-14 TO 12-31-14 TO ALLOW FOR COMPLETION 
OF THE RESEARCH PROJECT.                                                                                         
10-01-12: ANALYZE THE EFFECTIVENESS OF 
GEOTEXTILE IN STRENGTHENING AND REDUCING 
ROADWAY STRUCTURAL SECTIONS IN NEVADA, 
STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

9 50714 00 UNIVERSITY OF 
NEVADA, LAS VEGAS

BENEFIT COST STUDIES Y 120,000.00       - 120,000.00       - 12/19/2014 6/30/2015           - Interlocal Haiyuan Li 12-19-14: CONDUCT BENEFIT COST STUDIES FOR 
THE DEPARTMENT TO HELP ALLOCATE THE 
LIMITED RESOURCES MOST EFFECTIVELY AND 
EFFICIENTLY, CLARK, WASHOE, AND HUMBOLDT 
COUNTIES. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

10 52714 00 UNIVERSITY OF 
NEVADA, LAS VEGAS

CONDUCT RESEARCH Y 174,945.00       - 174,945.00       - 12/17/2014 2/28/2016           - Interlocal Manju Kumar 12-17-14: CONDUCT RESEARCH ON "AUTOMATED 
PEDESTRIAN DETECTION, COUNT, AND ANALYSIS 
SYSTEM", STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

11 14913 01 UNIVERSITY OF 
NEVADA, RENO

WEST COAST COALITION 
STUDY

Y 1,432,001.00    - 1,432,001.00    1,144,001.00    7/9/2013 2/27/2015 12/11/2014 Interlocal Dale Lindsey AMD 1 12-11-14: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
12-30-14 TO 02-27-15 FOR ADDITIONAL TIME TO 
COMPLETE TASKS AND REPORTING.
07-09-13: ALTERNATIVE TRANSPORTATION 
FUNDING WEST COAST COALITION STUDY TO 
IDENTIFY SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORTATION 
FUNDING, CLARK AND WASHOE COUNTIES. NV B/L#: 
EXEMPT

12 28112 01 UNIVERSITY OF 
NEVADA, RENO

INSTRUMENT & ANALYZE 
GRS WALLS

N 157,391.00       - 157,391.00       - 7/25/2012 12/31/2015 12/1/2014 Interlocal Manju Kumar AMD 1 12-01-14: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
12-31-14 TO 12-31-15 TO ALLOW COMPLETION OF 
THE RESEARCH PROJECT.                                                                                                       
07-25-12: INSTRUMENT AND ANALYZE 
GEOSYNTHETIC REINFORCED SOIL (GRS) WALLS 
FOR USE IN SOUTHERN NEVADA, STATEWIDE. NV 
B/L#: EXEMPT

13 51413 01 UNIVERSITY OF 
NEVADA, RENO

CONDUCT RESEARCH Y 57,053.00         - 57,053.00         - 11/26/2013 7/31/2015 12/11/2014 Interlocal Manju Kumar AMD 1 12-11-14: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
02-28-15 TO 07-31-15 TO ALLOW COMPLETION OF 
THE RESEARCH PROJECT.                                                                            
11-26-13: TO CONDUCT A RESEARCH PROJECT 
TITLED: "INVESTIGATING DECISION-MAKING 
PROCESSES THAT CONTRIBUTE TO IMPAIRED 
DRIVING," STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

14 52412 01 UNIVERSITY OF 
NEVADA, RENO

NEVADA ITS MOBILE 
PROJECT

Y 312,445.00       389,000.00       701,445.00       - 1/14/2013 12/30/2016 12/1/2014 Interlocal Rodney 
Schilling

AMD 1 12-01-14: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY 
$389,000.00 FROM $312,445.00 TO $701,445.00, AND 
EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 12-31-14 TO 12-
30-16 FOR INSTALLATION OF ITS EQUIPMENT 
ALONG THE US395/I-80 CORRIDOR IN DISTRICT II 
FOR A CONNECTED VEHICLE PILOT CORRIDOR.
01-14-13: PHASE 2 OF THE NEVADA INTELLIGENT 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM MOBILE OBSERVATION 
PROJECT, STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

15 50914 00 RAYMOND AND NINA 
MCKINLEY

PARCEL I-015-CL-041.883 
NEON

Y 233,000.00       - 233,000.00       - 11/14/2014 12/31/2019           - Acquisition Tina Kramer 11-14-14: PARCEL I-015-CL-041.883, PROJECT NEON, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

16 51414 00 FRANCISCO TORRES PARCEL I-015-CL-040.988 
NEON

Y 195,000.00       - 195,000.00       - 11/20/2014 12/31/2019           - Acquisition Tina Kramer 11-20-14: PARCEL I-015-CL-040.988, PROJECT NEON, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

17 52014 00 WILLIAM P. FLOWER 
FAMILY TRUST

PARCEL I-015-CL-040.844 Y 250,000.00       - 250,000.00       - 12/1/2014 12/31/2019           - Acquisition Tina Kramer 12-01-14: PARCEL I-015-CL-040.844, PROJECT NEON, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 9 of 13



18 54314 00 SEDLMEYER, 
STEPHEN / 

PARCEL I-015-CL-040.962 Y 255,000.00       - 255,000.00       - 12/8/2014 12/31/2019           - Acquisition Tina Kramer 12-19-14: PARCEL I-015-CL-040.962, PROJECT NEON, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

19 54614 00 CLEMENSEN FAMILY 
TRUST

PARCEL I-015-CL-041.001 Y 200,000.00       - 200,000.00       - 12/8/2014 12/31/2019           - Acquisition Tina Kramer 12-19-14: PARCEL I-015-CL-041.001, PROJECT NEON, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

20 54814 00 CHRISTINA GIBSON PARCEL I-015-CL-041.455 Y 231,600.00       - 231,600.00       - 12/8/2014 12/31/2019           - Acquisition Tina Kramer 12-19-14: PARCEL I-015-CL-041.455, PROJECT NEON, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

21 56114 00 V.F. HOOPER FAMILY 
PARTNERSHIP

PARCEL I-015-CL-041.880 Y 100,000.00       - 100,000.00       - 12/8/2014 12/31/2019           - Acquisition Tina Kramer 12-19-14: PARCEL I-015-CL-041.880, PROJECT NEON, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19951033567

22 51514 00 ASSET INSIGHT OF 
NEVADA

APPRAISAL REVIEW FOR 
NEON

Y 11,750.00         - 11,750.00         - 11/20/2014 1/31/2015           - Appraisal Tina Kramer 11-20-14: CONTRACT FOR APPRAISAL REVIEW 
SERVICES FOR 8 PARCELS FOR PROJECT NEON, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20091439872

23 51614 00 ANDERSON 
VALUATION GROUP

APPRAISAL REVIEW FOR 
NEON

Y 13,000.00         - 13,000.00         - 11/21/2014 1/2/2015           - Appraisal Tina Kramer 11-21-14: CONTRACT FOR APPRAISAL REVIEW 
SERVICES FOR 6 PARCELS FOR PROJECT NEON, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20041285225

24 23612 03 WESTERN AREA 
POWER 
ADMININSTRATION

RELOCATE FACILITIES 
BOULDER BYPASS

Y 2,746,822.94    - 2,896,822.94    - 6/20/2012 12/31/2020 12/12/2014 Facility Tina Kramer AMD 3 12-12-14: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
12-31-14 TO 12-31-20 TO CONTINUE SERVICES.
AMD 2 12-11-13: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
12-31-12 TO 12-31-14 TO CONTINUE SERVICES.
AMD 1 02-12-13: INCREASE AUTHORITY $150,000.00 
FROM $2,746,822.94 TO $2,896,822.94 DUE TO 
INCREASED CONTRACTORS' EXPENSE.
06-20-12: RELOCATION OF EXISTING FACILITIES FOR 
THE CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT OF US 93, BOULDER 
CITY BYPASS, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

25 49914 00 NV ENERGY LINE EXTENSION FOR US 95 Y 20,334.00         - 20,334.00         2,000.00           10/29/2014 9/30/2019           - Facility Tina Kramer 10-29-14: LINE EXTENSION FOR US 95 CORRIDOR, 
PHASE 3A, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19831015840

26 51714 00 THOMAS DAHL RUBY VALLEY #312 N 2,900.00           - - 2,900.00           11/21/2014 11/30/2019           - Lease Sandy 
Spencer

11-21-14: LEASE OF MAINTENANCE STATION HOUSE, 
RUBY VALLEY #312, TO NDOT EMPLOYEE IN ELKO 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

27 53114 00 JOSHUA DECKER COLD SPRINGS #4 N 6,100.00           - - 6,100.00           12/3/2014 12/31/2024           - Lease Marlene 
Revera

12-03-14: LEASE OF MAINTENANCE STATION COLD 
SPRINGS #4, TO NDOT EMPLOYEE, CHURCHILL 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

28 53414 00 JOSEPH CUMMINS NORTH FORK #272 N 7,700.00           - - 7,700.00           12/15/2014 3/31/2019           - Lease Sandy 
Spencer

12-15-14: LEASE OF MAINTENANCE STATION HOUSE 
NORTH FORK #272, TO NDOT EMPLOYEE IN ELKO 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

29 54414 00 HACIENDA ROOMING 
HOUSE

RECONSTRUCTION OF 
DRIVEWAY

N - - - - 12/8/2014 12/31/2019           - ROW Access Tina Kramer 12-19-14: NO COST AGREEMENT FOR 
RECONSTRUCTION OF A DRIVEWAY DUE TO 
REPAVEMENT OF A SEGMENT OF INTERSTATE 80, 
ELKO COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19821002409

30 52114 00 APPLIED MARKET 
ANALYSIS LLC

STATE VS ROBARTS 1981 
DECEDENT

Y 40,000.00         - 40,000.00         - 11/12/2014 11/30/2016           - Service 
Provider

Dennis 
Gallagher

11-12-14: REAL ESTATE MARKET AND FINANCIAL 
ANALYSIS CONSULTATION AND EXPERT WITNESS 
SERVICES FOR STATE VS ROBARTS 1981 
DECEDENTS TRUST, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV19971021720-S

31 13214 00 ATKINS P6 PROFESSIONAL 
TRAINING

N 209,020.00       - 209,020.00       - 12/18/2014 12/31/2017           - Service 
Provider

Mark 
Caffaratti

12-18-14: PROVIDE TRAINING AND TECHNICAL 
SUPPORT FOR PRIMAVERA P6 PROFESSIONAL 
SOFTWARE, AND ASSISTANCE IN UPDATING 
CURRENT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD 
AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION AS IT RELATES TO 
CURRENT INDUSTRY STANDARDS FOR PROJECT 
SCHEDULING, STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: NV19981347315-
R

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 10 of 13



32 08511 01 ATKINS LANDSCAPE AT 
WOODBURY BLTWY

N 641,100.00       - 641,100.00       - 3/2/2011 12/31/2015 12/12/2014 Service 
Provider

Jenica Keller AMD 1 12-12-14: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
12-31-14 TO 12-31-15 DUE TO DELAYS IN THE 
OVERALL PROJECT.                                                                                                                              
03-02-11: PROVIDE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT 
SERVICES FOR THE DESIGN OF THE US 95/CC-215 
INTERCHANGE, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV19981347315-R

33 49214 00 BRAMCO 
CONSTRUCTION CO

REMOVAL OF UST IN NIXON N 50,000.00         - 50,000.00         - 12/8/2014 12/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

Robert 
Piekarz

12-08-14: REMOVAL OF ONE 2,000 GALLON AND ONE 
8,000 GALLON UST AND ASSOCIATED 
APPURTENANCES AT FORMER NDOT MAINTENANCE 
STATION IN NIXON, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV19811010649-S

34 80914 01 CANYON 
CONSTRUCTION

ELKO MAINT STATION N 791,598.67       35,000.00         826,598.67       - 7/9/2014 7/31/2015 12/12/2014 Service 
Provider

Don Twichell AMD 1 12-12-14: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY 
$35,000.00 FROM $791,598.67 TO $826,598.67, AND 
EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 12-30-14 TO 07-
31-15 FOR UNFORSEEN CHANGES TO 
CONSTRUCTION IN THE AREAS OF PAVING, PIPING, 
EARTHWORK, SAW CUTTING ASPHALT, 
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, CURB, GUTTER, 
CONCRETE, STEEL WORK, AND TO COMPLETE THE 
PROJECT DURING WARM WEATHER.
08-21-2014: DRAINAGE AND SIDEWALK 
IMPROVEMENTS WITH INSTALLATION OF BACK 
FLOW PREVENTION CHECK VALVES AND WASHPAD 
AT ELKO MAINTENANCE STATION, ELKO COUNTY. 
NV B/L#: NV19821008262-S

35 30208 05 CH2M HILL INC CONCEPTUALS FOR 
PROJECT NEON

Y 4,671,764.00    - 27,911,333.27  - 9/25/2008 4/30/2016 12/11/2014 Service 
Provider

Dale Keller AMD 5 12-11-14: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
12-31-14 TO 04-30-16 TO ACCOUNT FOR ONGOING 
RIGHT OF WAY ACTIVITIES.
AMD 4 04-08-13: REDUCE TOTAL AUTHORITY BY 
$6,152,439.08 TO BRING TOTAL TO $27,911,333.27 
DUE TO CHANGE IN PROJECT DELIVERY METHOD 
AND CHANGE IN SCOPE OF SERVICES REQUIRING A 
NEW AGREEMENT
AMD 3 06-30-11: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY 
$16,958,350.35 FROM $17,105,422.00 TO 
$34,063,772.35 TO INCLUDE FINAL DESIGN 
SERVICES AND INCREASE RIGHT OF WAY 
ACQUISITION ACTIVITIES
AMD 2 08-23-10: REFINE SCOPE OF WORK, EXTEND 
TERMINATION DATE, AND INCREASE AUTHORITY BY 
$9,692,087.00 FROM $7,413,335.00 TO $17,105,422.00 
TO EXTEND DESIGN, UTILITY RELOCATION AND 
RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION ACTIVITIES
AMD 1 09-26-09 : INCREASE AUTHORITY BY 
$2,741,572.00 FROM $4,671,764.00 TO $7,413,336.00 
TO CONTINUE PRELIMINARY DESIGN AND 
COMPLETE NEPA STUDIES
9-25-08: TO PERFORM CONCEPTUAL DESIGN 
REFINEMENT SERVICES FOR PROJECT 
NEON.PROJECT NEON, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV19931065492-R

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 11 of 13



36 02611 02 CH2MHILL, INC. BRIDGE WIDENING / 
REHABILITATION

N 576,300.00       - 576,300.00       - 4/19/2011 12/31/2016 12/8/2014 Service 
Provider

Jessen 
Mortensen

AMD 2 12-08-14: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
12-31-14 TO 12-31-16 DUE TO REVISIONS IN THE 
PROJECT SCHEDULE.                                                                                                       
AMD 1 12-04-12: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 
12-31-12 TO 12-31-14 DUE TO REVISIONS IN THE 
PROJECT SCHEDULE.                                                                                   
04-19-11: DEVELOP CONTRACT PLANS FOR 
WIDENING AND REHABILITATION OF STRUCTURES; 
PROVIDE SUPPORT SERVICES DURING PROJECT 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE I-15 NORTH PHASE 2 
WIDENING PROJECT, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV19931065492-R

37 20013 01 COLLINS ENGINEERS 
INC

UNDERWATER BRIDGE 
INSPECTION

Y 107,617.00       110,314.00       217,931.00       - 9/3/2013 6/30/2015 12/8/2014 Service 
Provider

Nancy 
Kennedy

AMD 1 12-08-14: TO EXTEND THE TERMINATION 
DATE FROM 12-31-14 TO 06-30-15 AND TO INCREASE 
AUTHORITY BY $110,314.00 FROM $107,617.00 TO 
$217,931.00 DUE TO THE NEED FOR SPECIAL 
UNDERWATER INSPECTIONS.
09-03-13: UNDERWATER BRIDGE INSPECTION FOR 
SEVEN BRIDGES, STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: 
NV20071634949

38 50814 00 D & B PROFESSIONAL PEQUOP REST AREA N 69,880.08         - 69,880.08         - 12/3/2014 10/31/2017           - Service 
Provider

Sandy 
Spencer

12-3-14: Q3-010-15 TO PROVIDE JANITORIAL AND 
MAINTENANCE FOR THE PEQUOP REST AREA AND 
TRUCK PARKING AREAS ON I-80 SEVEN DAYS A 
WEEK IN ELKO COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20101094756-Q

39 38014 00 ECOINTERACTIVE, 
INC

ESTIP REPORT Y 262,494.00       262,494.00       12/31/2014 6/30/2016           - Service 
Provider

Holly Smith 12-31-14: TO PROVIDE A SOFTWARE-AS-A-SERVICE 
APPLICATION AND DATABASE SYSTEM FOR THE 
MANAGEMENT OF PROJECT DATA AND THE 
CREATION OF THE ELECTRONIC STATEWIDE 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
(ESTIP) REPORT. STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: 
NV20141724067-R

40 40114 00 ESRI STATE ROAD NETWORK N 75,000.00         - 75,000.00         - 12/11/2014 11/21/2015           - Service 
Provider

Ryan Aglietti 12-11-14: TO LOAD THE STATE ROAD NETWORK 
INTO THE ESRI ROADS AND HIGHWAYS 
APPLICATION, STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: NV20111027035-
R

41 50214 00 F.A.A.D. JANITORIAL WINNEMUCCA OFFICES N 16,015.04         - 16,015.04         - 12/2/2014 9/30/2017           - Service 
Provider

Sandy 
Spencer

12-02-14: Q3-008-15 TO PROVIDE JANITORIAL 
SERVICES FOR THE WINNEMUCCA ADMINISTRATIVE 
OFFICES ONE DAY A WEEK IN HUMBOLDT COUNTY. 
NV B/L#: NV20041538232-Q

42 48714 00 HORROCKS 
ENGINEERS

SUE SERVICES ON 
TROPICANA

N 8,775.00           - 8,775.00           - 12/11/2014 12/1/2016           - Service 
Provider

Suzanne 
Hicks

12-11-14: SUE SERVICES ON TROPICANA, CLARK 
COUNTY.NV B/L#: NV19991246016-R

43 30712 01 KIMLEY-HORN AND 
ASSOCIATES

DEVELOP BICYCLE PLANS N 214,957.00       24,540.00         239,497.00       - 4/30/2013 6/30/2015 12/18/2014 Service 
Provider

Bill Story 12-18-14: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $24,540.00 
FROM $214,957.00 TO $239,497.00 AND EXTEND 
TERMINATION DATE FROM 12-31-14 TO 06-30-15 TO 
COMPENSATE FOR ADDITIONAL EFFORTS WITH 
THE ADDITION OF LINCOLN AND WHITE PINE 
COUNTIES INCLUDING LOCAL COMMUNITY 
JURISDICTIONS.
04-30-13: DEVELOPMENT OF 14 REGIONAL BICYCLE 
PLANS FOR COUNTIES OUTSIDE OF MPO AREAS, 
STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: NV1991101545-R

44 50114 00 LAS VEGAS PAVING REPAIR ROADWAY SR319 N 138,000.00       - 138,000.00       - 11/21/2014 9/30/2015           - Service 
Provider

Jennifer 
Manubay

11-21-14: Q1-014-15 TO RECONSTRUCT SECTIONS 
OF EXISTING ROADWAY ON SR319 IN LINCOLN 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19581000650-Q

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 12 of 13



45 81214 00 SIERRA NEVADA 
CONSTRUCTION

RENO MAINTENANCE YARD N 1,613,007.00    - 1,613,007.00    - 11/26/2014 12/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

Sam Lompa 11-26-14: RENO WEST MAINTENANCE YARD 
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS, WASHOE COUNTY. NV 
B/L #NV19881009372-S

46 52214 00 SLATER HANIFAN 
GROUP, INC.

STATE VS K&L DIRT 
COMPANY

Y 75,000.00         - 75,000.00         - 11/17/2014 11/30/2016           - Service 
Provider

Dennis 
Gallagher

11-17-14: CIVIL ENGINEERING AND EXPERT 
WITNESS SERVICES FOR STATE VS K & L DIRT 
COMPANY, LC, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20031430130-S

47 27313 02 SNELL & WILMER LLP LEGAL SUPPORT MEADOW  
VLLY

N 30,000.00         90,000.00         170,000.00       - 7/18/2013 7/30/2015 12/9/2014 Service 
Provider

Dennis 
Gallagher

AMD 2 12-09-14: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY 
$90,000.00 FROM $80,000.00 TO $170,000.00, IN 
ORDER TO RESOLVE PENDING LAWSUIT.
AMD 1 07-29-14: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY 
$50,000.00 FROM $30,000.00 TO $80,000.00, AND 
EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 07-30-14 TO 07-
30-15 IN ORDER TO RESOLVE PENDING LAWSUIT.
07-18-13: LEGAL SUPPORT RE: MEADOW VALLEY 
CONTRACTORS, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20011000455-S

48 51014 00 SPIT SHINE LLC SOUTH MAINTENANCE 
STATION

N 138,440.00       - 138,440.00       - 12/2/2014 5/31/2019           - Service 
Provider

Pauline 
Beigel

12-02-14: Q1-013-15 TO PROVIDE JANITORIAL 
SERVICES FOR THE SOUTH MAINTENANCE STATION 
SEVEN DAYS A WEEK, WAGON WHEEL AND 
TRAILERS TWO DAYS A WEEK AT THE SOUTH YARD 
IN CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20121420423-Q

49 52614 00 VARELA, LEE, METZ & 
GUARINO

STATE VS SEQUOIA 
ELECTRIC

N 75,000.00         - 75,000.00         - 11/26/2014 11/30/2016           - Service 
Provider

Dennis 
Gallagher

11-26-14: LEGAL SUPPORT FOR NDOT VS SEQUOIA 
ELECTRIC CONSTRUCTION CLAIM ON CONTRACT 
3409, CARSON CITY AND CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20141654393-S

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
Page 13 of 13



 
                  

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
December 19, 2014 

 
To:  Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
From:  Rudy Malfabon, Director 
Subject: January 12, 2015 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #10: Briefing on Proposed Enhancement to Department’s Bonding Policy 

– Informational item only 
 
 
Summary: 
 
NDOT’s Bond Issuance Policy currently states, “NDOT will not issue bonds unless the 
pledged motor vehicle taxes are at least twice the combined maximum debt maximum 
debt service of annual principal and interest (of both existing and proposed bonds) for 
any year.” The proposed modification would update the policy to state at least triple 
rather than twice the combined maximum debt service (MADS). The revised policy 
would update the policy to a 3X coverage ratio on senior lien bonds while still providing 
flexibility for the department to issue subordinate lien bonds as may be needed at the 2X 
coverage ratio level. This policy would preserve the strength on the senior liens to fortify 
ratings and potentially lower debt service costs on future issuances. 
 
Background: 
 
In February 2014, NDOT issued $86 Million in bonds for project NEON based on a P3 
procurement model presented to the rating agencies. After NDOT switched from a P3 to 
Design Build Bond procurement for Project NEON, rating agencies have requested an 
update from the Treasurer’s Office on what affect this change may have on NDOT’s 
planned bond issuances. The Treasurer’s Office is scheduling an update with the rating 
agencies in January 2015 and the switch from P3 to bonding for Project NEON is 
expected to strengthen the department’s outlook with the rating agencies. NDOT has 
conservatively managed its bond portfolio to maintain annual bond payments well below 
the 2X coverage ratio resulting in an AAA credit rating from Standard & Poor’s in 
February 2014. Fitch Ratings gave the department an AA+ rating and Moody’s an Aa2 
rating. The proposed adjustment to NDOT’s policy would place the department in a 
strong position to make the case for a possible rating upgrade from Fitch and Moody’s. 
 
Analysis: 
   
Rationale for Policy Modification 
 
The combined gas tax and special fuel tax revenues for Fiscal Year 2014 were in excess 
of $266 Million. The current 2X MADS policy would allow the department to have 
maximum annual bond payments of up to $133 Million; half of the combined fuel tax 

 
 

1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 



revenues. However, despite the policy, NDOT has conservatively maintained a cap on 
its maximum annual payments of $100 Million. A 3X MADS policy would reduce the 
maximum annual bond payment level on senior lien bonds to $89 Million. Currently, the 
largest bond payment the department is scheduled to make is $68.7 Million in 2016, 
which is well below the 3X coverage level. Since NDOT conservatively maintains its debt 
service well below the 3X coverage level it may be a beneficial step for NDOT to update 
the Bond Issuance Policy to reflect its conservative bond issuance practices.  
 
Projected and Pledged Revenues 
 
Gross pledged revenues to the Highway Revenue Bonds are comprised of state fuel tax 
revenues and eligible federal revenues. However, the federal revenue is not considered 
in the coverage calculation, despite approximately $50 Million of federal revenues being 
eligible for debt service. Federal revenues are utilized to make principle payments on 
federally eligible projects. While state fuel tax revenues are projected to steadily 
increase over the next three fiscal years, NDOT conservatively assumes there will be no 
growth in pledged revenues in order to ensure the maximum annual debt service 
coverage ratio is not exceeded. 
 
Proposed Actions Moving Forward: 
 
The Treasurer’s Office in coordination with NDOT’s Administration Division, Hobbs, Ong, 
and Public Financial Management, Inc. will update the three rating agencies in January 
2015 on the updated policy and strength of the department’s bond issuance plan for 
Project NEON. 
 
New bond issuances planned for fiscal year 2016 and 2017 may be affected by the new 
policy and any resulting rating agency upgrades.  
 
List of Attachments: 
 
None 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
For information only 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Robert C. Nellis, Assistant Director – Administration 















































 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 Date: December 22, 2014 
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: January 12, 12015, Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #12: Briefing on Nevada Statewide Public Safety Radio System – Informational 

Item Only 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
The existing Land Mobile Radio (LMR) system is approaching both maximum capacity and end-
of-life.  The partners in the system, which include NDOT, NV Energy and Washoe County, have 
developed a multi-phased process for replacing the legacy system utilizing a vendor neutral 
plan.  Consideration for the approximate 16,000 statewide users to minimize costs while 
maintaining a functioning system that provides the necessary features to key users is 
paramount to this process. The department is in the final steps of Phase One, which consists of 
conducting a high level needs assessment study and an alternatives analysis.  The results of 
this effort will provide decision makers with key information to better understand the merits and 
impacts of transitioning to a next-generation radio system technology.  High level costs 
estimates will be developed for the options so that decision makers can plan and budget for 
system replacement.  Phase Two will consist of the development of the system requirements 
and development of the Request for Proposal (RFP) document.  Phase Three will entail 
deployment of the next generation Public Safety Radio System.  It is anticipated that Phase 
Three for NDOT will begin in the FY 2017-2018 Biennium and may take five or more years to 
complete. 
 
Background:  
 
The existing Land Mobile Radio (LMR) system used by state forces, for voice communications, 
is an 800 MHz trunked radio system that was implemented in the Las Vegas area in early 
1990’s.  Since inception, the radio system has grown from three sites and one agency, NDOT, 
to 113 sites and multiple partners.  Today, the Nevada Shared Radio System (NSRS) has over 
16,000 state, local agency, utility and private sector users.  Among the users are thirteen state 
agencies, including the Department of Public Safety, Department of Corrections, Department of 
Health and Human Services and NDOT.   
 
The backbone (field infrastructure) of the NSRS is comprised of common networked equipment 
that is individually owned by Washoe County, NV Energy and NDOT.  Currently NDOT owns 
60% of the radio infrastructure, while Washoe County and NV Energy own 9% and 31% 
respectively.  Each entity is responsible for the operation and maintenance of their equipment 
by an agreement to ensure the NSRS provides a reliable interoperable communication system 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



throughout the state.  This unique partnership allows for the leveraging of resources, which 
reduces duplication of efforts by the individual entity. 
 
Harris Corporation, the manufacturer of the current radio system has notified the NSRS 
partners that our radio system has reached it end of life, and as of 2017, will no longer be 
supported by the manufacturer.  Securing critical replacement parts is becoming more and 
more difficult as the manufacturer scales back production and winds down their support of this 
radio system. Since the NSRS is vital for public safety, developing a solution is critical. 
To address the situation, a technical working group has been formed with representatives from 
the other infrastructure owners and major system stakeholders (NDOT, NHP, Washoe County, 
and NV Energy) to discuss potential options, as any actions by the owners must not damage 
the integrity or the functionality of the system as a whole.  It was agreed upon to utilize 
consultant services to assist in developing a multi-phase, vendor-neutral plan for the next 
generation Nevada Shared Radio System.  Currently the department and major system 
stakeholders are reviewing and commenting on the draft report. The department expects to 
have the draft report and finalized during the first quarter of 2015.  
 
As the Nevada Shared Radio System is complex and the state is faced with a short timeframe 
to determine what the next generation radio system should look like, it is the intent of this plan 
to outline various radio systems, deployment strategies, high level cost estimates and 
associated timelines.  This plan will be addressing the LMR voice system, not the Nationwide 
Public Safety Wireless Broadband Network (FirstNet).  FirstNet is in the early planning stage 
and no clear timeline for implementation has been identified.  With this information, decision 
makers will have a fundamental understanding of the current status along with options available 
to help establish the state’s priorities and action plan.    
 
Analysis:  
 
The draft report from AECOM is currently being reviewed by the infrastructure owners.  Once 
finalized, this report will enable the group to evaluate replacement options and costs and move 
forward with the development of the system requirements necessary to issue an RFP for a 
replacement system. 
 
List of Attachments:  
 

A. NSRS Sites Map 
 
Recommendation for Board Action:   
 
Informational Item Only  
 
Prepared by:   
 
Denise Inda, P.E., Chief Traffic Operations Engineer 
 
 

 



H U M B O L D T
E L K O

W A S H O E

L Y O N

D O U G L A S

S TO R E Y

C H U R C H I L L

L I N C O L N

E U R E K A

L A N D E R

P E R S H I N G

N Y E

C L A R K

E S M E R A L D A

M I N E R A L

P I N EW H I T E

Reno

Virginia City

CARSON
CIT Y

Pioche

Lovelock

Battle Mountain

Winnemucca

Eureka

Ely

Elko

Minden Yerington

Hawthorne

Gold�eld

Tonopah

Fallon

Las Vegas

Reno

Virginia
City

CARSON
CIT Y

Minden

D O U G L A S

C L A R K

S TO R E Y

317375

318

431

341

207

206

823

339

208

338

361

360

773

376

375

377

379

844

264

264

265

266

267

374

373

157

319

322

894

893

490

318

488

487

320

156

372

160

774

359

208

292

140

140

294

447

400

789

401

398

397

399

293

290

225

233

231

767

229

227

305

229

230

228

445

828

446

447

723

117

120

839

116

121

361
722

305

376

278

278

225

226

766

306

892

28

88

158

159

160

161

146

147

169

170168

564

165

164

163

140

806

445

146
160

564

147

159

215

207

206

28

88

445

431
341

95

95

95

395

395

580

395

50

50

50
50

95

95

95

95

95

93

93

95

93

93

95

6

6

6

93

93

93

50

93

ALT
95

ALT
95

ALT
395

ALT
95

ALT
50

ALT
93

ALT
93

6
95

6
50

6

395

395

50

ALT
395

80

80

80

80

80

15

15

15

215

215

515

95

15

15

580

95

80

Opal

Oatman

Big Horn

Christmas
Tree

Overton

Silverhawk
Angels Peak

Potosi

Beaver Dam

Connors
Pass

Likely

Shaffer

High Camp

Beckworth

Alder Hill

N. Lake Tahoe

TV Hill

Virginia Pk

Chevas

Fencemaker

Argenta

Slide Mt
Mt Rose

Muller

S. Lake Tahoe

Pinenut

Patrick

Rio

Sloan

LV SC -
Durango

LV SC
NDOT

LV SC - Cheyenne

LV SC -
Westside

LV SC - Beltway

Sunrise

Fox

Marble Bluff

Poito

Tahoe SC SnowflakeTahoe
SC Biltmore

Chimney
Peak

Loray

Imlay

Irish

Alamo

Wilson

Emigrant

3-Mile

Schader

Mercury

See Las Vegas
Enlarged Area

See Reno
Enlarged Area

Millers

Kinkaid

Golconda

Mesquite

Sawtooth

Rocky Pt

Palmetto

New Pass

Kimberly
Hickison

Caliente

Victoria

HD Summit

East
Twin

Sunnyside

Flat Creek

Montezuma

Hoover Dam

Timber Mtn

Buster Mtn

Water Pipe

Trident Pk

Border Inn

Wildoat Mtn

Secret Pass

Ragged Ridge

Fairview Peak

Coyote Springs

Amargosa
Valley

Thomas & Mack

Red Pk

Spooner
Summit

McClellan

Spruce

Toulon

Mary's

Elko Mt

Penn Hill
Ellen Dee

Winnemucca Mt

Peavy Hill

Cave
Mt

Sober

Mt Moses

Mt Brock

Austin Mt

Squaw Pk

Pilot Pk

Bald West

Pinegrove

Eagle Ridge

Fitzpatrick

Prospect Pk

Highland Pk

Warm Springs

Currant
Summit

Peavine

Jackpot

Site Responsibility
Nevada Shared Radio System

2014

(775) 888-7627

LOCATION DIVISION

CARTOGRAPHY

NEVADA DEPARTMENT
OF TRANSPORTATION

BRIAN SANDOVAL
Governor

MILES

KILOMETERS

0 10 20 30 40 50

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Reno Enlarged Area

Las Vegas Enlarged Area

NDOT

Washoe County

NV Energy

Freeway (w/Interchange)

Federal Divided Multilane

Federal Road

State Multilane

State Route

State Boundary

County Boundary

Capital City

County Seat

U.S. Forest Service

Military Facility

Indian Land

National Park

December 23 2014

Pipe Springs
Buckskin
Page

Site Responsibility Recolored Rev Dec 23 2014.ai

Item #12 Attachment A



 

 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
                       December 17, 2014 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      January 12, 2015 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #13:  Briefing on Draft 2014 Facts and Figures Book – Informational item only 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
The Nevada Department of Transportation annually publishes the Facts and Figures report to 
provide valuable strategic information to the public, policymakers and elected officials to help in 
strategic decision making. The report includes strategic information related many important 
items such as, but not limited to, State Highway Fund revenue and expenditures and customer 
satisfaction. 
 
Background: 

The report is a collaborative effort where information is provided by the various divisions of 
NDOT, local agencies, federal partners, and stakeholders.  

Analysis: 

The report includes historical information related to NDOT accomplishment in the prior year, 
rewards and recognitions, operational improvements, landscape and aesthetics improvements, 
road system mileage information, cost of operating a passenger car, highway safety statistics, 
project obligations in urban and rural areas, federal aid revenues, expenditures by activity, 
expenditure by appropriation, transit ridership, maintenance costs by activity, fuel tax rates in 
various counties, population statistics, and multimodal information related to freight, bicycles 
pedestrians, railroads and aviation. 

Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Information Item Only 
 
List of Attachments: 
 

A. 2014 Facts and Figures 
 
Prepared by:  
 
Dale Lindsey, Performance Analyst 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

 



STATE OF NEVADA 
TRANSPORTATION

Brian Sandoval, Governor

2014
FACTS
AND
FIGURES

N
D

O
T

•N
D

O
T

•N
D

O
T

•N
D

O
T

•N
D

O
T

•N
D

O
T

Rudy Malfabon, P.E.,
Director

I-15/Cactus Ave. Interchange, Las Vegas

I-80 eastbound towards Elko

DRAFT
12/30/14

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

H U M B O L D T

Denio
Denio Jct McDermitt

Winnemucca

W A S H O E

Gerlach

Rye Patch
Reservoir

P E R S H I N G

Lovelock

D I S T R I C T  2

Pyramid

Lake
Pyramid

Nixon

Wadsworth
SparksRenoVerdi Fernley

S T O R E Y

Silver Springs

Stagecoach

Virginia
City

Silver
City Dayton

L Y O NCARSON
CITY

Incline Village

Crystal Bay
Lake

Tahoe
Glenbrook

Zephyr Cove
Genoa D O U G L A S

Minden
Gardnerville

Lahontan
Reservoir

Fallon

Humboldt
sink

C H U R C H I L L

Dixie Valley

L A N D E R

Austin

Battle
Mountain

E U R E K A

Eureka

Owyhee
Jackpot

Wild Horse
Reservoir

E L K O

Wells

D I S T R I C T  3

Elko

Carlin

Jiggs

Lamoille

Spring
Creek Snow Water

Lake

Currie

West
Wendover

C L A R K
Indian

Springs

Mt CharlestonPahrump

Moapa

Mesquite

Overton

Henderson
Lake Mead

Boulder
City

Lake Mohave

Laughlin

Searchlight

Jean

North
Las

Vegas

Las
Vegas

D I S T R I C T  1

Yerington

Wellington

Schurz

Walker
Lake

Hawthorne
Luning

Mina
M I N E R A L

W
alker
L

ake

W H I T E P I N E

Ruth
Ely

Baker

Lund

L I N C O L N

Rachel
Hiko

Ash
Springs

Caliente

Panaca

Pioche

Gabbs

N Y E

Tonopah

Goldfield

E S M E R A L D A

Scottys
Junction

Beatty

O R E G O N I D A H O

U
T

A
H

A
R

I
Z

O
N

A

C

A

L

I

F

O

R

N

I

A

C
A

L
I

F
O

R
N

I
A 140

140

140

293

290

789

225

226

225

233

231
230

229

227

228

806

305

305

722 376

844

377

375

375

318

320

322

319

317

376

264

773
265

266

774

379

318

267

374

373
160

160

160

169

170

158
157

159

160

161

604
147

546

146

165

164

163

372

766

306

278

278

892

490

488

487

894

447

399

445

445

659
431 341

28

88

207

446

447

116
121

839

823

208

338
361

359

360

339

828

401

400

397

229

767

232

80

15

15

15

80

80

80

80

ALT
95

ALT
50

ALT
50

ALT
95

ALT
95

ALT
93

ALT
93

395

395

395

95

95

95

95

95

95

95

95

93

93

93

93

95

95

95

93

93

93

93

6

6

6

6

50

50

50
93

50

50

515

215

6
50

6
95

580

580

STATE MAINTAINED
HIGHWAY SYSTEM

NEVADA
2012

PREPARED BY

NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PLANNING DIVISION

NATIONAL HIGHWAY SYSTEM

SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM

0 10 20 30

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

MILES

KILOMETERS

40 50

70 80

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

State of Nevada
Transportation

Facts and Figures
2014

Governor
Brian Sandoval

Director
Rudy Malfabon, P.E.

Prepared By: Performance Analysis Division

Nevada Department of Transportation
1263 South Stewart Street

Carson City, NV 89712
(775) 888-7000

www.nevadadot.com

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

Table of Contents

ABOUT NDOT
 Key Phone Numbers and Websites.......................................... ..................................... I
 Director’s Message ..................................................................................................... . II
 NDOT Mission Statement ............................................................................................ III
 Executive Summary..................................................................................................... IV
 Transportation Board of Directors. ..............................................................................VI 
 NDOT Administration.................................................................................................. VII
 Engineering Districts and Major Maintenance Stations .............................................VIII
HOW ARE WE DOING?
 Awards and Recognitions 2013-2014 ........................................................................... 1   
 NDOT Accomplishments 2013-2014 ............................................................................ 4 
 Moapa/Glendale Flood Response ................................................................................ 6
 Highway Safety Statistics ............................................................................................. 8   
	 Regionally	Significant	Projects ..................................................................................... 9  
 Freeway Service Patrol .............................................................................................. 15   
 Performance Management Plan and Performance Measures ................................... 16  
 Maintenance Costs and Activities ............................................................................... 18
 Maintenance Stations and Personnel ......................................................................... 21   
 Department Personnel................................................................................................ 22  
 Operational Improvements ......................................................................................... 23   
 Safety Improvements.................................................................................................. 25  
 Landscape and Aesthetics.......................................................................................... 27
HIGHWAY SYSTEM, CONDITION, AND USE 
 Roadway System Mileage .......................................................................................... 29   
	 System	Definitions ...................................................................................................... 30  
 NDOT-Maintained Pavement Condition ..................................................................... 31  
 Vehicle Miles of Travel ................................................................................................ 32   
 Truck Miles of Travel .................................................................................................. 33  
 Bridges ....................................................................................................................... 33
 Transportation Financing ............................................................................................ 34
 Passenger Car Operating Costs................................................................................. 35   
 Gas Tax ...................................................................................................................... 36  
 Special-Fuel Tax ......................................................................................................... 38   
 Vehicle Registration and Permit Fees ........................................................................ 39   
 Governmental Services Tax, Driver’s License, and Title Fees ................................... 40
TRANSPORTATION REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES .........................................  
      State Highway Fund Revenue Sources.......................................................................41   
 Total State Highway Fund Revenue ........................................................................... 42  
 State Gasoline Tax Revenue ...................................................................................... 43   
 State Motor Vehicle Fund ........................................................................................... 44   
 State Motor Vehicle Taxes to Highway Fund Derived From Motor Vehicle Fund ....... 45  
 Federal-Aid Revenue.................................................................................................. 46   
 Federal-Aid Apportionments ....................................................................................... 47   
 State Highway Fund Expenditures and Disbursements ............................................. 48  
 NDOT Expenditures By Activity .................................................................................. 50   
 NDOT Project Obligations in Urban and Rural Areas ................................................. 51
 NDOT Expenditures By Appropriation ........................................................................ 53   
GENERAL STATISTICS   
 Nevada Population Statistics ...................................................................................... 54   
 Transit.........................................................................................................................55  
 Bicycles and Pedestrians.........................................................................................56  
 Freight..................................................................................................................57
 Railroads.........................................................................................................59 
 Nevada Aviation.........................................................................................61   

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

3

Key Phone Numbers
and Web Sites

Road Construction & Winter Road Condition Information

Call before driving.
All areas of the state ..................................... ..... 511 or 1-877-NVROADS (1-877-687-6237)
Road information is also available on the Internet at: www.nvroads.com.

To	call	any	state	office	in	Carson	City,	Reno,	or	Las	Vegas	toll	free	from	outlying	areas,	call	
and give the operator the extension you desire ............................................ 1-800-992-0900
To	call	any	state	office	from	Las	Vegas,	call	and	give	the	operator	the	
extension desired........................... ................................................................ (702) 486-3000
To	call	any	state	office	from	Carson	City	or	Reno,	call	and	give	the	operator	the	
extension desired ........................................................................................... (775) 684-1000

Other Frequently Called Numbers

Public Information
 Carson City. ......................................................................................... (775) 888-7777
 Las Vegas ........................................................................................... (702) 385-6509
Customer Service....................................................  ...................................... (775) 888-7000
Director’s	Office .............................................................................................. (775) 888-7440
Construction	Plans	and	Specifications ........................................................... (775) 888-7070
Contract Bidding Results ................................................................................ (775) 888-7070
Overdimensional Vehicle Permits ................................................................... (775) 888-7410
 or ........................................................................................................1-800-552-2127
Maps.... ........................................................................................................... (775) 888-7627
Facsimile ........................................................................................................ (775) 888-7115
ADA Technical Advisor/Standards and Manuals ............................................. (775) 888-7598

Web Sites

NDOT online ........................................................................................www.nevadadot.com
NDOT E-mail ....................................................................................... info@dot.state.nv.us

Road Conditions .....................................................................................  www.nvroads.com

I

Nevada Department
of Transportation

NVDOT@nevadadot

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

4

       Always Moving Forward

	 Transportation	is	more	than	roads.	Transportation	fuels	our	traveling	freedom,	gives	us	flight,	
and moves us forward as individuals, as communities and as a state. Every day, we at the Nevada 

Department Transportation are proud to move state transportation ahead 
through innovation, collaboration and the responsible use of public funds.

     We remain unwavering in our dedication to provide quality projects, 
quickly. Some examples? Working with the contracting community, we 
reopened	a	flood	ravaged	two-mile	section	of	Interstate	15	near	Moapa	in	
just four days, as well as substantially completed vital projects such as the 
I-15	Cactus	Avenue	interchange	in	Las	Vegas	and	the	Kingsbury	Grade	
Reconstruction	Project	at	Lake	Tahoe	ahead	of	schedule.

     Now we’re embarking on the most important and ambitious transportation 
improvements	in	Nevada	history	with	Project	NEON,	a	half-billion	dollar	

investment	in	transportation	enhancements	and	connections	through	downtown	Las	Vegas,	as	well	
as	delivering	the	first	phase	of	the	Boulder	City	Bypass,	a	vital	component	of	the	future	Interstate	11	
corridor	connecting	Las	Vegas	to	Phoenix	and	beyond.

					We	have	applied	technology	to	gain	efficiencies.	In	recent	years,	we	launched	electronic	bidding	
and	construction	field	documentation	for	more	effective	administration	of	construction	contracts.	We	
are initiating electronic signatures for certain contract documents; contract document signatures that 
previously took several weeks can now be processed in mere days.

					With	progress	comes	responsibility.	Inflation	and	energy-efficient	vehicles	continue	to	erode	
needed	transportation	funding.	Meanwhile,	federal	funding	is	marked	by	uncertainty	and	questions	
of sustainability. We prioritize and collaborate to most responsibly to fully utilize available funding 
statewide while maintaining a reasonable highway fund balance and taking a sensible approach on 
our annual debt service for highway revenue bonds.

     We are also resolute in our dedication to environmental programs, including the stormwater 
management	program.	This	program	helps	achieve	Clean	Water	Act	compliance	in	all	of	our	
operations.	It	is	a	responsibility	we	have	not	only	to	ourselves,	but	to	future	generations.

					And	no	responsibility	is	greater	than	the	safety	of	our	transportation	system.	We	initiated	the	
state’s	Zero	Fatalities	goal	in	2006	and	remain	steadfastly	dedicated	to	that	life-saving	goal	each	and	
every day, alongside our partners. We implement engineering innovations to create the safest roads, 
and	ask	the	driving	public	to	join	with	us	to	reach	the	state’s	Zero	Fatalities	traffic	safety	goal.

     We know the vital importance of transportation to ourselves, our communities and to Nevada. We 
are proud to continually move our transportation system forward with innovation, collaboration and 
responsibility.

Rudy Malfabon, P.E., Director

Director’s Message

II

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

I

The nation’s leader in delivering transportation solutions, 
improving Nevada’s quality of life. 

Providing a better transportation system for Nevada through our 
unified	and	dedicated	efforts.

• Integrity – Doing the right thing.
• Honesty – Being truthful in your actions and your words.
• Respect – Treating others with dignity.
•	Commitment	–	Putting	the	needs	of	the	Department	first.
• Accountability – Being responsible for your actions.

As one NDOT, our employees are key to successfully 
accomplishing our mission.
• Optimize safety.
• Be in touch with and responsive to our customers.
• Innovate.
• Be the employer of choice.
•	Deliver	timely	and	beneficial	projects	and	programs.
• Effectively preserve and manage our assets.
•	Efficiently	operate	the	transportation	system.

Our Mission

Our Vision

Our Goals

Our Core Values

NDOT Mission Statement

III

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

II

 The following information provided in this Executive Summary is intended to give the 
reader a quick overview of the Nevada transportation system under NDOT’s responsibility and 
care. Additionally, there is some information about local roadways and taxes for comparison 
purposes. All data is the best available as of the end of the State Fiscal Year 2014 ending 
June 30, 2014. Further, there is some information about highway funding, expenditures, 
assets, employees, and other statistics related to NDOT. Detailed information about these 
statistics can be found in the pages of this Facts & Figures Book. Lane miles are as the name 
implies; it represents the number of miles of roadway if you put every highway lane in Nevada 
end-to-end. Centerline miles are the miles of highway without regard to how many lanes they 
have. Special fuel includes diesel, propane (LPG), and compressed natural gas (CNG).

Statistics

1.	  Nevada Population    2,829,000 people (2014 Estimate)

2.	  Lane Miles NDOT & Local   13,632 NDOT/ 71,784 Local (2013 data)

3.	 Centerline Miles NDOT & Local  5,393 NDOT / 22,227 Local (2013 data)

4.	 Vehicle Miles Traveled    23.6 Billion miles (2013- best available)

5.	 Truck Miles Traveled    1.7 Billion miles (2013- best available)

6.	 Miles of Rural Highway    4,726 miles (2013 data)

7.	 Miles of Urban Highway   667 miles (2013 data)

8.	 NDOT Bridges     1,154 bridges (2014 data)

9.	 NDOT Vehicles     631 vehicles (2014 data)

10.	NDOT Heavy Equipment   1,918 pieces heavy equip. (2014 data)

11.	NDOT Staffed Maintenance Stations  44 maintenance stations (2014 data)

12.	Total NDOT Employees    1,783 employees (2014 data)

13.	NDOT-owned	Office	Space	 	 	 308,532	Square	Feet		(2014	data)

14.	NV Licensed Drivers    1,820,893 drivers (2014 data)

15.	NV Registered Passenger Vehicles  1,958,684 vehicles (2014 data)

Fuel Tax Rates 

16.	State Gasoline Tax Rate   17.650¢ per gallon

17.	 Petroleum Cleanup Fee   0.750¢ per gallon of gasoline sold

18.	Inspection Fee for Imported Gas  0.055¢ per gallon of gasoline sold

19.	County Mandatory Gas Tax      6.35¢ per gallon

20.	0¢ to 9¢ County Option Gas Tax  Varies by county

21.	Federal Gasoline Tax Rate   18.4¢ per gallon

22.	State Diesel Tax Rate    27.75¢ per gallon

Executive Summary

IV

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

III

23.	Federal Diesel Tax Rate    24.4¢ per gallon

24.	State Propane(LPG) Tax Rate    22¢ per gallon

25.	Federal Propane(LPG) Tax Rate   13.6¢ per gallon

26.	State Methane(CNG) Tax Rate   21¢ per gallon

27.	Federal Methane(CNG) Tax Rate   4.3¢ per gallon

State Highway Fund Revenue and Expenditures (2014 data)

28.	State Gasoline Tax Revenue    $187.8 Million

29.	County Mandatory Gas Tax Revenue   $67.5 Million

30.	0¢ to 9¢ County Option Gas Tax Revenue  $94.0 Million

31.	State Special Fuel Tax Revenue   $79.1 Million

32.	Clark	County	Inflation	Index	On	Gasoline	 	 $11.8	Million

33.	Clark	County	Inflation	Index	On	Special	Fuel	 $2.3	Million

34.	Washoe	County	Inflation	Index	On	Gasoloine	 $32.3	Million

35.	Washoe	County	Inflation	Index	On	Special	Fuel	 $8.3	Million

36.	Federal Aid Revenue     $330.8 Million

37.	Bonds and Other Revenue    $147.6 Million

38.	Driver’s License Fees     $23.1 Million

39.	Vehicle Registration Fees    $104.7 Million

40.	Motor Carrier Fees     $39.0 Million

41.	Total State Highway Fund Revenue   $984.5 Million

42.	Total State Highway Fund Expenditures  $778.4 Million

Executive Summary

V

All data is the best available as of the end of the State Fiscal Tear 2014 ending June 30, 2014

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

IV

Transportation Board of Directors

Chairman
Brian Sandoval

Governor

Mark Hutchison
Lieutenant Governor

Frank Martin
District 1

Len Savage
District 2

Tom Skancke
District 1

Tom Fransway
District 3

VI

Ron Knecht
 Controller

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

V

Reid Kaiser, P.E.
Assistant Director Operations

Robert Nellis, CPM
Assistant Director Administration

Sondra Rosenberg, PTP,
Assistant Director Planning

John Terry, P.E.
Assistant Director Engineering

Bill Hoffman, P.E.
Deputy Director Chief Engineer

Tracy Larkin-Thomason, P.E., 
P.T.O.E., C.P.M.

Deputy Director Southern Nevada

NDOT Administration

Rudy Malfabon, P.E.
Director

VII

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

VI

District 1
LAS VEGAS (702) 385-6500
Fax (702) 385-6511
123 E. Washington Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Mary Martini, P.E.
District Engineer

Major Maintenance Station
TONOPAH (775) 482-2375
Fax (775) 482-2310
805 Main Street
Tonopah, Nevada 89049
Steve Baer, P.E.
Asst. District Engineer

District 2
RENO (775) 834-8300
Fax (775) 834-8390
310 Galletti Way
Sparks, Nevada 89431
Thor Dyson, P.E.
District Engineer

Engineering Districts and
Major Maintenance Stations

District 3
ELKO (775) 777-2700
Fax (775) 777-2705
1951 Idaho Street
Elko, Nevada 89801
Kevin Lee, P.E.
District Engineer

Major Maintenance Station
ELY (775) 289-1700
Fax (775) 289-1710
1401 East Aultman Street
Ely, Nevada 89301
Randy Hesterlee, P.E.
Asst. District Engineer

Major Maintenance Station
WINNEMUCCA (775) 623-8000
Fax (775) 623-8038
725 W. 4th Street
Winnemucca, Nevada 89445
Dave Lindeman, P.E.
Asst. District Engineer

NDOT maintenance districts are an 
integral part of the construction, operation 
and maintenance of state roads, ensuring 
road safety .

Note:  District boundaries 
are shown on the map on the 
inside of the front cover.
Maintenance stations and 
relative sizes are shown on 
page 21.

VIII

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

01

U.S. 50 Spooner Summit Wall (North of Glenbrook)

TRPA Best in the Basin Award

 TRPA recognizes projects that demonstrate exceptional planning, design and overall 
compatibility with the Lake Tahoe environment.  NDOT was presented the award for their 
innovative reinforcement soil slope technique that provides a more natural look, promotes 
infiltration,	reduces	pollutants,	improves	safety	and	reduces	maintenance.		The	project	is	
part of NDOT’s dedication in helping to preserve the Lake Tahoe environment and not only 
met requirements for beauty and environmental sensitivity, but NDOT requirements for 
strength, stability and durability as well.

I-515 and Flamingo Road

2014 Southern Nevada Landscape Award                                                                      
First Place, Commercial Design by Professional

       NDOT, in conjunction with Stantec Consulting,Inc., 
won	first	place	for	commercial	design	in	the	2014	Southern	
Nevada Landscape Awards competition for the landscape 
design on I-515 and Flamingo Road.  The design was chosen 
from more than 20 entries based on aesthetics, irrigation, 
plant selection and mulches. NDOT landscape architecture 
designs utilize sustainable methods and materials as well 
as	native,	drought-tolerant	planting	to	create	efficient,	low	
maintenance and effective aesthetics for state roadways. 

Making Lake Tahoe More Bicycle-Friendly

Lake Tahoe Bicycle Coalition 2013 Certificate of 
Appreciation

	 Each	year,	the	Lake	Tahoe	Bicycle	Coalition	honors	those	that	have	made	a	significant	
advancement to promoting safer bicycling and walking opportunities at Lake Tahoe.  

	 NDOT	was	selected	to	receive	a	2013	Certificate	of	Appreciation	and	was	recognized	as	
an agency that is committed to helping Tahoe become more bicycle-friendly.  

Nevada Stateline to Stateline Bikeway 
Phase 1 Project

American Public Works Association, Nevada Chapter   
2013 Best Nevada Transportation Project Under $5 million

  NDOT was awarded the 2013 Best Nevada Transportation Project under
 $5 million for Nevada Stateline to Stateline Bikeway Phase 1 project.  NDOT
               provided about 50% of the funding for Phase 1B and assisted the Tahoe
                 Transportation District in use of the Construction Manager at Risk process 
                for Phase 1C. 

Awards and Recognition 2013 - 2014

Continued on next page

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

02

Zero Fatalities Public Service Announcements

Bronze Telly Awards Silver ADDY – Public Service TV                      
Silver ADDY - Public Service Integrated Campaign

	 In	partnership	with	the	Nevada	Office	of	Traffic	Safety,	NDOT	administers	the	state’s	
Zero	Fatalities	traffic	safety	public	outreach	campaign,	reaching	95%	of	Nevadans	to	save	
lives and reduce the most dangerous driving behaviors seen on Nevada roads.

	 The	campaign	won	three	bronze	Telly	Awards	for	outstanding	Zero	Fatalities	traffic	
safety public service TV messages in the commercial, public service category.  The Telly 
Awards are the communication industry’s most prestigious awards. 

 An anti-impaired driving campaign targeting young drivers to always designate a sober 
driver	and	highlighting	the	benefits	of	being	a	designated	driver	also	received	two	awards	in	
the American Advertising Federation’s American Advertising Awards. The local-level awards 
recognized outstanding public service advertising using many different public outreach 
channels in remedying societal problems. 

First Place, AASHTO’s Faces of Transportation Award

Taking the Road Less Traveled Category                                                       
Julie Duewel, Tahoe Shared Use Bike Path Photograph

       Each year, AASHTO presents awards 
in the national Faces of Transportation 
photo contest.  This year, Julie Duewel’s 
photograph of the Tahoe Shared Use Bike 
Path	was	awarded	first	prize	in	the	“Taking	
the Road Less Traveled” category.  

       Julie took the photograph during the 
dedication ceremony for the second segment 
of the Stateline to Stateline Bikeway bike 
path.  

State Route 431 Erosion Control Project

American Society of Civil Engineers- Truckee Meadows Branch    
Outstanding Achievement in Civil Engineering-Environmental 

       An erosion control project on Mt. Rose Highway was named an     
      outstanding achievement in civil engineering by the Truckee Meadows    
          branch of the American Society of Civil Engineers.

Awards and Recognition 2013 - 2014

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

03

 As part of NDOT’s continuing efforts to help preserve the Tahoe environment, the 
project is a test case to evaluate innovative materials to further stabilize roadside shoulders 
and	enhance	water	drainage	and	filtration.	Working	closely	to	involve	the	public	and	
stakeholders, the project not only will help protect the Tahoe environment, but also provide 
for improved and safer travels in the Tahoe area. 

I-11 & Intermountain West Corridor Study

American Planning Association, Nevada Chapter       
2014 DeBoer Excellence in Planning Award        
Outstanding Public Outreach and Journalism 

 The Nevada and Arizona Departments of Transportation along with consultant CH2MHill 
were presented with the prestigious DeBoer Award for Excellence in Planning by the 
Nevada Chapter of the American Planning Association for the I-11& Intermountain West 
Corridor Study for Outstanding Public Outreach and Journalism. The two-year study looked 
at detailed corridor planning of a possible high priority Interstate link between Phoenix 
and Las Vegas, and high level visioning for extending the corridor south to Mexico and 
potentially north to Canada.  During the study, the team engaged stakeholders and the 
public through in-person and virtual meetings as well as online engagements.

I-15 ITS Design-Build Project from 
I-215 to Stateline 

Carlin Tunnel LED Intelligent Lighting System 
Intelligent Transportation Society of Nevada 
2013 & 2014 ITS Projects of the Year, Over $2 Million

 The I-15 ITS Design-Build Project to 
integrate	and	add	271	traffic	cameras	to	a	
larger	network	of	statewide	traffic	cameras	was	
recognized by the Intelligent Transportation 
Society of Nevada as ITS 2013 project of 
the	year,	over	$2	million.	The	traffic	cameras	
offer	nearly	real-time	video	of	traffic	conditions	
in Nevada’s metro areas. Available on-line, the cameras help drivers to make commute 
choices	based	on	current	travel	conditions,	leading	to	enhanced	traffic	management	and	
safety. Transportation and emergency management agencies can access utilize and direct 
the	cameras	for	the	quickest	and	most	accurate	response	to	all	types	of	traffic	situations	
and emergencies.

 The Carlin Tunnel LED Intelligent Lighting System was chosen as the 2014 ITS project 
of the year, over $2 million.  The new lighting utilizes a sophisticated lighting control system 

which monitors and gradually dims or brightens lighting to best match outside ambient 
conditions. The new system provides drivers enhanced visibility while transitioning 

from outside lighting to light conditions within the tunnels and is projected to 
increase safety, allowing drivers to remain more self-assured of the road  

ahead and less likely to unnecessarily slow or brake.

Awards and Recognition 2013 - 2014

New lighting on ceiling of Carlin tunnels

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

04

NDOT Accomplishments 2013 - 2014

Nevada Brings Home An Additional $11.1 Million 

Nevada brought home an additional $11.1 million in federal transportation spending 
authority for Nevada road projects through redistribution of Federal Highway Administration 
fiscal	year-end	funds.	The	additional	funding	authorized	NDOT	to	utilize	the	money	in	
federal	fiscal	year	2014	on	phase	1	of	the	Boulder	City	Bypass	project,	preserving	that	
amount in state highway funds for use 
on other important state road projects. 
In the last decade, NDOT has been 
able to secure nearly $124 million in 
additional obligation authority for use on 
vital Nevada transportation projects.

Upgraded Highway Bond Rate 

NDOT	and	the	State	Treasurer’s	office	announced	that	Standard	&	Poor’s	Rating	Services	
raised its ratings on Nevada’s $441.4 million in highway revenue bonds from AA+ to AAA, 
the highest possible credit rating. In raising NDOT’s rating, the bonding service praised 
several strong features of NDOT’s bonding program.  The rating service called the state’s 
highway	program	a	“well-run	program	that	leverages	federal	funding	but	is	positioned	
to scale back should federal transportation funding become jeopardized in Congress.” 
The	state’s	treasurer’s	office	stated	that	by	reducing	the	term	of	the	2014	highway	bond	
issuance to just 12 years, millions of taxpayer dollars will be saved.

Reopening I-15 After Flooding 

On September 8, 2014, the remnants of Tropical Storm 
Norbert dumped about six inches of rain in three hours near 
the rural areas of Moapa and Glendale, located about 50 
miles north of Las Vegas.  Receiving as much rain as the 
area typically receives in an entire year caused widespread 
damage to homes and business as well as many roads and 
highways.  State Route 168 and US 93 and 95 sustained 
flood	damage	that	that	NDOT	crews	were	able	make	passable	
quickly.  But a two mile stretch between mile markers 91-93 

on Interstate15, travelled by more 
than 25,000 vehicles daily, was 
severely damaged, making the 
main artery in and out of Las 
Vegas completely impassable.  
Crews immediately closed I-15 
and put detour routes into 
place.  Las Vegas Paving, 
already in the area 
working on a project, 

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

05

NDOT Accomplishments 2013 - 2014

began	repair	work	immediately.	Just	four	days	after	the	flood,	NDOT	was	able	to	open	one	
lane	of	traffic	in	each	direction	through	the	Moapa	and	Glendale	area	using	the	northbound	
interstate.		Then,	just	weeks	later,	a	flashflood	severely	damaged	another	section	of	I-15	
south of Mesquite, restricting travel to one lane in each direction.   A river in the area 
swelled 12 feet in 90 minutes, washing away the roadway and temporarily closing the 
interstate. In another amazing accomplishment, NDOT and Las Vegas Paving were able to 
repair and reopen the road within two weeks.  

Transportation for all 

NDOT continues to work with local schools 
and other partners to support Nevada Moves 
and Walk to School Day events across the 
state.  The events are held in April and October 
and are meant to encourage students and 
their families to safely walk or bike to school.  
More than 50 Nevada schools in 10 different 
communities participated in the program meant 
to help children learn more about pedestrian 
and bicycling safety.  The program encourages 
physical activity at an early age that can help 
to reduce heart disease, diabetes and other 
obesity-related illnesses.  In addition, walking or 
biking to school can lesson up to 25 percent of 
morning	rush	hour	traffic	that	results	from	children	being	driven	to	school.		

Project Accomplishments 

NDOT has completed many key construction 
projects	in	the	past	year,	with	several	finishing	
ahead of schedule.  The $52 million Cactus 
Interchange	project,	allowing	traffic	on	I-15	
to have direct access to Cactus Avenue and 
vastly improving mobility for the southwestern 
portion	of	the	Las	Vegas	Valley,	finished	two	
months ahead of schedule.    In Addition, the 
$10 million Mt. Rose Highway Improvement 
project completed one full season ahead of 
schedule.  In approximately four months, 
16 miles of the highway were repaved and 

improved. Examples of other vital recently-completed projects include the Las Vegas F 
Street Connection Project, Kingsbury Grade Pavement Reconstruction Project, I-80 Carlin               
    Tunnels Improvements and I-15 repaving and enhancements. 

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

06

Moapa/Glendale Flood Response

September 8, 2014:

 Remnants of Tropical Storm Norbert dumps nearly six inches of rain in the Moapa/
Glendale area north of Las Vegas—more than the area typically receives in an entire year.
     

 A two-mile stretch of Interstate 15, traveled by more than 
25,000 vehicles daily is destroyed by the unyielding rainfall.  
Officials	say	12,000	cubic	feet	of	water	per	second	flowed	
directly onto the interstate.  

 Governor Brian Sandoval declared a state of emergency 
and the Department applied for federal reimbursement for repair 
costs.  Crews immediately closed I-15 from mileposts 64-112 and 
detour routes were put into place. 

 Contractor Las Vegas Paving, 
already in the area working on an 
NDOT project, immediately began 
working around to clock to clear 
debris and rebuild the crumbled 
roadway. 

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

07

Moapa/Glendale Flood Response 
 September 12, 2014: 

	 Just	four	days	after	the	flood	event,	NDOT	was	able	to	open	one	lane	of	traffic	in	each	
direction through the Moapa and Glendale area using the northbound interstate.

 

September 18, 2014: 

  Work was shifted to repairing and opening the southbound lanes.  Just ten days after the 
flood	event,	NDOT	reopened	one	southbound	lane	in	addition	to	the	two	northbound	lanes.			

          See the full video on NDOT’s   
          YouTube channel.

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

08

Highway Safety
Statistics

Fatalities By Cause
New Definition by National Traffic Safety Administration

Data From Fatal Analysis Reporting System (FARS)

F
at

al
it

ie
s

OtherAlcohol Related

Seatbelt Use For Fatalities Where Seatbelts
Were a Factor

Seatbelt Use Statistics Are Not Available For Many Crashes

F
a
ta

li
ti

e
s

Seatbelts Not Used Unknown Seatbelts UseSeatbelts Used

Statewide Pedestrian & Bicycle Fatalities

F
a
ta

li
ti

e
s

PedestriansBicycles

F
at

al
it

y 
R

at
es

 P
er

 1
00

 M
ill

io
n

 V
eh

ic
le

 M
ile

s 
o

f 
Tr

av
el

Year

Fatality Rates

148

217255

193172191

36 41

5652
5847

7

710 3

6
4

1.
98

 

1.
68

 

1.
50

 

1.
20

 
1.

22
 

1.
10

 
1.

10
 1.

20
 

1.42 1.36 
1.26 

1.15 1.11 1.09 1.13 1.09 

0.00 

0.50 

1.00 

1.50 

2.00 

2.50 

3.00 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

F
at

al
it

y 
R

at
es

 P
er

 1
00

 M
ill

io
n

 V
eh

ic
le

-M
ile

s 
o

f 
Tr

av
el

 
 Year 

Fatality Rates 
Nevada Fatality Rates National Fatality Rates 

107 95 80 74 66 60 

217 

148 177 172 193 207 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

F
at

al
it

ie
s 

Year 

Fatalities By Cause 
New Definition By National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 

Data From Fatal Analysis Reporting System (FARS) 

Alcohol-Related Other 

324 

243 
257 246 

56 

36 41 47 
58 

69 

7 

7 
6 

4 

3 

7 

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

F
a
ta

li
ti

e
s
 

Year 

STATEWIDE PEDESTRIAN & BICYCLE FATALITIES 

PEDESTRIANS BICYCLES 

61 
63 

43 47 
51 

76 

91 77 

35 
70 74 

52 

96 

62 

3 

47 

78 

56 

9 

16 

1 

45 
4 

12 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

F
a

ta
li

ti
e

s
 

Year 

SEATBELT USE 
FOR FATALITIES WHERE SEATBELTS WERE A FACTOR 

SEATBELTS NOT USED SEATBELTS USED UNKNOWN SEATBELT USE 

SEATBELT USE STATISTICS ARE NOT AVAILABLE FOR MANY CRASHES 

156 155 

196 

39 

162 

1	  

3

120 

259 267

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

09

Regionally Significant Projects

2012:

US-93/95 Boulder City Bypass (Phase 1 – Package 2); tortoise fence and plant salvage;
$1.7M

SR-650 McCarran Blvd from Mira Loma Dr to South Virginia; Widen from 4 to 6 lanes and
3R; $25M

US-50 from Chaves Rd to Roy’s Rd; 
Widen from 2 to 4 lanes with drainage; 
$21.2M

2013:

I-15 at Cactus Avenue in Las Vegas; 
6 lane roadway with interchange at I-15; 
$39.8 M 

I-15 at “F” Street; 2-lane underpass 
beneath I-15 between McWilliams 
Avenue and City Parkway; $13.8 M

I-15 from Spring Mtn Road to West of 
Spaghetti Bowl at Rancho Blve (NEON); 
ROW Acquisition; $21.2 M

Carlin Tunnels, GMP 2; $25.7M

  2014: 

US-95 Phase 2A: Widening from Ann 
Road to Durango Drive; $35.7 M 

SR-207 Kingsbury Grade: Reconstruct 
roadway and add stormwater quality 
improvements; $14.9 M

I-580 from Moana Lane to the Truckee 
River: Reconstruct Southbound Lanes; 
$12.1 M

Tropicana Escalators Replacement 
(CMAR Project): Replace existing 

I-15 at Cactus Avenue

SR-207 Kingsbury Grade
Continued on next page

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

10

escalators at the intersection of Las 
Vegas Boulevard and Tropicana 
Avenue; $19.6 M

2015:

US-93 Boulder City Bypass, Part 1 
Package 3 from Silverline to Foothills 
Road: Realign mainline to include a new 
interchange at Railroad Pass and bike 
path; $78 M estimate

I-580 from Carson St. Interchange 
to Bowers Interchange: Widen for 
auxiliary	lane	and	seismic	retrofit;	
$18.5 M estimate

US-95 Northwest Phase 3A: 
Construct the North to East and West to South ramps and collector roads for the CC-215/US-95 system 
to system interchange; $54 M estimate

I-580/US-395 Carson City Freeway from South Carson Street to Fairview Drive Package 2B-3: 
Construct four lane controlled access freeway; $ 45 M estimate

SR-160 from SR-159 (Red Rock Junction) to base of the mountains, approximately 5.5 miles: widen 
to four lanes with bike lanes; $25.5 M estimate

               2016:

I-15 North Part 2 from Craig Road 
to Speedway: bridges and capacity 
improvements; $45.3 M estimate

US-95 Northwest Package 2B from 
Durango Drive to Kyle Canyon Road: 
widen roadway; $36.5 M estimate

I-515 at Las Vegas Downtown Viaduct: 
rehabilitate	and	retrofit	existing	structure;	
$26 M estimate

Regionally Significant Projects

US-95 Durango Drive to Kyle Canyon 
Road

US 395 fm South Carson St to 
Fairview Dr. Carson City

Continued on next page

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

11

SR-593 Tropicana Avenue from 
Dean Martin to Boulder Highway: 
roadway rehabilitation; $16 M 
estimate

SR-592 Flamingo Road from 
Paradise to Boulder Highway: 
roadway rehabilitation; 
$17.3 M estimate

SR-648 Glendale Avenue from 
Kietzke Lane to McCarran Blvd; 
$15 M estimate

I-15 from CC-215 south system to system to CC-215 north system to system:	Advanced	Traffic	
Management (ATM); $20 M estimate

McCarran Blvd SE from US-395 to I-80:	Install	intelligent	traffic	system	(ITS)	devices;	$10	M	estimate

US-95 from Boulder City Bypass to CA/NV Stateline:	Install	intelligent	traffic	system	(ITS)	
infrastructure - FAST package; $8 M estimate

2017:

I-15 at Tropicana interchange: operational improvements; $40 M estimate

I-15 at Starr Avenue: full interchange construction; $53 M estimate

I-515 from Rancho Drive to Charleston Blvd: operational improvements; $40 M estimate

I-15/CC-215 system to system interchange: phase 1 improvements; $60M estimate

Regionally Significant Projects

US-95 Boulder City Bypass

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

12

Regionally Significant Projects

15

15

15

215

159

160

161

146

147

165

164

163

156

95

95

169

170

168

93

95

78	Mil

LAKE
MEADE

LAKE
MOHAVE

8	Mil

1.7		Mil

25.5	Mil

35.7	Mil

78	Mil

54	Mil
78	Mil

36.5	Mil
45.3	Mil

20	Mil
26	Mil 40	Mil

17.3	Mil
60	Mil

13.8	Mil

16	Mil

53	Mil

CLARK COUNTY

Las
Vegas

19.6	Mil

39.8	Mil
Boulder

City

Moapa

Mesquite

Indian
Springs

Primm

Jean

Searchlight

Laughlin

Legend
Projects: 2012-2014

Projects: 2015-2017

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

13

Regionally Significant Projects

80

228

230

229

232

233

226

225

80

93

93

93

ALT
93

RUBY
LAKE

Owyhee Jackpot

Montello

Carlin

Elko
Spring
Creek

West
Wendover

ELKO COUNTY

25.7	Mil

Legend
Projects: 2012-2014

Projects: 2015-2017

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

14

Regionally Significant Projects

80

339

80

80

395

50

50

50

50

395

395

580

580

88

ALT
95

ALT
95

ALT
95

206

207

341

431

28

441

LAKE
TAHOE

Carson
City

WASHOE COUNTY

STOREY COUNTY

LYON COUNTY

DOUGLAS COUNTY

CARSON
CITY

21.2	Mil

14.9		Mil

10	Mil

12.1		Mil

18.5		Mil

45	Mil

15	Mil

18.5	Mil

Virginia
City

Reno

Fernley

Minden Yerington

25	Mil

Legend
Projects: 2012-2014

Projects: 2015-2017

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

15

 The Nevada Department of Transportation 
provides the Freeway Service Patrol (FSP) in 
the Las Vegas and Reno areas and Incident 
Response Vehicles (IRV) in the Las Vegas area. The purpose of the program is to improve 
highway safety on the more heavily traveled sections of our urban freeways by reducing 
the	time	required	to	remove	incidents		or	objects	that	can	disrupt	traffic	flows	and	cause	
traffic	congestion	during	peak	travel	periods.	Whether	it’s	a	stalled	car,	debris	on	the	road,	
or a minor crash, the objective of the FSP and IRV is to remove it from the road as quickly 
as	possible	to	avoid	impacting	passing	drivers.	FSP	and	IRV	technicians	are	certified	in	
community	first	aid	and	Automotive	Service	Excellence	to	ensure	they	are	prepared	to	
quickly remove minor incidents from the roadway. The program also assists other public 
safety	organizations	including	law	enforcement,	fire,	and	emergency	medical	services,	
as well as towing and recovery professionals to rapidly and safely address more complex 
traffic	incidents.	FSP	benefits	include	improved	travel	time	reliability,	reduced	fuel	costs	
and vehicle emissions, improved motorist and responder safety, and reduced potential for 
secondary crashes.

 Statistics indicate that incidents blocking one of three lanes on a freeway reduce 
capacity by 50 percent and blocking two of three lanes reduces capacity by 80 percent.  For 
every minute that a lane is blocked, the resulting congestion takes four minutes to dissipate 
and the chance of a secondary crash increases by 2.8 percent.

	 The	Federal	Highway	Administration	(FHWA)	has	determined	that	traffic	incidents	
in	or	adjacent	to	travel	lanes	that	disrupt	the	normal	flow	of	traffic,	including	crashes,	
breakdowns	and	debris,	account	for	25	percent	of	traffic	delay.		

FSP Saves a Life
 On January 8, 2014, FSP 
Technician Yancy Baglio, found 
a mother panicking in her a car 
along I-15 because her child was 
choking in the back seat. Due to the 
program’s rigorous training, Yancy 
was able to quickly perform the                                                      
Heimlich maneuver to dislodge the  
 object from the child’s throat and  
  avoid a tragic incident. Good  
      job, Yancy!

Freeway Service Patrol

FY14 Statistics
Mitigation Type Las Vegas Reno

Abandoned Vehicle 3,321 629
Debris 1,654 180

Accident 1,626 255
Disabled Vehicle 15,765 2,221

Scene Safety 2,118 812
Other 507 84

Mitigation Totals 24,991 4,181

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

16

Performance Management Plan 
and Performance Measures

Every life saved adds about $5 million to 
future economic earning power.

 NDOT uses 15 performance measures to link projects to the core vision, mission  
and goals of the Department, ensure investment accountability, and deliver high quality 
performance-based projects. The Department has established ultimate and annual 
targets for each measure, except for a few that are still under development.  Because 
of budget limitations, some of the 
annual targets are not expected to 
be reached.  For a complete look at 
Department performance measures, 
go to http://www.nevadadot.com/
documents,	and	then	click	on	“Annual	
Performance Management Report - FY 
2014”.  Following are the performance 
measures organized by major divisions:

  Number of work place injuries and illnesses compared to total number for employees 
and comparing total requiring medical attention to total number of employees as 
documented through OSHA 300 Log Report. Yearly Target - 10% reduction in work place 
accidents, with the ultimate target of zero work place accidents  
 
 Percentage of employees trained in accordance with prescribed training plans.
 
 Number rating of employees’ satisfaction surveys. Ultimate target – 80%

  Percentage of Agreements executed within 45 days from when division submits 
agreement to date when fully executed. Yearly Target – 50% with ultimate target of 95%

  Number rating of public opinion and customer/user surveys. Annual Target – annual 
increases in public opinion and customer/user ratings.
 
 Reduce congestion, improve travel time, and reduce delay. Annual Target – Urban 
Roadways - maintain congestion at level of service D for 85% of state urban roadways.
Rural Roadways - maintain congestion at level of service. 

 
  Percentage of projects within 
established range of cost estimate and 
schedule to completion. Yearly Target – 
25% reduction in projects falling behind 
schedule
 
 Percentage of state maintained 

pavements in fair or better 
condition as rated through
the International 

2014 
PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT 

REPORT 
 

 
 

 

 

2014 
PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT 

REPORT 
 

 
 

 

 

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

17

Roughness Index. Ultimate Target – 100%

	 Percentage	of	fleet	meeting	replacement	criteria	and	condition	criteria.	95%	rate	of	
compliance for mileage/hourly requirements.

  Percentage of building facilities that comply with regulatory building and safety codes. 
Yearly Target – Increase compliance by 3% with ultimate target of 100%.

  The percent of the seven NDOT emergency management and Homeland Security 
plans that have been completed, including ongoing plan updates, testing and employee 
training/awareness. Ultimate target- 100% 
 
 Number of fatalities on Nevada’s streets and highways. Yearly Target – Reduce fatalities 
by 100 with ultimate target of zero fatal accidents.
 
 Percentage of projects completed within range of established estimate and schedule 
after approval of environmental documents. Ultimate target – 100%

  Percentage of NDOT owned bridges which are eligible for federal funding and are 
categorized	as	structurally	deficient	or	functionally	obsolete.	Yearly	Target	–	Reduce	the	
number	of	deficient	bridges	by	one	per	year	with	ultimate	target	of	zero	deficient	bridges.

  Percentage of encroachment permits issued or rejected within 45 days of receipt. 
Ultimate target – 95%

Performance Management Plan 
and Performance Measures

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

18

Maintenance Costs and Activities

Maintenance Costs
Based on Fiscal Year 2014 Expenditures

Expenditures for Materials and Supplies

J

M

N

$44,959,277	  

$36,494,949	  

$21,234,617	  

$245,262	  

Salaries	  and	  Related	  
Expenses	  

Contractors	  and	  Others	  

Materials	  and	  Supplies	  

Equipment*	  

38%	  

35%	  

27%	   District	  1	  

District	  2	  

District	  3	  

Maintenance	  Costs	  
Based	  on	  Fiscal	  Year	  2014	  Expenditures	  

Salaries	  by	  District	  

Statewide	  Expenditures	  
*Non-‐rental	  equipment	  

FY	  Comparison	  

$0	  

$5	  

$10	  

$15	  

$20	  

$25	  

$30	  

$35	  

$40	  

$45	  

FY	  2009	   FY2011	   FY2012	   FY2013	  
FY2014	  

M
ill
io
ns
	  

Maintenance	  Costs	  
Based	  on	  Fiscal	  Year	  2014	  Expenditures	  

Expenditures	  for	  Material	  and	  Supplies	  

25%	  

12%	  

11%	  

9%	  

9%	   6%	  

5%	  
5%	  

4%	  

4%	  

3%	  

2%	  
2%	  
2%	  
1%	  

23%	  

Liquid	  Asphalt	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Traffic	  Paint	  &	  Beads	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

De-‐icing	  Sand	  or	  Salt	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Maintenance	  Contracts	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Electric	  UGliGes	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Traffic	  Supplies	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Facility,	  Shop	  &	  Maintenance	  	  Supplies	  

Aggregate	  Items	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Guardrail	  	  

Rental	  or	  Lease	  of	  Road	  Equipment	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Premix	  &	  Plantmix	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Garbage	  Disposal	  UGliGes	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Water	  &	  Sewer	  UGliGes	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Propane	  UGliGes	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Joint	  Filler	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

$4,529,438	  

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

19

Maintenance Costs
Based on Fiscal Year 2014 Expenditures

Contractor Payments by Type of Work

Maintenance Costs and Activities

Maintenance	  Costs	  
Based	  on	  Fiscal	  Year	  2014	  Expenditures	  

Contractor	  Payments	  by	  Type	  of	  Work	  

52%	  

19%	  

9%	  

6%	  

5%	  

3%	  
2%	   2%	  

1%	  
1%	  

Pavement	  Surfacing	  

ITS/RWIS	  Systems	  

Bridge	  and	  Wall	  Maint	  &	  Repair	  

Freeway	  Service	  Patrol	  

Drainage	  

Inmate	  and	  Hazmat	  Services	  

Emergency	  

Consultant	  Services	  

Guardrail,	  Striping	  &	  Signs	  

Weed	  Control	  

$19,258,380	  
	  

Maintenance	  Costs	  
Based	  on	  Fiscal	  Year	  2014	  Expenditures	  

Contractor	  Payments	  by	  Type	  of	  Work	  

52%	  

19%	  

9%	  

6%	  

5%	  

3%	  
2%	   2%	  

1%	  
1%	  

Pavement	  Surfacing	  

ITS/RWIS	  Systems	  

Bridge	  and	  Wall	  Maint	  &	  Repair	  

Freeway	  Service	  Patrol	  

Drainage	  

Inmate	  and	  Hazmat	  Services	  

Emergency	  

Consultant	  Services	  

Guardrail,	  Striping	  &	  Signs	  

Weed	  Control	  

$19,258,380	  
	  

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

20

Maintenance Activities
Based on Fiscal Year 2014 Expenditures

Top Expenditures Per District
(In Millions Of Dollars)

Maintenance Costs and Activities

Maintenance	  Costs	  
Based	  on	  Fiscal	  Year	  2014	  Expenditures	  

Top	  Expenditures	  per	  District	  
(in	  Millions	  of	  Dollars)	  

$0	   $1	   $2	   $3	   $4	   $5	   $6	  

Blade	  Shoulders	  

Fog/Flush	  

Yard	  Work	  

Pickup	  Broom	  Sweeping	  

Remove	  Debris	  

Crackfilling	  

Supervisory	  DuEes	  

Striping	  

Repair	  Fill	  and	  Cut	  Slopes	  

Chip	  Seals	  

Snow	  and	  Ice	  Removal	  

Millions	  

District	  1	  

District	  2	  

District	  3	  

Maintenance	  Costs	  
Based	  on	  Fiscal	  Year	  2014	  Expenditures	  

Top	  Expenditures	  per	  District	  
(in	  Millions	  of	  Dollars)	  

$0	   $1	   $2	   $3	   $4	   $5	   $6	  

Blade	  Shoulders	  

Fog/Flush	  

Yard	  Work	  

Pickup	  Broom	  Sweeping	  

Remove	  Debris	  

Crackfilling	  

Supervisory	  DuEes	  

Striping	  

Repair	  Fill	  and	  Cut	  Slopes	  

Chip	  Seals	  

Snow	  and	  Ice	  Removal	  

Millions	  

District	  1	  

District	  2	  

District	  3	  

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

21

Maintenance Stations
and Personnel

120° 118° 116° 115° 114°
700 000 mE 750 000 mE650 000 mE600 000 mE550 000 mE500 000 mE450 000 mE400 000 mE350 000 mE250 000 mE 300 000 mE

119º 117°

115°

116°

36°

117°

118°

38°

37°

119°

120°

39°

40

114°

4 650 000 mN

750 000 mE700 000 mE650 000 mE600 000 mE550 000 mE500 000 mE450 000 mE400 000 mE350 000 mE300 000 mE250 000 mE

3 900 000 mN

3 950 000 mN

4 000 000 mN

4 050 000 mN

4 100 000 mN

4 150 000 mN

4 200 000 mN

4 250 000 mN

4 300 000 mN

4 350 000 mN

4 400 000 mN

4 500 000 mN

4 550 000 mN

4 600 000 mN

42°

41°

4 450 000 mN

42°

41°

40°

39°

38°

37°

36°

4 600 000 mN

4 650 000 mN

4 550 000 mN

4 500 000 mN

4 450 000 mN

4 400 000 mN

4 350 000 mN

4 300 000 mN

4 250 000 mN

4 200 000 mN

4 150 000 mN

4 100 000 mN

4 050 000 mN

4 000 000 mN

3 950 000 mN

3 900 000 mN

35°
35°

NO
RT

HE
RN

NE
VA
DA

NO
RT

HE
RN

NE
VA

DA

W
a
lke

r 
L
ake

Rye Patch�
Reservoir

Pyramid�

      Lake

Lahontan�
Reservoir

Lake�

Tahoe

Lake

M ead

C
o
l
ora

d
o

R
iv
e
r

Lake�
  M ohave

UNION

UNION

M cGill

Stillwater

Goodsprings

TO NEEDLES

Seven Troughs
(site)    

O R E G O N
MALHEUR

LAKE HARN EY
TO ADEL

TO FIELDS

Vya
(site)

Denio

Denio�
 Jct

TO JORDAN VALLEY TO MOUNTAIN HOME

TO TWIN FALLS

O WYHEE TWIN FALLS CASSIA

I D A H O

H U M B O L D T

M
O
D
O
C

L
A
S
S
E
N

S
I
E
RR
A

M cDermitt

Orovada

Paradise Valley

M idas

Tuscarora
(site)

Jack Creek

W hite Rock
(site)

Ow yhee

M ountain City

Jarbidge

Charleston
(site)

North Fork

Dinner Station Deeth

E L K O
W ells

Oasis

M ontello

W ilkins
(site)

Contact

Jackpot

TO CEDARVILLE

Gerlach

Empire
(site)

Flanigan
(site) 

Pyramid
(site)

W A S H O E

TO SUSANVILLE

TO
TAHOE CITY

Sutcliffe

Nixon

Reno
Verdi

Sparks

W adsworth

Fernley

Hazen

Silver�
Springs

Virginia
City Stagecoach

Dayton

Gold
Hill

Silver
City

M ound House

CARSON
CITY
Stew art

W abuska

LYO N

D O U G LA S

STOREY

C H U R C H I L L
Dixie Valley
(site)

L I N C O L N

Rachel

Tempiute
(site)

Hiko

Crystal Springs

Ash Springs

Alamo

Pioche

Panaca

Ursine

Caselton

Elgin

Caliente

Carp
(site)

Boulder
City

Nelson

Cottonwood
Cove

Searchlight

Cal Nev Ari

Laughlin

A
R

I
Z

O
N

A

E U R E K A

L A N D E R

Jungo
(site)

Vernon
(site)

Rochester
(site)

Unionville

M ill City
Imlay

Lovelock

Oreana

P E R S H I N G

Tungsten
(site)

Battle M ountain

Valm y

Copper�
Canyon
(site)

Golconda

W innemucca

M anhattan

Belmont

Round M ountain

W arm Springs
(site)

N Y E

Potts
(site)

Strawberry

Eureka

Cherry
Creek

Ruth

Ely
Hamilton
(site)

Currie

Lages Station

Carlin

Beow awe

Cortez
(site)

Crescent�
Valley

Tenabo
(site)

Gold Acres
(site)

Leeville
(site)

Elko

Jiggs

Lee

Arthur

Halleck

Spring�
Creek

Lamoille

Ruby Valley

Shantytown

M iddlegate
Eastgate

Cold
Springs

Salt W ells
(site)

Fallon
Austin

Kingston

Frenchman
(site)

Rawhide
(site) Quartz Mtn

(site)

Las Vegas

Mt Charleston

Blue 
Diamond

Indian Springs

North
Las
Vegas

Cactus�
Springs

Jean
Sandy Valley

Sloan

TO BAKER

TO NIPTON

Primm

C L A R K

M oapa

Glendale

Logandale

Overton

TO ST GEORGE

Bunkerville

Henderson

Baker

Border

Sunnyside

M ajors�
Place

Preston
M inerva
(site)

Shoshone

Currant

Lockes

Duckwater

Adaven
(site)

Nyala
(site)

Lund

Atlanta
(site)

TO TRUCKEE

Incline�
Village

Crystal Bay

Glenbrook

Stateline

Zephyr Cove Genoa

PLACER

N EVADA

C
A

L
I

F
O

R
N

I
A

E S M E R A L D A

M I N ER A L

Gardnerville
M ason

M inden
W eed Heights

Stateline

W ellington

Smith
Holbrook
Jct

Yerington

Basalt
(site)
Basalt
(site)

M ina

Luning

W alker
Lake

Schurz

Candelaria
(site)

Hawthorne

Gabbs

Ione

Berlin
(site)

Hadley

Carvers

Silver Peak
Goldfield

Nivloc
(site)

Coaldale
(site) Tonopah

Lida

Dyer

TO BIG PINE

Ralston
(site)

Gold Point

Scottys JunctionScottys Junction

Amargosa
Valley

Johnnie
(site)

Beatty
Rhyolite

(site)

Pahrump

TO SHOSHONE

TO DEATH VALLEY
JUNCTION

TO DEATH VALLEY

M ercury

TO DEATH VALLEY
 & SCOTTYS CASTLE

TO NEEDLES

TO KINGMAN

TO BULLHEAD
CITY

TO KINGMAN

B
O
X
 
E
L
D
E
R

TO PARK VALLEY

W est 
W endover

T
O
O
E
L
E

TO SALT LAKE CITY

TO  IBAPAH

U
T

A
H

TO DELTA

TO MODENA

IR
O
N

W
A
S
H
I
N
GT
O
N

B
E
A
V
E
R

M
I
LL
A
R
D

JU
A
B

TO GARRISON

M
O
H
A
V
E

E LDORADO

TO BRIDGEPORT

TO W OODFORDS

TO BRIDGEPORT

ALPINE

TO
PLACERVILLE

C

A

L

I

F

O

R

N

I

A

TO BISHOP

TO
LEE VINING

MONO

SAN BERNARDINO

INYO

P I N EW H I T E

M ountain
Springs

M esquite

M etropolis
(site)

Sulphur
(site)

PACIFICUNION

PA
CI
FI
C

P
A
C
I
F
I
C

U
N
I
ON

UN
IO
N

U  P

PACIFIC

PACIFIC

PACIFIC

UN
ION

UNION    PACIFIC

P
A
C
I
F
I
C

U
N
I
ON

U
 
 
 
 
 
P

U 
  
  
P

15

215

15

15

80

80

80

80

80

580

580

158

159

160

161

146

147

169

170168

564

165

164

163

431

341

207

206

823

339

208

338

361

360

773

376

375

377

379

844

264

264

265

266

267

374

373

157

375

318

317

319

322

894

893

490

318

488

487

320

156

372

160

774

359

208

292

140

140

140

294

447

400

789

401

398

397

399

293

290

225

233

231

767

229

227

806

305

229

230

228

95

95

95

445

445

828

446

447

723

117

120

839

116
121

361
722

305

376

780

278

278

225

226

766

306

892

395

395

50

50

50

50
50

95

95

95

95

95

93

93

95

93

93

93

95

6

6

6

93

93

93

50

93

6

ALT
95

ALT
95

ALT
395

ALT
95

ALT
95

ALT
50

ALT
93

ALT
93

28

88

6
95

6
50

FOR SALE BY THE NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, MAP SECTION
1263 SOUTH STEW ART STREET, CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89712, (775) 888-7627

IN COOPERATION WITH THE
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FEDERAL HIGHW AY ADMINISTRATION

PREPARED BY

NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
(775) 888-7000

ww w.nevadadot.com

BASE HIGHWAY MAP

NEVADA
Copyright © 2014

2014

BRIAN SANDOVAL
Governor

MILES

KILOMETERS

0 10 20 30 40 50

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Transverse M ercator Projection M ount Diablo Base and M eridian
50,000 M eter Universal Transverse M ercator Grid Zone 11

Freeway (w/interchange)

Divided M ultilane

Paved Road

Improved Road

Unimproved Road

Railroad

Interstate shield

U.S. Highway shield

State Highway shield

State Boundary

County Boundary

Capital City

County Seat

City or Town center

Place (site)

3

16

60

2

8

2

3

6
8

39

8

13
114

4

38

8

5

4

17 4

4

4

4
36

4

4

6

41

4

4

164

5

4

8 

8

7 

4

7
7

5

5

4

Quinn River

Orvada
North Fork

Independence Valley
Wells

Contact

Elko

Emigrant Pass
Battle Mountain

Wendover

Winnemucca

Ruby Valley

Currie

Ely

Eureka
Austin

Lovelock

Big Smokey
Lund

Hawthorne

Mina

Yerington

WellingtonGardnerville

Carson City
Virginia City

Reno

Fallon
Cold Springs

Montgomery Pass

Maintenance Stations

Tonopah

Blue Jay

Goldfield

Alamo

Beatty

Las Vegas

Panaca

Glendale

Mt Charleston

Mountain Springs

Searchlight

Fernley

N
80-159

N
150+

N
20-39

N
40-79

N
6-9

N
10-19

N
2-3

N
4-5

Maintenance and Support Personnel

Location Number Number
 Stations Persons
District One 16 260
District Two 11 219
District Three 17 222
Total 44 701

Note: Number of personnel includes 
most of the following, District 
Administration, Communiucation, 
Equipment Shops, Stockroom, Dispatch 
and all of the Maintenance Crew 
Personnel.

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

22

  
  
 It takes dedication and expertise to administer, construct and maintain a road and bridge 
system that has continually been named one of the nation’s best. Whether in administration, 
construction or maintenance, NDOT’s dedicated, expert employees are the driving force 
behind Nevada’s top transportation system.
      Rapid population growth of past years and spikes in commodity movement have greatly
increased	traffic	on	Nevada	highways,	yet	NDOT	staff	numbers	have	decreased	slightly	in	
the past few years. With staff overseeing ever-increasing transportation needs and ever 
more complex projects and programs, NDOT looks to innovation, partnership and increasing 
efficiency	to	successfully	fulfill	Nevada’s	transportation	needs.
      From maintenance, road preservation, snow removal and safety enhancements to 
targeted projects, technologies and programs, Department employee workloads and 
numbers continue to be balanced by improved technologies, streamlined processes, 
partnerships and hard-working staff.

 Number of Employees By Function      
       

Year Administration Pre-Construction Construction Maintenance Total

1990 161 311 330 667 1,469
       
1995 163 322 341 668 1,494
       
2000 182 370 382 717 1,651
       
2005 187 399 384 780 1,750
       
2010 185 414 363 840 1,802

2014 189 418 354 822 1,783

Department Personnel

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

23

Operational ImprovementsStormwater management 
 program evolution: 
 To help protect our precious surface 
and groundwater resources, our stormwater 
management program works closely with other agencies to help preserve clarity and reduce 
pollution in the stormwater and other water runoff from our roads and road projects.  During 
fiscal	year	2014,	NDOT	successfully	:

• Trained over 900 employees in
 stormwater procedures and policies 
• Inspected and issued facility pollution
 prevention plans to the 245
 maintenance facilities statewide 
• Hired water quality specialists for each
 district to assist with implementing NDOT’s Stormwater Management Plan  
• Revamped and greatly improved the stormwater management program website
• Inventoried and mapped an estimated 31,500 hydraulic facilities statewide
• Conducted over 2,000 illicit discharge detection and elimination (IDDE) inspections 
• Constructed numerous erosion control and stormwater quality improvements within the
 Clear Creek Watershed and Lake Tahoe Basin 
• Maintained a Stormwater Management Plan for the Department 
• Met or exceeded all stormwater EPA requirements 

I-11 and Intermountain West Corridor Study: 
 The I-11 and Intermountain West Corridor Study, completed 
in	2014,	concluded	that	sufficient	justification	exists	for	a	new	
high capacity, multimodal transportation corridor from Mexico, 
through the Sun Corridor of Tucson and Phoenix, to Las Vegas 
and north to the Reno/Sparks/Carson City region. Study results 
show that investing in the corridor will help to better connect 
Nevada to the economies of Phoenix and Southern California, 
and to global markets; creating opportunities to expand our 
manufacturing capabilities.  
During the two-year study, stakeholder and public engagement 
was solicited at every step.  In total, 750 representatives from 
more than 350 Stakeholder Partner organizations participated 
in 61 meetings and events. Over 650 individuals attended 
the 10 public meetings conducted at different times and 
locations throughout the study area.   Additionally, nearly 3,000 
comments were received through virtual meetings and online 
submissions. Critical next steps include construction of the I-11 Boulder City Bypass and 
initiating advanced planning studies to determine a preferred corridor and system-wide 
improvements in the Las Vegas metropolitan area.  

Freight Assessment:
  The Nevada Department of Transportation’s new freight assessment will pave the way 
for future freight and transportation enhancements to support Nevada’s economy.

The Freight assessment report evaluates key Nevada economics indictors and the state’s 
approximately 110 million tons of annual truck, rail, air and pipeline freight commerce to 

identify areas for potential future grown and development. It also serves as a building 
block for creating the Nevada Freight Plan that will detail potential projects to 

Continued on next page

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

24

reduce freight bottlenecks and enhance 
Nevada commerce, such as new truck 
climbing lanes, roadside electronic signs 
displaying the amount of truck parking 

available and other freight corridor improvements

Emergency Management/Homeland Security 
	 Devastating	floods,	massive	earthquakes	and	terrorist	attacks	are	just	some	of	the	
threats could endanger the citizens and visitors of Nevada, put motorists at risk and threaten 
the transportation infrastructure on which the state relies.  To prepare, NDOT continually 
trains for non-routine emergencies which could imperil our state.  This year, NDOT partnered 
with the Washoe County and Nevada Divisions of Emergency Management along with 
several other agencies to participate in 10 emergency exercises that taught NDOT staff to 
quickly and effectively come together to protect Nevadans and the state’s infrastructure.  
Here are some of the emergency exercises:
Operation Lock and Roll: This exercise simulated an active shooter scenario in the NDOT 
Headquarters building and tested NDOT’s security response to such an incident.
Operation	Northern,	Southern	and	Eastern	Burst	and	ARkstorm:		These	heavy	rain/flooding	
scenarios used Districts I, II and III’s annex buildings to test NDOT’s Emergency Operations 
Plan and coordination with Road Operations and Emergency Operation Centers.
Tremor-14: This training exercise simulated an earthquake scenario near a radioactive 
storage facility at the Nevada National Security Site.
California/Nevada Cross Border TTX: The training scenario simulated a Mt. Rose 
earthquake fault erupting and causing a tsunami on Lake Tahoe in northern Nevada.  The 
table top exercise tested all governmental agencies in the Tahoe Basin.

Roadside Litter Removal: 
 NDOT’s Sponsor-A-Highway program allows 
community-minded	firms	and	organizations	to	
remove	litter	on	high	traffic	volume	urban	freeways	
in the Las Vegas and Reno areas.  The highly 
successful Southern Nevada program shows 78 
percent of eligible Las Vegas area segments are 
currently sponsored and cleaned at least twice 
each month.  The results: safer and cleaner 
roadways with reliable litter removal which saves 
the state an estimated $450,000 per year. A 
similar program is being developed in northwest 
Nevada. Starting this year, the program is expanding to include twice monthly cleaning of 
interchanges in addition to more than 200 miles of freeway mainline shoulders.
As	a	sister	program,	Adopt-A-Highway	now	has	495	non-profit	organizations	removing	litter	
at	least	four	times	per	year	along	the	shoulders	of	some	1,150	miles	of	low	traffic	rural	and	
suburban roads and highways. The program recognizes participants with commemorative 
signs installed at the adopted section of highway.  

Rest Area Renovations 
 Here in Nevada, the state’s 36 welcome stations, rest areas and rest stops are important 
elements of our transportation system. The average age of our rest areas is approximately 
37 years old. Partnering together, the Nevada Departments of Cultural Affairs, Tourism and 
Transportation plan to renovate certain rest area facilities and build others that not only 
serve our state’s traveling public, but help market our state and foster statewide pride   
          and appreciation for the state’s natural and historical resources, as well.  

Operational Improvements

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

25

Zero Fatalities  
	 Overall,	Nevada	traffic	fatalities	have	continued	to	decline	
since	2006.		But	one	traffic	death	is	too	many.		To	help	reach	
the Zero Fatalities goal, the Nevada Strategic Highway Safety 
Plan is being updated with additional life-savings strategies, 
including	specifics	for	bicyclists,	pedestrians	and	motorcyclists.	
The	plan	was	first	developed	in	2006,	including	traffic	
engineering, enforcement, education and emergency response 
strategies that are right now being used to save lives. 
As	part	of	our	educational	outreach,	NDOT	and	the	Nevada	Office	of	Traffic	Safety	have	
further teamed up to provide powerful, cohesive and instantly–recognizable Zero Fatalities 
public education campaigns that have thus far reached 95% of Nevadans. 

Railroad Safety Improvements 
 Across the state of Nevada there are approximately 415 rail crossings.  Safety is the 
primary focus where these important commercial and passenger rail lines intersect roads 

and pedestrian crossings.  While Nevada 
continues to rank low in the nation for 
crossing crashes, each rail crossing is 
inspected every three years for roadway 
surface, sight distance, signing, lighting 
and more.  
This year, NDOT is improving safety by 
installing new crossing surfaces, overhead 
warning lights and additional median gate 
arms throughout the state.

    . 

Signalized Intersection Crossings 
  Nevada has implemented 
Pedestrian Countdown Signals at many 
intersections across the state.  These 
systems provide pedestrians with the 
remaining seconds available to walk 
in a crosswalk to the other side of an 
intersection and have been associated 
with a reduction in pedestrian-vehicle 
injuries.   

Safety Improvements

Continued on next page

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

26

Retro-reflective Borders and Stop Sign Flashing Beacons 
 Accidents involving vehicles running red lights and stop signs cause more than 200,000 
crashes, 170,000 injuries and approximately 900 deaths per year nationwide. NDOT has 
begun	using	retro-reflective	borders	on	certain	existing	traffic	signals	to	increase	their	visibility,	
particularly at night or in low visibility. 
The simple, inexpensive back plate is 
helping reduce crashes by improving 
driver	awareness	of	traffic	signals.	
 Flashing beacons are also 
helping to reduce crashes.  Mostly 
used in rural/unlit   
          intersections, the beacons are 
placed above an existing stop sign, 
advising drivers of       an 
upcoming stop.  NDOT has installed 
more 200 of the devices throughout 
Nevada.  

Expanded Milepost Markers 
 As a pilot project, NDOT is reviewing enhanced mile markers on several state routes 
throughout	Nevada.		For	increased	visibility	and	road	safety,	these	new	mileposts	stand	five	
feet taller than the roadway surface, and with dimensions of 18 by 54 inches, are more than 
twice as large as existing mile markers.  The larger size allows easier reading of milepost 

locations, which can be particularly 
important in locating motorist location 
during emergency or crash response 
situations.

Safety Improvements

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

27

Steel and rock cactus sculptures with 
red and yellow glass “fruits” at I-15 
and Cactus interchange in Las Vegas

Metal and concrete cactus shapes on the 
abutment walls for the new I-15 and Cactus 
interchange project in Las Vegas.

Landscape and Aesthetics

 Beautiful, site-
appropriate highways 
contribute to Nevada’s 
economic vitality and 
enhance the quality of life 
of its residents.  

 The addition of of 
landscape and aesthetic 
features to our roadway 
projects adds to the 
state’s economic development efforts by 
employing professionals from landscape 
architects to artists. Projects also create 
opportunities in many currently struggling 
fields	such	as	construction	by	employing	operators,	welders,	metal	and	concrete	workers,	
masons, painters and landscapers. 

	 In	addition	to	job	creation,	the	program	helps	prevent	graffiti,	reduces	erosion,	improves	
air quality, restores native vegetation, and protects our wildlife.

 Funding for landscape and aesthetics is included in projects where capacity is being 
added or for new construction. Up to 3 percent of the construction cost can be directed 
toward landscape and aesthetics.

 Naturalistic treatments along rural highways and art installations at highly visible urban 
areas are both included under Landscape and Aesthetics.
 
        Most importantly, 

the program supports 
the NDOT’s vision for 
the highway system as 
outlined in its Master 
Plan for Landscape and 
Aesthetics,	“A	Pattern	
and Palette of Place.” For 
more details about the 
Landscape and Aesthetics 
Program, visit 

www.nevadadot.com.

Continued on next page

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

28

Landscape and Aesthetics

Maintenance yard access/
screening on Flamingo and 
I-515 project in Las Vegas 

Local Bird Viewing Preserve 
images on the decorative rock 
gabion walls and soundwalls for 
the I-515 @ Flamingo.

Salvaged cactus for 
replanting on the Boulder 
City Bypass project 

Metal screens  
representing  the 
local bird viewing  
preserve for the 
I-515 @ Flamingo.

Salvaged	  cactus	  for	  replan2ng	  on	  the	  Boulder	  City	  Bypass	  project	  	  

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

29

 There are two federal-aid highway systems: the National Highway System (NHS) and 
the Surface Transportation Program (STP). Most roads maintained by NDOT, and some 
maintained by other agencies, are federal-aid highways. Federal-aid highways carry the 
most	traffic.
  

 NDOT Locally Statewide   
 Maintained  Maintained Total

                   Federal Aid
                   NHS 2,394 154 2,548

STP 2,393 7,936 10,329
    
Non-Federal Aid    
Other Improved 606 14,137 14,743
Unimproved  0 12,509 12,509
    
Total 5,393 34,736 40,129

Roadway System Mileage (Centerline Miles)

Total Roadway System Mileage Maintained By NDOT
(5,393  Centerline Miles)

Interstate
Routes

(NHS): 589

Other
(NHS): 1,805

Other
Improved

Roads: 606

STP: 2,393

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

30

System Definitions

NATIONAL HIGHWAY SYSTEM (NHS)

The NHS is a system of major federal-aid roads including all Interstate 
Routes, principal arterials, the defense strategic highway network, and 
strategic connectors. Interstate Routes connect the principal metropolitan 
areas and industrial centers of America, serve the national defense, and 
connect suitable border points. The Interstate Routes, along with the other 
routes of the National Highway System, form the backbone of America’s 
highway network.

 SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM (STP)

The STP includes federal-aid roadways that are not on the NHS but are 
functionally	classified	as	principal	arterials,	minor	arterials,	major	collectors,	
and urban collectors. Generally, these roadways link other improved roads to 
the	NHS.	Federal	aid	for	the	STP	is	flexible,	and	may	be	used	for	both	NHS	
and STP roads.

OTHER IMPROVED ROADS

Improved roads that are not part of the NHS or STP are functionally 
classified	mainly	as	local	or	rural	minor	collectors.	These	roads	provide	
access to the NHS and STP. They are public facilities which are regularly 
maintained, but may be paved or unpaved. On the NDOT-maintained 
system, these roads include access, frontage, and state park roads. The
cities and counties maintain improved roads that generally adjoin homes, 
businesses, and farms. Roads in this category are not eligible for federal aid, 
but do qualify for Nevada’s gas tax distributions.

UNIMPROVED ROADS

Unimproved	roads	are	functionally	classified	as	locals	but	are	not	regularly	
maintained.	They	carry	a	low	volume	of	traffic	and	do	not	qualify	for	federal	
aid or Nevada’s gas tax distributions. 

FE
D

E
R

A
L 

A
ID

N
O

N
-F

E
D

E
R

A
L 

A
ID

IM
P

R
O

V
E

D
 R

O
A

D
S

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

31

NDOT Maintained
Pavement Condition

Note: System miles above may not match those on page 29 because not all roads have 
had their condition rated.

*Data is collected every two years.

      NHS Interstate  NHS Other               STP & Other

3500

3000

2500

2000

1500

1000

500

0

C
e
n

te
r
li
n

e
 M

il
e
s

Excellent (Preventive Maintenance) Good (Corrective Maintenance) Fair (Overlay)

233

1,701

683

643

214
377

331

354

113 441

113

Condition (Required Treatment)
CENTERLINE MILES BY SYSTEM - 2013*

Highway System

86
87

219 329 334 
197 

406 

1,020 
19 

174 

172 

129 

922 

1,375 

0 

500 

1,000 

1,500 

2,000 

2,500 

3,000 

3,500 

NHS Interstate NHS Other STP & Other 

C
e

n
t
e

r
li

n
e

 M
il

e
s

 

Highway System 

NDOT-Maintained Pavement Condition 
 

CENTERLINE MILES BY SYSTEM - 2013 
 

Condition (Required Treatment) 

Excellent (Preventive Maintenance) Good (Corrective Maintenance) Fair (Overlay) Poor (Reconstruction) 

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

32

Vehicle Miles of Travel  Twenty percent of all 
Nevada’s roads are on the 
state-maintained system. 
However, this 20 percent 
carries 52 percent of the 
total vehicle miles of travel. 
The remaining 48 percent 
of travel is on systems 
maintained by county, city 
or other governmental 
agencies. The vehicle miles 
of travel on all Nevada 
roads has grown from 
14 billion in 1995 to 23.6 
billion in 2013.

2013 Miles of Improved Road By County

2013 Vehicle Miles of Travel by County

NDOT
5,393
Miles

27,620 Total Miles Of 
Improved Road

23.6 Billion Total
Vehicle Miles Traveled

NDOT; 
12.2 Billion

Local;
11.4 Billion

998	  

2,092	  

79	  

1,074	  

2,745	  

324	  

659	  

2,793	  

1,192	  

1,001	  

906	  

469	  

1,286	  

273	  

5,552	  

512	  

271	  

410	  

358	  

14	  

213	  

576	  

206	  

248	  

354	  

280	  

345	  

195	  

237	  

718	  

105	  

763	  

341	  

31	  

0	   1,000	   2,000	   3,000	   4,000	   5,000	   6,000	  

WHITE	  PINE	  

WASHOE	  

STOREY	  

PERSHING	  

NYE	  

MINERAL	  

LYON	  

LINCOLN	  

LANDER	  

HUMBOLDT	  

EUREKA	  

ESMERALDA	  

ELKO	  

DOUGLAS	  

CLARK	  

CHURCHILL	  

CARSON	  CITY	  

2013	  MILES	  OF	  IMPROVED	  ROAD	  BY	  COUNTY	  

NDOT	  MAINTAINED	  

LOCALLY	  MAINTAINED	  

998	  

2,092	  

79	  

1,074	  

2,745	  

324	  

659	  

2,793	  

1,192	  

1,001	  

906	  

469	  

1,286	  

273	  

5,552	  

512	  

271	  

410	  

358	  

14	  

213	  

576	  

206	  

248	  

354	  

280	  

345	  

195	  

237	  

718	  

105	  

763	  

341	  

31	  

0	   1,000	   2,000	   3,000	   4,000	   5,000	   6,000	  

WHITE	  PINE	  

WASHOE	  

STOREY	  

PERSHING	  

NYE	  

MINERAL	  

LYON	  

LINCOLN	  

LANDER	  

HUMBOLDT	  

EUREKA	  

ESMERALDA	  

ELKO	  

DOUGLAS	  

CLARK	  

CHURCHILL	  

CARSON	  CITY	  

2013	  MILES	  OF	  IMPROVED	  ROAD	  BY	  COUNTY	  

NDOT	  MAINTAINED	  

LOCALLY	  MAINTAINED	  

41.9	  

1,306	  

28	  

29	  

276	  

11	  

72	  

28	  

20	  

89	  

23	  

18	  

123	  

75	  

9,375	  

50	  

180	  

130	  

2,070	  

10	  

225	  

420	  

112	  

353	  

98	  

106	  

279	  

119	  

79	  

598	  

333	  

6,465	  

247	  

186	  

0.0	   1,000.0	   2,000.0	   3,000.0	   4,000.0	   5,000.0	   6,000.0	   7,000.0	   8,000.0	   9,000.0	   10,000.0	  

WHITE	  PINE	  

WASHOE	  

STOREY	  

PERSHING	  

NYE	  

MINERAL	  

LYON	  

LINCOLN	  

LANDER	  

HUMBOLDT	  

EUREKA	  

ESMERALDA	  

ELKO	  

DOUGLAS	  

CLARK	  

CHURCHILL	  

CARSON	  CITY	  

2013	  VEHICLE	  MILES	  OF	  TRAVEL	  BY	  COUNTY	  
(IN	  MILLIONS	  OF	  VEHICLE	  MILES	  TRAVELED)	  

NDOT	  MAINTAINED	  

LOCALLY	  MAINTAINED	  

998	  

2,092	  

79	  

1,074	  

2,745	  

324	  

659	  

2,793	  

1,192	  

1,001	  

906	  

469	  

1,286	  

273	  

5,552	  

512	  

271	  

410	  

358	  

14	  

213	  

576	  

206	  

248	  

354	  

280	  

345	  

195	  

237	  

718	  

105	  

763	  

341	  

31	  

0	   1,000	   2,000	   3,000	   4,000	   5,000	   6,000	  

WHITE	  PINE	  

WASHOE	  

STOREY	  

PERSHING	  

NYE	  

MINERAL	  

LYON	  

LINCOLN	  

LANDER	  

HUMBOLDT	  

EUREKA	  

ESMERALDA	  

ELKO	  

DOUGLAS	  

CLARK	  

CHURCHILL	  

CARSON	  CITY	  

2013	  MILES	  OF	  IMPROVED	  ROAD	  BY	  COUNTY	  

NDOT	  MAINTAINED	  

LOCALLY	  MAINTAINED	  

Locally
Maintained
22,227 Miles

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

33

 A	bridge	is	defined	as	an	obstacle-spanning	structure	of	20	feet	or	more	
in length. Currently, there are 1,959 bridges inspected by the Nevada 
Department of Transportation (NDOT) in the interest of public safety. 
Federally-owned bridges are inspected by the respective Federal agencies 

(i.e. USFS, BLM). NDOT maintains 1,154 bridges; 795 bridges are maintained by county, city, 
other local agencies, railroad or other state agencies; and 10 bridges are privately maintained.

What makes a bridge structurally deficient?
	 Bridges	are	considered	structurally	deficient	if	significant	load-carrying	elements	are	in	
poor	or	worse	condition.	A	deficient	bridge	requires	significant	maintenance	and	repair	to	
remain in service and eventual rehabilitation or replacement. Regular inspections identify 
unsafe conditions at which time the bridge will be closed.

How does a bridge become functionally obsolete?
	 Functional	obsolescence	is	a	significant	difference	between	the	existing	bridge	and	
geometrics required by current design standards. As an example, a bridge designed in the 
1930’s	might	be	significantly	narrower	than	a	bridge	designed	today.

What do we mean by a seismic deficiency?
 Older bridges weren’t always designed with earthquakes in 
mind.	These	bridges	are	considered	seismically	deficient	and	
need	seismic	retrofits	to	bring	them	up	to	current	earthquake-
resistant standards.

 The state-
maintained system 
also carries 65 
percent of all truck 
traffic	and	82	
percent of the heavy 
truck	traffic.

Truck Miles of Travel

Bridges

State-Maintained 
Bridges Needing 
Renovation by 

Deficiency

Truck Miles of Travel

Year

Tr
u

ck
 M

ile
s 

(I
n

 M
ill

io
n

s)

Locally Maintained

Seismic 97

Structural 15

Functional 189

366 368 340 466 542
529

452

568

522
469 572

1,200
1,300
1,400
1,500
1,600
1,700
1,800
1,900
2,000
2,100
2,200

n M
illi

on
s)

ANNUAL VEHICLE MILES OF TRAVEL - TRUCK

State Maintained Non State Maintained

1,579 1,588 1,626 1,577 1,536
1,436

1,244
1,391

1,221 1,134 1,079

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1,000
1,100

,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Tr
uc

k M
ile

s (
in

1,579

366

1,588

368

1,626

340

1,577

466

1,536

542

1,436

529

1,244

452

1,391

568

1,221

522

1,134

469

1,079

572

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

34

Transportation Financing

General
 State highways maintained by the Nevada 
Department	of	Transportation	are	financed	with	
highway-user revenue and federal funds. No 
General Fund (general tax) revenue is normally 
used. State and federal highway funds are 
principally derived from vehicle fuel tax and 
registration fees.

Federal Highway Trust Fund
 Fuel tax and other highway-user revenue 
collected by the federal government are 
placed in the Federal Highway Trust Fund 
(HTF).  Congress allocates these funds to the states per provisions in the Moving Ahead for 
Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21) passed in 2012, and annual appropriation bills. 
HTF is the main source of funding for most of the programs in MAP-21.
Federal funds are available only for reimbursements of expenditures on approved projects. 
Federal aid is not available for routine maintenance, administration, or other non-project 
related costs. To acquire federal funds, the state generally must pay 5 to 20% of the project’s 
cost.

State Constitutional Provisions
	 Article	9,	Section	5	of	the	Nevada	Constitution	provides:	“The	proceeds	from	the	
imposition of any license or registration fee and other charges with respect to the operation 
of any motor vehicle upon any public highway in the State and the proceeds from the 
imposition of any excise tax on gasoline or other vehicle fuel shall, except costs of 
administration, be used exclusively for the construction, maintenance, and repair of the 
public highways of this state.”

State Highway Fund
    The State Highway Fund was established 

by NRS 408.235. It is a special revenue fund 
established to account for the receipt and 
expenditure of dedicated highway-user revenue. 
The	majority	of	the	Highway	Fund	finances	the	
Department of Transportation. However, the 
bulk of the operating costs of the Department 
of Motor Vehicles and the Department of Public 
Safety	are	also	financed	by	appropriations	from	

the Highway Fund. Typically, there are also 
minor appropriations or transfers to other 
agencies for their services, including the 
Department of Administration, the Attorney 
General, the Public Works Board, and the 
Transportation Services Authority.

All over Nevada, NDOT employees are 
determined to build and maintain a top 
transportation system for the state.

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

35

2014 model year, large sedan with V-6 which gets 25 MPG. Vehicle travels 10,000 miles 
annually. Gas price used was $3.40 per gallon. Based on Nevada’s gas tax and licensing fees

Average Gas Tax Per Vehicle-Mile-Traveled (VMT) is approximately 2.0 cents.

         Variable Costs:  20.2¢ per mile traveled.
     Includes gas, gas tax, oil, tires and maintenance

         Fixed Costs:   73.7¢ per mile traveled.
	 	 	 	 	 Includes	depreciation,	insurance,	finance	and	l
     icensing fees

         Total Operating Costs: 93.9¢ per mile traveled

Source: American Automobile Association’s
“Your	Driving	Costs	2014”	and

www.fueleconomy.gov

Passenger Car Operating Costs
(Expressed In Cents Per Mile Of Travel)

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

36

Gas Tax (Per Gallon)

1. Federal
 15.44¢ To Federal Highway Trust Fund for highways.

 2.86¢ To Federal Highway Trust Fund for transit.

 0.1¢ Leaking underground storage tank trust   
  fund.        

 18.4¢ Total Federal Gasoline Tax

2. State
 17.650¢ (NRS 365.175) This represents    
  the State Highway Fund’s share of the

  gas tax. It is administered by NDOT.

 0.750¢  (NRS 590.840) For cleanup of petroleum  
  discharges.

 0.055¢ (NRS 590.120) Inspection fee for

  imported gasoline.

 18.455¢ Total State Gasoline Tax

3. County Mandatory
 1.25¢ (NRS 365.180 and NRS 365.550)

  Apportioned to counties: 2/3 per population and 1/3 per locally maintained road miles,  
  except no county will receive less than they received in FY 2003. Used   
   for bond service, road construction maintenance and repair – not for administration.

  2.35¢       (NRS 365.180 and NRS 365.550) Apportioned to counties: 2/3 per population  
  and 1/3 per locally maintained road miles. In a county with incorporated cities,  
  the counties and cities split the tax proceeds internally: 1/4 per land area,1/4

  per population, 1/4 per locally maintained road mile, and 1/4 per vehicle miles  
  of travel. No county or city will receive less than they received in FY 2005.

  Used for bond service, road construction, maintenance and repair – not for  
  administration.

    1.75¢  (NRS 365.190 and NRS 365.560) Returned to county of origin.  Apportioned  
  between the county, towns with town boards (NRS 269) and incorporated cities  
  according to property valuation. County valuation includes property within
  towns/cities. Used for bond service, road construction, maintenance and 
  repair – not for administration.

 1¢  (NRS 365.192 and NRS 365.196) Returned to 
  county of origin. Apportioned by county to 
  unincorporated areas and incorporated cities by population.  
  Used only to repair or restore existing county/city roads and streets.

           6.35¢  Total County Mandatory Tax

Legal Citation Chapter 365, Nevada 
Revised Statutes

State 18.455¢Federal 18.4¢

County
Optional
up to 9¢

County
Mandatory

6.35¢

Total: Up to 52.205¢ per gallon statewide
Not Including Inflation Index

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

37

Gas Tax (Per Gallon)
4. County Optional
 
 Up to 9¢ (NRS 373.030) Administered by the local Regional Transportation Commission
  The maximum tax authorized is 9¢ per gallon. The rate in each county is shown  
  below:
     9¢ Carson City, Churchill, Clark, Elko, Eureka, Humboldt, Lander, Lyon, Mineral,  
   Pershing, Washoe, and White Pine;
     4¢ Douglas, Esmeralda, Lincoln, Nye, Storey

Inflation Indexing

       Nevada Revised Statutes (N.R.S. i.e. Nevada law) allow counties within certain 
population	criteria	to	index	fuel	taxes	to	offset	the	effects	of	inflation	on	spending	power	for	
construction and maintenance of highways. (N.R.S. 373.065, 373.066, 373.0663) Currently, 
all	counties	meeting	the	population	criteria	may	index	fuel	taxes	for	inflation,	but	only	Clark	
County and Washoe County have implemented these provisions.

History

 1923 2.0¢                          $60,000  +   
 1935 4.0¢  4.0¢
 1947 5.5¢  4.0¢ 1.5¢
1)- 1955 6.05¢  4.55¢ 1.5¢
 1965        6.05¢ 1.0¢ 4.55¢ 1.5¢   1.0¢
 1966 6.05¢ 1.0¢ 4.55¢ 1.5¢   1.0¢
 1979 6.05¢ 4.0¢ 4.55¢ 1.5¢      2.0¢ 2.0¢ 
 1981 11.05¢ 4.0¢ 8.05¢ 3.0¢   4.0¢ 
 1982 12.05¢ 4.0¢ 9.05¢ 3.0¢ 4.0¢ 
 1985 13.05¢ 5.0¢ 10.05¢        3.0¢  1.0¢ 4.0¢ 
 1987 16.05¢ 5.0¢ 11.77¢      4.28¢  1.0¢ 4.0¢ 
 1988 18.05¢ 5.0¢ 12.70¢      5.35¢  1.0¢ 4.0¢ 
2)- 1989 18.655¢ 10.0¢ * * 13.305¢ 5.35¢ 1.0¢  4.0¢ 5.0¢ 
 1991 22.155¢ 9.0¢ * * 15.805¢ 6.35¢   9.0¢ 
 1992 24.655¢ 9.0¢  * * 18.305¢ 6.35¢   9.0¢
 1995 24.805¢ 9.0¢ * * * 18.455¢ 6.35¢   9.0¢
 2003 24.805¢ >9.0¢ * * * 18.455¢      6.35¢ 3) varies  9.0¢

Balance to County Admin Costs   Rd Bond Redemption 

(Clark  & Washoe C0. only)
(Extended to all County’s w/RTC)

State
Share

Total Collections
Mandatory/ Optional  

RTC 
Option *         

RTC
Option # 

County
Share

County
Option*

County
Option # 

# By Ordinance
*  Voter Approval
* * 0.6¢ to State Petroleum Cleanup Trust Fund
* * * 0.75¢ to State Petroleum Cleanup Trust Fund

1)- 0.05¢ to Inspection Fee to 1989
2)- 0.055¢ to Inspection Fee since 1989
3)- Rate indexed to inflation
> means "more than"

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

38

Special-Fuel Tax (Per Gallon)

Diesel

Federal Tax  24.4 ¢

State Tax  27.75 ¢

Propane (Liquefied Petroleum Gas)

Federal Tax  18.3 ¢

State Tax  22 ¢

Methane (Compressed Natural Gas)

Federal Tax  18.3 ¢

State Tax  21 ¢

Legal Citation Chapter 366, Nevada Revised Statutes

Year               Total Tax

1923  2.0¢
1935   4.0¢
1951   5.0¢
1953   5.5¢
1955   6.0¢
1981   10.5¢
1982   12.0¢
1985   13.0¢
1987   17.0¢   Natural and propane gas used as motor fuel @ 11.72¢
1988   20.0¢   Natural and propane gas used as motor fuel @ 12.65¢
1989   *20.6¢  Natural gas used as motor fuel @ 18.0¢

Propane gas used as motor fuel @ 20.0¢
1990   *22.6¢  Natural gas used as motor fuel @ 18.0¢

Propane gas used as motor fuel @ 22.0¢
1991   *25.1¢  Natural gas used as motor fuel @ 20.5¢

Propane gas used as motor fuel @ 20.5¢
1992   *27.6¢  Natural gas used as motor fuel @ 23.0¢

Propane gas used as motor fuel @ 23.0¢
1995   **27.75¢  Natural gas used as motor fuel @ 23.0¢

Propane gas used as motor fuel @ 23.0¢
1997   **27.75 Natural gas used as motor fuel @ 21.0¢

Propane gas used as motor fuel @ 22.0¢
Emulsified	water-phased	hydrocarbon	fuel	@	19.0¢

2009	 Inflation	index	based	on	lesser	of	7.8	percent	or	PPI	for	Street	&	Highway	
Construction imposed in Washoe County only on State & Federal special fuel 
tax rates. See Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 373.066) for details.

  
   * 0.60¢ to petroleum clean-up fund
** 0.75¢ to petroleum clean-up fund

History

Distribution (Cents Per Gallon)

Diesel 21.44 2.86 0.1 27.0 0.75

Propane 16.17 2.13 0 22.0

Methane 17.07 1.23 0 21.0

Fuel 
Highway 
Account 

Highway 
Fund

Mass
Transit

Account

Petroleum
Clean-Up

Federal Highway
Trust Fund

Leaking 
Underground

Storage
Tank

 State

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

39

Vehicle Registration and Permit Fees

 $33  for automobiles, RV’s and Motor Homes
 $39 for motorcycles
 $27 for travel trailers
 $33 for trucks, truck tractors, or buses less than 6,000 lbs. DGVW*
 $38  for trucks, truck tractors, or buses between 6,000 and 8,499 lbs. DGVW
 $48  for trucks, truck tractors, or buses between 8,500 and 10,000 lbs. DGVW
 $12  per 1,000 lbs. for units between 10,001 and 26,000  lbs. DGVW
 $17  per 1,000 lbs. for motor-carrier units between 26,001 and 80,000 lbs. DGVW  
  (maximum fee is $1,360). Interstate motor-carriers prorate this fee and pay only  
  on the percentage of miles driven in Nevada.

 $60 per 1,000 lbs. exceeding 80,000 lbs. for reducible-load units between 80,000  
  and 129,000 lbs. DGVW (maximum fee is $2,940)
 $10 for overlength vehicles (longer than 70') carrying
  reducible loads not exceeding 80,000 lbs. DGVW 
 $60 for non-reducible loads carried on over legal-size or weight vehicles.

* Declared Gross Vehicle Weight

Legal Citation  Chapters 482, 484, & 706 Nevada Revised Statutes 

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

40

Governmental Services Tax,
Driver’s License, And Title Fees

GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES TAX

Legal Citation Chapter 371, Nevada Revised Statutes

Current Annual Rates
 Basic rate:  4% of vehicle’s depreciated assessed valuation. (Initial valuation of the
 vehicle is 35% of the manufacturer’s suggested retail price, without accessories.)

 Optional supplemental rate:  1% of vehicle’s depreciated assessed valuation in Clark,  
 Churchill, and White Pine counties.

Distribution
	 Basic	Governmental	Services	Tax:	for	vehicles	registered	at	a	DMV	office,	94%
 is distributed to local governments and 6% to the State Highway Fund as a collection  
	 commission.	For	vehicles	registered	at	a	County	Assessor's	office,	99%	is	distributed
 to local governments and the State Highway Fund receives 1%. Local governments
 use the funds primarily for schools and current debt service.
 
 Supplemental Governmental Services Tax: is an additional fee for vehicles in Clark,
 Churchill and White Pine counties. The funds are returned to those counties to be  
	 used	specifically	for	road	construction.

DRIVER’S LICENSE FEES

(4-year renewable)

Legal Citation
 Chapter 483, Nevada Revised Statutes

Current Rates

 $22.25  for operating passenger cars 

 $17.25  for persons 65 or older

 $8.25 for a motorcycle endorsement

 $87.25  for operating commercial vehicles

 

TITLE FEE
(one-time fee)

 $28.25 all vehicles (new title)

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

41

State Highway Fund
Revenue Sources

(2014 Revenue Shown in Millions)

**Federal Aid Revenue
Total $330.8

Administered by the
FHWA

Bonds &
Other Revenue

Total $219.9
Administered by NDOT

2014 State Highway Fund Revenue
Total $984.5

Administered by NDOT

State Motor Vehicle Fund
Total $718.5

Administered by the
Nevada DMV

State Gasoline Tax Revenue 
Total $435.6
Administered by the

Nevada DMV

County Taxes,
Licenses & Fees

$287.0

Optional
County Tax

$104.7

Registration 
Fees

$104.7

($246.0) S
tate M

otor V
ehicle Taxes to the H

ighw
ay F

und

Motor
Carrier
Fees
$39.0

Special
Fuel Tax

$74.4

Washoe County 
Inflation

Index On Gas 
Taxes
$32.3

Clark County
Inflation

Index On Gas 
Taxes
$11.8

State Gas
Tax

(to Highway
Fund)
$187.8

Jet Fuel Tax
$14.2

Mandatory
County Tax

$67.5

Other Agencies;
Refunds, Admin.

$4.3

Petroleum
Cleanup

Fees
$12.9

Note: Authorized revenue represents a 
portion of fees collected by DMV and 
the DPS which, by law, they keep to 
cover operating costs.**FHWA

17.65¢
Per

Gallon

18.44¢
Per

Gallon

Tire Tax
$3.3

Heavy
Vehicle
Use Tax
$14.12

Misc. Fed.
Funding

$0.1

State Gas
Tax

$187.8

Sale of Surplus
Property

$0.4

Interest
$0.6

Other Sales &
Reimbursements

$18.1

Appropriations
From Other
Funds $0.3

DMV & Public
Safety Auth.

Revenue
$72.2

AB 595
Property Tax

$19.0
Agreement

Income
$9.3AB 595

Bond Revenue
$0.0

Bond Receipts
$100.0

Bonds and
Other Revenue

$219.9

State Motor Vehicle
Taxes
$246.0

Sales Tax
Collection

$29.5

Driver’s
License

Fees
$23.1

General 
Fund

Allocations
$62.3

Various DMV
Fees,

Specialty 
Plate Fees,
Emmissions 

Control
Etc., $83.1

Federal Aid
Highways

$324.8

Gas Tax
$207.4

Special
Fuel

Taxes
$79.1

Truck & 
Trailer

Sales Tax
$31.4

Federal Aid
Transit, Rail
& Aviation

$5.9

Washoe
County Special

Fuel Index
$8.3
Clark

County Special
Fuel Index

$2.3

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

42

0 

200 

400 

600 

800 

1,000 

1,200 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Fiscal Year 

Bonds & Other Revenue Federal Aid Revenue State Gas and Motor Vehicle Taxes  Total 

Total State Highway 
Fund Revenue

 Total State Highway Fund Revenue
 (In Millions)

  
 State Federal Aid State Gas and Bonds & Other 
 Fiscal Year Revenue Motor Vehicle Taxes Revenue Total 
 
 2003 185.9 375.2 285.1 846.2 
 2004 215.0 398.9 88.7 702.6 
 2005 206.4 423.6 342.4 972.4 
 2006 223.2 448.2 343.5 1,014.9 
 2007 314.2 459.6 356.4 1,130.2 
 2008 234.4 453.3 298.0 985.7
 2009 344.9 421.1 171.4 937.4
 2010 391.5 418.2 179.0 988.7 
 2011 374.2 418.9 291.2 1,084.3
 2012 466.7 421.7 150.7 1,039.1
 2013 350.8 424.1 134.1 909.0
 2014 330.8 433.8 219.9 984.5 
 

(Administered by the Department of Transportation)

Total State Highway Fund Revenue

Note 1:   Total revenue is net to the state highway fund
Note 2:   Other revenue includes interest income, cooperative construction reimbursement, DMV & DPS
 authorized revenue, “AB 595” revenue, and miscellaneous sales and reimbursements
Note 3:   The Federal-Aid Revenue shown includes monies for highways, transit, aviation, and other programs

Total

M
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
D

o
lla

rs

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

43

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

400 

450 

500 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Fiscal Year 

Petroleum Cleanup Fee Other Agencies, Refunds, Admin. Jet Fuel Tax 

Mandatory County Gas Tax Optional County Gas Tax State Gas Tax 

Total Washoe County Inflation Index On Gas Taxes Clark County Inflation Index On Gas Taxes 

State Gasoline Tax
Revenue

State Gasoline Tax Revenue

 State Gasoline Tax Revenue
 (In Millions)

  
 Fiscal State Gas Mandatory Optional County Jet Petroleum    
 Year Tax County County Index on Fuel Cleanup Other* Total
   Gas Tax  Gas Tax Motor Fuel Tax Tax Fee 
 2003 176.6 64.6 87.1  12.0 0.0 3.8 344.1 
 2004 184.5 67.6 92.4  12.7 11.5 4.6 373.3 
 2005 190.8 69.7 96.3  13.4 12.5 3.7 386.4 
 2006 197.7 72.3 100.9  14.5 0.0 3.0 388.4 
 2007 200.2 73.0 102.6  14.5 2.5 14.9 407.6 
 2008 197.6 72.1 102.5  14.8 0.2 5.0 392.1 
 2009 189.9 69.2 94.9 4.6 13.0 12.6 3.9 388.0
 2010 186.1 66.9 92.9 7.6 12.1 12.2 4.9 382.7 
 2011 186.2 66.9 92.6 18.1 11.4 12.3 5.0 392.5
 2012 185.2 66.6 92.0 19.7 11.5 12.7 4.8 392.5
 2013 185.7 66.8 92.5 25.6 15.2 12.7 4.7 403.0
 2014 187.8 67.5 104.7 44.1 14.2 12.9 4.3 435.6 
  *Includes Petroleum Inspection Fees, Aviation Fuel Tax, and other Gasoline Tax                                           

distributions.
  Note: Revenue in shaded column goes into state highway fund. 

Total

State Gas Tax

M
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
D

o
lla

rs

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

44

0 

100 

200 

300 

400 

500 

600 

700 

800 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

M
il
li
o

n
s
 o

f 
D

o
ll
a
rs

 

Fiscal Year 

State Motor Vehicle Fund Revenue 
(State & County Taxes, Licenses, and Fees)  

Sales Tax Collections DMV Fees and Commissions State Motor Vehicle Taxes  

County Taxes Licenses and Fees General Fund Allocations Total 

State Motor Vehicle Fund
(Taxes,Licenses & Fees Revenue)

 State Motor Vehicle Fund 
(Taxes, Licenses, and Fees Revenue) (In Millions)

  
 Fiscal State Motor County Taxes Sales Tax General Specia Fuel DMV Fees  
 Year Vehicle Lic. & Collections Fund Inflation and Total
  Taxes Fees   Allocation Index Commissions 
 2003 198.6 239.0 45.4   52.9 535.9 
 2004 214.4 267.0 54.7   74.8 610.9 
 2005 232.8 297.6 64.8   67.4 662.6 
 2006 250.5 317.3 53.6   71.3 692.7 
 2007 259.4 329.9 33.6   71.8 694.7 
 2008 255.7 328.0 27.5   73.6 684.9 
 2009 231.2 298.3 20.0   93.8 643.3
 2010 232.0 281.7 21.0 51.3  72.0 658.1 
 2011 232.7 267.6 24.1 61.5 3.3 60.2 649.4
 2012 236.5 261.2 25.3 62.4 4.8 70.4 660.6
 2013 238.4 266.8 27.7 63.5 6.4 42.5 645.2
 2014 246.0 287.0 29.5 62.3  10.6 83.1 718.5 
 
  

State Motor Vehicle Fund Revenue
(State & County Taxes, Licenses, and Fees)

Note: Revenue in shaded column goes into state highway fund.

County Taxes, License, and Fees

Total

State Motor Vehicle TaxesM
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
D

o
lla

rs

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

45

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Fiscal Year 

State Motor Vehicle Taxes To The State Highway Fund 
Derived From The State Motor Vehicle Fund 

Driver's License Fees Motor-Carrier Fees Special Fuel Taxes 

Registration Fees Total 

State Motor Vehicle Taxes to Highway Fund 
(Derived From the State Motor Vehicle Fund) 

State Motor Vehicle Taxes To Highway Fund Derived From The 
Motor Vehicle Fund

 State Motor Vehicle Taxes To Highway Fund Derived
 From The Motor Vehicle Fund

  
 Fiscal Special Motor-Carrier Registration Driver’s   
 Year Fuel Taxes* Fees Fees License Fees Total 
 
 2003 74.1 31.3 81.0 12.2 198.6 
 2004 81.5 32.3 87.9 12.7 214.4 
 2005 87.8 38.5 91.8 12.8 230.9 
 2006 96.6 40.8 99.8 13.2 250.5 
 2007 97.0 44.1 104.7 13.7 259.4 
 2008 96.4 41.2 103.9 14.2 255.7 
 2009 79.6 37.9 100.1     13.6                231.2
 2010 79.3 37.1 98.2 17.4 232.0 
 2011 78.5 37.6 98.0 18.6 232.7
 2012 79.2 38.5 99.8    19.0                236.5
 2013 80.9 36.7 102.0     18.7                238.4
 2014 79.1 39.0 104.7 23.1 246.0 
  

 *Special fuel includes diesel fuel, propane, natural gas, and water-phased 
hydrocarbon emulsions.

Total

Registration Fees

Special Fuel Tax

M
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
D

o
lla

rs

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

46

0.0 

50.0 

100.0 

150.0 

200.0 

250.0 

300.0 

350.0 

400.0 

450.0 

500.0 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Fiscal Year 

Federal Fuel Tax Revenue And Other Federal-Aid Revenue To The State Highway Fund 

Preliminary Engineering Right of Way Planning and Research 

Construction and Construction Engineering Total Transit, Rail, & Aviation 

Misc. Fed. Funding 

Federal-Aid Revenue

 Highway Fund Federal-Aid Revenue 
For Highways By Phase

  
 Fiscal Planning & Right Prelim Const. & Transit, Rail Misc. Fed.   
 Year Research of Way Eng. Const. Eng. & Aviation Funding Total 
 
 2003 4.9 16.5 10.2 151.1   182.7 
 2004 1.6 18.2 16.0 177.6   213.4 
 2005 7.7 17.8 15.7 161.0   202.2 
 2006 6.5 2.6 17.2 194.5   220.8 
 2007 6.5 25.9 19.3 256.1   307.9 
 2008 6.7 7.6 31.6 184.1 1.9  230.0 
 2009 8.3 36.0 20.3 271.7 8.6  344.9  
 2010 7.7 20.9 22.7 331.5 8.4 0.1 391.5 
 2011 8.4 14.1 21.1 322.1              7.8                0.65 374.2
 2012 9.2 18.7 34.1 393.7 10.7      0.1         466.7
 2013 12.8 29.4 19.2 281.3 8.1 0.0 350.8  
 2014 14.2 32.6 21.1 256.8 5.9 0.1 330.8 
  

Highway Fund Federal-Aid Revenue For Highways By Phase

NOTE 1:  Federal-Aid revenue is received on a reimbursement basis and typically is from 
prior year apportionments.  Consequently, the Federal-aid revenue shown will not 
match the Federal-aid apportionments, shown on the following page, in a given year.

Construction & Construction Engineering

Total

M
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
D

o
lla

rs

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

47

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

400 

450 

500 

550 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Fiscal Year 

National Highway Performance Program* Congestion / Air Quality* 

Surface Transportation Program* Other* 

Total 

One	  Time	  ARRA	  Funds	  

Federal-Aid Apportionments 

Federal-Aid Apportionments
(under SAFETEA-LU since 2007)

  
 Fiscal Interstate National Hwy Congestion/ Surface Trans  
 Year Maintenance System Air Quality Program Other** ARRA Total 
 
 2007 44.0 69.6 13.0 54.2 131.4  312.2 
 2008 47.0 58.9 19.7 51.9 138.7  316.2 
 2009 50.0 72.9 18.3 47.6 96.8 201.0 486.6 
 2010 77.1 84.3 35.8 111.2 84.0  392.4 
 2011 82.2 93.6 28.4 82.5 43.2                 329.9
 2012 79.8 88.6 32.8 82.1 46.8                 330.2

Federal-Aid Apportionments
(under MAP 21 Starting FFY 2013)

  
 Fiscal National Hwy Congestion/ Surface Trans.  
 Year Performance Program Air Quality Program* Other** Total 
 
 2013 182.0 31.3 86.4 44.4 344.0
 2014 187.2 41.4 88.7 37.7 355.0

FFY 2009 ARRA funds caused a spike in Highway Fund Federal-Aid Apportionment in this year.
FFY 2013* *MAP 21 reallocated/combined program funds, therefore, can’t be compared to
 SAFETEA-LU Programs. Above amount includes a .2% across-the-board     
 recission.

Federal-Aid Apportionments
(under MAP 21 Starting FFY 2013)

Total

M
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
D

o
lla

rs

One Time ARRA Funds

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

48

State Highway Fund Expenditures
and Disbursements

2014 State Highway Fund Expenditures
Total $778.4

Administered by the
Nevada Department of Transportation

Other
Agencies

$5.4

NDOT
Expenditures

$533.3 

NDOT Expenditures
By Agency

Total $533.3

Other Agency Expenditures
By Agency

Total $5.4

Department of
Motor Vehicles
Expenditures

Total $85.5 

Department of
Public Safety
Expenditures

Total $78.7

DMV
$90.9 Bonds

$70.1

DPS
$78.7 Operating

$15.3

Travel
$0.1

Operating
$25.8

Equipment
$1.7

Labor
$63.4

Bond Principal
& Interest

$70.1

Administrative &
Support Services

$50.7

Construction &
Engineering

$367.5

DMV
Training

$0.8

Fleet Services
Capital Purchase

$0.6

Traffic
Safety
$0.2

Investigations
$0.3

Public
Works
$1.1

Transportation
 Services
Authority

$2.4

Maintenance
$115.0

Equipment
$1.0

Travel
$0.2

Labor
$62.2

(2014 Expenditures 
Shown in Millions)

68.5%

11.7% 10.1%

21.6%

9.5%
68.9%

9.0%

0.7%

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

49

0 

200 

400 

600 

800 

1000 

1200 

1400 

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Fiscal Year 

Transfers to Other Agencies DMV Expenditures 

DPS Expenditures Bond Principal & Interest 

NDOT Expenditures Total 

State Highway Fund Expenditures
and Disbursements

State Highway Fund Expenditures & Disbursements

 State Highway Fund Expenditures & Disbursements
(in Millions)

 Fiscal Transfers to DMV DPS Bond Principal NDOT 
 Year Other Agencies Expend. Expend. & Interest Expend. Total 
 
 2003 3.8 68.4 59.8 12.8 508.2 653.0 
 2004 19.1 74.0 58.9 42.0 676.2 870.2 
 2005 15.1 80.1 66.1 55.0 694.2 910.5 
 2006 13.5 84.1 72.1 61.1 742.7 973.6 
 2007 30.9 88.3 74.6 76.4 827.1 1,097.2 
 2008 5.6 95.6 78.2 84.3 648.7 912.4 
 2009 1.7 108.0 81.1 89.0 772.4 1,052.2
 2010 4.6 99.5 75.8 89.3 744.1 1,013.2 
 2011 4.4 90.3 77.0 84.2 807.2 1,063.1  
 2012 4.3 89.7 76.1 80.5           924.8       1,175.4
 2013 4.2 85.5 76.5 79.8 661.0  906.9  
 2014 5.4 90.9 78.7 70.1 533.3  778.4 
 

NOTES :  DPS stands for Department of Public Safety (includes Nevada Highway Patrol).
DMV stands for Department of Motor Vehicles.

NDOT Expenditures

Total

M
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
D

o
lla

rs

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

50

0 

100 

200 

300 

400 

500 

600 

700 

800 

900 

1000 

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Fiscal Year 

Administrative & Support Services Maintenance & Equipment 

Construction & Engineering Total 

NDOT Expenditures
 (In Millions)

  Administrative & Maintenance & Construction & 
 Fiscal Year Support Services Equipment Engineering Total  
 
 2003 40.1 74.5 393.6 508.2
 2004 39.5 84.0 552.8 676.3
 2005 36.4 86.4 571.5 694.3
 2006 38.0 111.5 593.2 742.7
 2007 42.9 118.8 665.4 827.1
 2008 42.9 119.8 486.0 648.7
 2009 41.7 136.4 594.3 772.4
 2010 41.0 113.7 589.4 744.1
 2011 44.1 111.7 651.4 807.2
 2012 43.8 132.9 748.1 924.8
 2013 40.5 113.8 506.7 661.0
 2014 50.7 115.0 367.5 533.3

NDOT Expenditures by Activity

NDOT Expenditures
By Activity

Total

Construction & Engineering

Maintenance & Equipment

M
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
D

o
lla

rs

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

51

*Note: Does not include design, ROW, in-house projects or work by other agencies. Illustrative use 
only, based on Federal Fiscal Year

    **Other - Projects that are not directly related to increasing the capacity or preservation of a 
facility, e.g., landscaping, safety,  corridor and environmental studies, sound walls.

              Note: Methodology Changed from Planning numbers to Obligations based on actual 
available funding.

                        FY 2014 Projects*
 
 CAPACITY PRESERVATION OTHER** TOTAL
CLARK $249,944,736 $32,257,903 $20,435,438 $347,638,077 
WASHOE $3,997,972 $27,823,707 $18,512,889 $50,334,568 
NON-URBAN $2,638,561 $73,371,156 $18,192,456 $94,202,172  

TOTAL $301,581,269 $133,140,783 $57,140,783 $492,174,817 

PERCENT 61% 27% 12% 100%

Project Obligations 
In Urban And Rural Areas

FY 2014 
Other Projects Obligation

($57.1 Million)

FY 2014 
Capacity Projects

($301.6 Million)

FY 2014 
Total Projects Obligation

($492.2 Million)

FY 2014 
Preservation Projects Obligation

($133.5 Million)

Clark	  	  
98%	  

Washoe	  
1%	  

Non-‐Urban	  
1%	  

FY	  2014	  Capacity	  Projects	  
($301.6	  Million)	  

Clark	  	  
24%	  

Washoe	  
21%	  

Non-‐
Urban	  
55%	  

FY	  2014	  Preserva.on	  Project	  
Obliga.ons	  

($133.5	  Million)	  

Clark	  	  
36%	  

Washoe	  
32%	  

Non-‐Urban	  
32%	  

FY	  2014	  Other	  Project	  Obliga6ons	  
($57.1	  Million)	  

Clark	  	  
71%	  

Washoe	  
10%	  

Non-‐Urban	  
19%	  

FY	  2014	  Total	  Project	  
Obliga6ons	  

($492.2	  Million)	  

Non-Urban
1%

Washoe
1%

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

52

FY 10-14 Total Distribution for Project Funding*
 
 CAPACITY PRESERVATION OTHER** TOTAL
CLARK $436,015,317 $242,032,401 $325,510,263 $1,003,557,981 
WASHOE $54,507,789 $163,614,472 $105,317,999 $323,440,260 
NON-URBAN $111,218,946 $495,432,111 $277,354,426 $884,005,482  

TOTAL $601,742,052 $901,078,983 $708,182,688 $2,211,003,723 

PERCENT 27% 41% 32% 100%

*Note: Does not include design, ROW, in-house projects or work by other agencies
 Illustrative use only, based on Federal Fiscal Year

Note: Methodology Changed from Planning numbers to Obligations based on actual
available funding.

Project Obligations 
In Urban And Rural Areas

FY 2010-2014 
Other Projects Obligation

($708.2 Million)

FY 2010-2014 
Capacity Projects

($601.7 Million)

FY 2010-2014 
Total Projects Obligation

($2.2 Billion)

FY 2010-2014 
Preservation Projects Obligation

($901.1 Million)

Clark	  	  
72%	  

Washoe	  
9%	  

Non-‐Urban	  
19%	  

FY	  2010-‐2014	  Capacity	  Project	  
Obliga9ons	  

($601.7	  Million)	  

Clark	  	  
27%	  

Washoe	  
18%	  

Non-‐
Urban	  
55%	  

FY	  2010-‐2014	  Preserva/on	  Project	  
Obliga/ons	  

($901.1	  Million)	  

Clark	  	  
46%	  

Washoe	  
15%	  

Non-‐Urban	  
39%	  

FY	  2010-‐2014	  Other	  Project	  
Obliga7ons	  

($708.2	  Million)	  

Clark	  	  
45%	  

Washoe	  
15%	  

Non-‐Urban	  
40%	  

FY	  2010-‐2014	  Total	  Project	  
Obliga7ons	  
($2.2	  Billion)	  

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

53

0	  

50	  

100	  

150	  

200	  

250	  

300	  

350	  

400	  

450	  

500	  

550	  

600	  

650	  

700	  

750	  

800	  

850	  

900	  

950	  

1000	  

2003	   2004	   2005	   2006	   2007	   2008	   2009	   2010	   2011	   2012	   2013	   2014	  

Fiscal	  Year	  
Travel	   Equipment	   Opera;ng	   Salaries	   Capital	  Improvements	   Total	  

NDOT Expenditures 
By Appropriation

NDOT Expenditures 
By Appropriation

 NDOT Expenditures By Appropriation
(in Millions)

 Fiscal     Capital 
 Year Salaries Travel Operating Equipment Improvements Total 
 
 2003 104.0 2.0 41.3 10.2 350.7 508.2
 2004 103.6 1.7 44.1 9.1 517.7 676.2
 2005 106.8 1.6 45.4 8.2 532.2 694.2
 2006 112.5 1.7 53.1 17.1 558.3 742.7
 2007 115.4 1.7 56.9 16.0 637.1 827.1
 2008 123.3 2.1 64.7 11.8 446.8 648.7
 2009 134.7 2.3 64.1 8.0 563.3 772.4
 2010 127.9 2.0 63.8 2.9 547.4 744.1
 2011 125.8 2.1 59.8 3.2 616.3 807.2
 2012 120.4 2.2 61.9 3.7 736.7 924.8
 2013 123.8 1.9 60.8 4.9 469.7 661.0
 2014 123.3 1.9 61.0 4.6 342.5 533.3
 

M
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
D

o
lla

rs

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

54

Nevada Population 
Statistics

LICENSED DRIVERS AND REGISTERED PASSENGER VEHICLES

Licensed Drivers 1995 1,081,646
      
 2014 1,820,893

Passenger Vehicles 1995 1,130,278
      
 2014 1,958,684
 
 
 Nevada has experienced tremendous population growth for over 30 years with little 
slowdown until the last few years. The State’s population has more than tripled since 1985 
to over 2.8 million residents. The majority of the growth has been in the major urban areas.

3,500,000

3,000,000

2,500,000

2,000,000

1,500,000

1,000,000

500,000

0

Population Of Major Areas Of Nevada
*2014 Projections 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
e

o
p

le

Clark County Washoe County Other  Counties

1 9 9 0      1 9 9 5          2 0 0 0         2 0 0 5          2 0 1 0       * 2 0 1 4

770,000 
1,036,000 

1,394,000 

1,796,000 
1,969,000 2,052,000 

257,000 

291,000 

342,000 

397,000 

417,000 
437,000 

209,000 

255,000 

287,000 

326,000 

339,000 
340,000 

0 

500,000 

1,000,000 

1,500,000 

2,000,000 

2,500,000 

3,000,000 

3,500,000 

1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2014 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
e
o

p
le

 

Year 

Population Of Major Areas Of Nevada 

Clark County Washoe County Other Counties 

1,236,000 

1,582,000 

2,023,000 

2,725,000 
2,829,000 

2,519,000 

* 2014 Projections 

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

55

   
                 
  Without personal transportation, how would you get to work, the doctor or even the grocery 
store?  Nevada’s many public transit programs provide transportation that connects Nevada’s 
citizens with the services they need.  NDOT’s 
transit program supports local transit providers 
by administering Federal Transit Administration 
grants.  As administrators of these funds, 
NDOT is responsible for monitoring and 
ensuring that rural transit providers comply with 
federal guidelines.  In 2013, NDOT distributed 
approximately $8 million in funding throughout 
the state for vital transit programs.
 The result?  Each year over one and a half 
million rides are given on vehicles provided by 
NDOT’s disbursement of federal funding.  These 
rides contribute to the quality of life for many 
senior and disabled Nevadans by providing 
access to employment, medical, shopping, 
government services, cultural activities, and 
to meet daily transportation needs.  Since the 
program began in 1975, over 500 vehicles 
have been acquired that operate in sixty Nevada communities including most of the larger rural 
communities and the state’s Indian reservations and colonies.

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA)
                  TRANSIT RIDERSHIP BY COUNTY

              Statewide Small Urban and Rural Transportation
                                                 2013*

County  Total Riders**
White Pine  11,778
Washoe  9,469
Storey  0
Pershing  5,338
Nye  16,976
Mineral  8,530
Lyon  11,794
Lincoln  3,608
Lander  1,760
Humboldt  13,147
Eureka  1,926
Esmeralda  5,308
Elko  28,932
Douglas  708,000
Clark  647,351
Churchill  16,048
Carson City  3,439
Total  1,493,404

Transit

More than one million rides are offered by bus transit 
providers across the state every year, providing vital 
ride-sharing and mobility to reach healthcare, jobs 
and other opportunities.

*Calendar year 
January through 
December 2013.
**This includes 
elderly, disabled 
and the general 
public.

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

56

Bicycles & Pedestrians

Bicycle and Pedestrian Programs

Planning

 The Nevada Department of Transportation recognizes bicycling and walking as an 
essential component of any diverse transportation system and continually works to make 
the	mobility	on	non-motorized	users	more	efficient,	convenient	and	safe.	The	State’s	Bicycle	
and Pedestrian Planning Program produces the Statewide Bicycle Plan and Bicycle Touring 
Map,	coordinates	with	partners	on	local	and	regional	plans,	identifies	and	prioritizes	needs	
for facilities, and supports programs and projects which will increase the mode share and 
safety of bicyclists and pedestrians. 
Nevada, with its unique geography and weather, offers bicyclists and pedestrians a variety 
of	low	traffic	volume	roadways	and	diverse	terrains	by	which	to	travel	making	it	a	very	
popular cross-country touring destination. Bicyclists and pedestrians are permitted on all 
of	Nevada’s	roadways	except	those	areas	which	are	specifically	prohibited	and	marked	by	
signage (e.g., urban freeways, etc.).  For more information regarding bicycle and pedestrian 
programs in Nevada, visit www.bicyclenevada.com.

Education 

 The Department’s Bicycle and Pedestrian Education Program provides training and 
support for regional and local education programs, develops statewide education materials, 
and conducts extensive safety outreach throughout the state.   The program provides for the 
education of all ages regarding bicycling and pedestrian skills, and appropriate interaction of 
non	motorized	modes	and	vehicular	traffic.

Safe Routes to School

 Physical activity at an early age, such as 
walking or bicycling, can help reduce childhood 
obesity-related diseases while increasing 
scholastic performance. It can also reduce 
traffic	congestion	in	the	vicinity	of	schools,	
benefit	the	environment	and	introduce	safe	
walking and bicycling skills to students.
 NDOT, in coordination with school districts 
and regional partners across the state, 
established the annual Nevada Moves Day 
each Spring.  This event, along with other 
bike and walk to school days, focuses on the 
encouragement of children and their families to safely walk or bicycle to school.  Each year 
there are over 100 schools statewide that participate in programs related to Nevada 
Moves Day, International Walk to School Day and National Bike to School Day. 

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

57

     The Freight Planning Section 
develops strategies, policies, and 
methodologies that work to improve the freight 
transportation system in Nevada. The planning 
process considers access to ports, rail, airports, 
intermodal transportation facilities, major 
freight distribution routes, and enhancement 
of	the	efficient	movement	problem	areas,	as	

determined in cooperation with appropriate private sector involvement, including but not limited 
to, addressing interconnected transportation access and service needs of intermodal facilities. 
Nevada recognized the importance of freight planning many years ago in conducting one of 
the early statewide goods movement studies in the nation back in 2000.  A freight assessment 
document was completed Dec. 2013 to establish the basis for preparing a complete statewide 
freight plan in compliance with the federal Moving Forward in the 21st Century (MAP-21) 
legislation, the federal policy and funding bill for FY2013/2014. The Nevada State Freight 
Plan must provide the state with a competitive advantage that will result in a growing and 
diversifying economy. The Plan will also be the framework for creating the freight transportation 
infrastructure	necessary	for	economic	growth	and	diversification.	Through	the	creation	of	
integrated and seamless multimodal freight infrastructure, Nevada can develop the competitive 
advantage necessary to transform its role and function in the global and North American trade 
network; with the infrastructure providing the foundation needed to initiate this next stage of 
economic development in Nevada. Diversifying Nevada’s economy remains a key theme for 
economic development in the state, and taking advantage of Nevada’s modal transportation 
assets is a part of the state’s strategic plan for supporting economic development and by 
providing a better transportation system.

Nevada’s Transportation Networks
  The role and function of hubs in the global network serves as the connection or junction 
points of the trade corridors that traverse the world, reaching to even the most remote and 
distant destinations. Hubs vary in size and include giant global hubs where the sea and air 
networks connect, and include rail and roadway junctions such as Los Angeles, New York, or 
San Francisco. At the other end of the scale is the local hub that only serves the immediate 
needs of the local economy. In between are transcontinental hubs and regional distribution 
hubs. Nevada’s primary transportation corridors are located in the northern (I-80) and southern 
(I-15) part of the state and serve as a vital links to connect different transportation systems with 
each other.  
Nevada’s highway system (I-15& I-80) are important corridors for outbound/exports and 
inbound/imports to the state as well as connecting shipments that are passing through the state 
to	their	final	destination.		Even	with	large	amount	of	volume	being	transported,	there	is	relatively	
little congestion along these highways; the most is located within the Las Vegas and Reno
    metro area.  This is a positive sign that existing capacity may be able to absorb expected
        future growth as Nevada’s economy expands and produces and purchases more goods.  

Freight

Continued on next page

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

58

Freight

I-15 and I-80 Truck Parking Facilities 
Trucks are the third largest motorist group using Nevada’s highways, after commuters and 
tourists. Their role in the regulation of trucking operations is far reaching. Nevada is an important 
bridge to the nation’s economy. The Interstate 80 (I-80) and Interstate 15 (I-15) corridors 
carries	a	significant	volume	of	freight	and	are	vital	links	to	other	states	and	Interstates.	We	
have a commitment and responsibility to keep freight moving—for commerce, economic 
competitiveness, and for the safety and mobility of all travelers who use these corridors. A 
distinction	in	truck	traffic	from	operations	at	some	facilities	can	have	significant	mobility	and	
safety impacts on I-15 and the related highways and rail corridors. The next 10 years will 
expect to see 1.8 million more trucks added to the nation’s roadways. Our challenge is a lack of 
adequate	truck	parking	facilities.	When	a	winter	truck/traffic	prohibition	or	restriction	occurs	on	
I-80 at the California/Nevada state line, westbound trucks are forced to wait out the prohibition 
on shoulders, freeway ramps, in neighborhoods, and sometimes even in travel lanes, creating 
back-ups several miles long.  
Nevada needs real-time Information Technology Systems (ITS) that will help truckers plan their 
routes	more	effectively	to	maximize	their	personal	security.	The	key	benefits	of	ITS	for	truck	
parking provides availability of parking before a driver reaches hours-of-service limit with safe 
facilities pertaining to the new Jason’s Law. We are committed to keeping parked drivers safely 
away	from	moving	traffic	and	secure	from	harm.	

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

59

Railroads

 The Nevada 
Department of Transportation 
(NDOT) manages the 
state planning process and 
directs federal funds to help 
railroads, shippers, and local 
governments improve rail lines.  

Freight Rail
 Union Pacific Railroad 
( U P R R )  a n d  B u r l i n g t o n 
Northern Santa Fe Railway 
(BNSF) operate within the state 
of Nevada.  The UPRR is the 
largest carrier in Nevada and 
owns all 1,085 main line route 
miles in the state (1,023 miles 
of single – and 62 miles of 
double-track).  BNSF has track 
operating rights on 804 route 
miles or 74 percent of the freight 
rail line in the state; BNSF 
does not own any trackage in 
Nevada.  Combined, these two 

railroads hauled about 190 million net tons of freight through Nevada in 2009; of the total, 
Nevada is primarily (96%) a pass-through state for shipments traveling to and from the ports 
in California.

Amtrak
 Current passenger rail service in Nevada consists of Amtrak’s California Zephyr 
route, which travels 2,438 miles between Chicago and the San Francisco Bay Area.  The 
route began service in 1949 as a joint operation between Chicago Burlington and Quincy 
Railroad,	Denver	and	Rio	Grande	Western	Railroad,	and	Western	Pacific	Railroad.		Since	
1949, the line experienced various route and name changes until Amtrak created the current 
alignments in 1983. 

 At the end of FY13, Amtrak employed 23 Nevada residents. Total wages of Amtrak
  employees living in Nevada were $1,903,486 during FY13.  Amtrak spent $303,719 on
     goods and services in Nevada in FY12.

Continued on next page

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

60

Passenger Services from southern Nevada to southern California
 There are currently several proposed projects to bring passenger rail service between Las 
Vegas, NV and southern California.  These projects include XpressWest (formerly DesertXpress) 
that would run from Las Vegas to Victorville and received its Record of Decision in the spring 
of 2011.  Other projects include the Maglev, Pullman Palace Car Company and the X-Train.

Excursion Railroads
 Four excursion railroads operate in the state of Nevada: the Nevada Northern Railway, 
Virginia & Truckee (V&T) railroad Company, the Nevada State Railroad Museum, and the 
Nevada Southern Railway.  Combined, the four railroads operate on 32.5 miles of track and 
carry over 100,000 passengers annually.  The four excursion railroads address a notable 
component of the state’s tourism industry.

2012 Nevada State Rail Plan
 In the early spring of 2012 the 2012 Nevada State Rail Plan was completed and 
accepted by the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA).  The plan can be found on the 
Nevada Department of Transportation’s website at http://nvrailplan.com/final-2012-nevada-
state-rail-plan/

Fiscal Year 2013 Station Usage in Nevada

City Boardings & Alightings
Elko 9,657
Reno 78,827
Winnemucca 4,481
Total 92,965 (up 14.6% from FY 2012)

Source: http://www.amtrak.com/pdf/factsheets/NEVADA13.pdf

Railroad Routes Total Miles Annual Ridership
Nevada Northern 
Railway

McGill junction route 
and Keystone Route

14 13,000 to 15,000

V&T Railroad Com-
pany

Historic Route and 
Sisters in History 
Route

14 40,000 to 70,000

Nevada State 
Railroad Museum

Carson City Museum 
grounds

1 20,000 to 25,000

Nevada Southern 
Railway

Boulder City to 
Railroad Pass

3.5 32,000

Source: 2012 Nevada State Rail Plan

Railroads

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

61

Nevada Aviation

 In support of the Nevada Department of 
Transportation’s vision of being the nation’s leader 
in delivering transportation solutions and improving 
Nevada’s quality of life the Aviation Planning Section is 
responsible for helping ensure that Nevada’s general 
aviation public and private use airports meet applicable 

safety	requirements	and	provide	maximum	utility	to	their	communities	and	the	flying	public.		
Nevada’s public-use airports include two international facilities, three commercial airports and 44 
general aviation airports.  

 As part of the Federal Aviation Administration’s (FAA) Airport Safety Data Program this section 
conducts annual airport inspections on all of its general aviation airports.  Nevada also has 55 
privately owned airports that are inspected on request.  Additionally, there are 33 recognized 
heliports in the state; heliport usage varies from hospitals and casinos to corporate headquarters, 
emergency medical operations, electrical generation plants, and mining operations.

 According to the Federal Aviation Administration’s The Economic Impact of Civil Aviation on 
the	U.S.	Economy,	“in	2009,	civil	aviation	supported	over	10	million	jobs,	contributed	$1.3	trillion	in	
total economic activity and accounted for 5.2 percent of total U.S. Gross Domestic Product (GDP).”  
This report also showed that Nevada received approximately 0.8% of the FAA’s direct spending, 
employed over 1,500 people in aviation earning over $57 million, and that Nevada was one of the 
fifth	most	visited	states	for	foreign	travelers.

 The last economic impact study for Nevada, published in 2006, estimated that the economic 
value from rural aviation in Nevada is $276M annually.  Rural Nevada airports directly and indirectly 
employ 3,400 people, with an annual value of $94M.

 In 2014 Nevada had 30 Airport Improvement Program (AIP) grants from the FAA totaling 
$47,243,267.  

 

       

Type Name Location Number 
2013 

Enplanements 
2013  

Tower Operations 

            

International McCarran International  Las Vegas 1 19,946,179 520,386 

  Reno-Tahoe International Reno 1 1,671,926 75,650 

      21,618,105 596,036 

         

Commercial Elko Regional Elko 1 19,510 19,635 

  North Las Vegas 
No. Las 
Vegas 1 40,111 89,322 

       59,621 108,957 

         
General 
Aviation Public-Use Airports   44   

         

Totals     48 21,677,726 704,993 

      
Based 
Aircraft    1,484   

      
 
  

 

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

62

Notes

Item #13 Attachment A



2014 NEVADA TRANSPORTATION FACTS AND FIGURES

I-80 Near Wells

Lake Tahoe, Nevada

Mount Charleston, Nevada

Item #13 Attachment A



1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712

(775) 888-7000
FAX (775) 888-7115

www.nevadadot.com

Nevada Department of Transportation

I-80 Carlin Tunnels

SR 207 Kingsbury grade

SR 207 Las Vegas

Item #13 Attachment A



 

MEMORANDUM 
 January 2, 2015   
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: January 12, 2015 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #14: Old Business  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
 
This item is to provide follow up and ongoing information brought up at previous Board 
Meetings. 
 
Analysis: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 

 
 Please see Attachment A. 
 
b. Monthly Litigation Report - Informational item only. 

 
 Please see Attachment B. 

 
c. Fatality Report dated December 29, 2014 - Informational item only. 
 
 Please see Attachment C. 
 
 
List of Attachments: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report - Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated December 29, 2014 - Informational item only. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Informational item only. 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 



Page 1 of 3

Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

Nossaman, LLP Project Neon  3/11/13 - 3/11/15 3/11/13 1,400,000.00$      
Legal and Financial Planning  Amendment #1 1/14/14 2,000,000.00$      
NDOT Agmt No. P014-13-015 3,400,000.00$  3,400,000.00$      $   805,156.66 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Carrie Sanders
8th JD - A-12-664693-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas

6/12/12 - 6/12/15 6/12/12  $    541,800.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P192-12-004  $    541,800.00  $    150,171.97 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Gendall
 8th JD - A-12-666487-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas

8/21/12 - 2/21/15
Amendment #1

8/21/12
8/19/14

 $,541,800.00
Extension of Time 

NDOT Agmt No. P325-12-004  $    541,800.00  $    111,870.10 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust
 8th JD - 12-665880-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas

10/23/12 - 9/30/16
Amendment #1

10/23/12
9/12/14

 475725
Extension of Time 

NDOT Agmt No. P452-12-004  $    475,725.00  $    405,302.66 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA
 8th JD - A-12-658642-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/13  $    455,525.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P508-12-004  $    455,525.00  $    243,226.82 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980
 8th JD - 
Project Neon - Las Vegas

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/13  $    449,575.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P507-12-004  $    449,575.00  $    407,356.97 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland 2000-I, LLC
 8th JD - A-12-671915-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/13  $    449,575.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P501-12-004  $    449,575.00  $    616.77 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Condemnation Litigation Consultation 12/16/12 - 12/30/14 12/16/12  $    300,000.00 
NDOT Agmt No. P510-12-004  Amendment #1 8/12/13  $    850,000.00 

 Amendment #2 1/22/14  $    750,000.00 
 Amendment #3 5/12/14  $    800,000.00 

 $   2,700,000.00  $   563,366.06 
Lemons, Grundy, Eisenberg NDOT vs. Ad America (Appeal)

 8th JD  - A-11-640157-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas

1/22/13 - 1/22/15 1/22/13 $205,250.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P037-13-004  $    205,250.00  $    70,821.12 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. Wykoff
8th JD - A-12-656578-C
Warms Springs Project - Las Vegas

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/13 $275,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P071-13-004  $    275,000.00  $    52,684.66 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. Railroad Pass
8th JD - A-12-665330-C
Boulder City Bypass Project

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/13  $    275,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P072-13-004  Amendment #1 5/12/14  $    275,000.00  $    550,000.00  $    220,210.45 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. K & L Dirt
8th JD - A-12-666050-C
Boulder City Bypass Project

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/13  $    275,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P073-13-004  $    275,000.00  $    185,132.42 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs.  I-15 & Cactus
Cactus Project - Las Vegas
8th JD - A-12-664403-C

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/13  $    200,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P074-13-004  $    200,000.00  $    86,366.41 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. JYTYJK, LLC dba Wireless Toyz vs. NDOT 
8th JD A-13-681291-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas

 4/19/13 - 2/28/15 4/19/13  $    175,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P127-13-004  $    175,000.00  $    136,144.90 

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF December 17, 2014
Vendor Case/Project Name Contract and Amendment 

Amount
Total Contract 

Authority
Contract Authority 

Remaining

Item #14 Attachment A



Page 2 of 3

Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF December 17, 2014
Vendor Case/Project Name Contract and Amendment 

Amount
Total Contract 

Authority
Contract Authority 

Remaining
 Varela, Lee, Metz & Guarina, 
LLP - Novation Agreement 
2/28/14 from Watt, Tieder, Hoffar 
& Fitzgerald **

Pacific Coast Steel vs. NDOT
K3292 - I-580
2nd JD CV12-02093

 4/30/13 - 4/30/15 4/30/13  $    275,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P160-13-004  $    275,000.00  $    59,870.66 

Sylvester & Polednak Fitzhouse Enterprises
(acquired title as Westcare)
8th JD - A-13-660564-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas

 5/31/13 - 5/31/15 5/31/13 290,000.00$      

NDOT Agmt No. P201-13-004 290,000.00$       $    191,254.92 

Chapman Law Firm 54 B LLC vs. Clark County & NDOT
8th JD - A-12-674009

 6/6/13 - 11/30/15 6/6/13 250,000.00$      

NDOT Agmt No. P217-13-004 250,000.00$    $   196,466.92 
Snell & Wilmer Meadow Valley Public Records, K3399  7/18/13 - 7/30/15 7/18/13  $     30,000.00 

 Amendment #1 7/29/14  $     50,000.00 
NDOT Agmt No. P273-13-004  Amendment #2 12/9/14 80,000.00$   80,000.00$    $  1,963.66 

Kemp, Jones, Coulthard Nassiri vs. NDOT
8th JD A672841

 7/17/13 - 6/30/15 7/17/13 280,000.00$      

NDOT Agmt No. P290-13-004 280,000.00$    $   43,447.45 
Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT (Project Neon)

8th JD A640157
 7/25/13 - 7/30/15 7/25/13 200,000.00$      

NDOT Agmt No. P291-13-004  Amendment #1 4/28/14 250,000.00$      
450,000.00$    $   109,223.64 

Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT
(Cactus Direct and Inverse)
8th JD A-10-631520-C & A-12666482-C

 7/25/13 - 7/30/15 7/25/13 250,000.00$       ?Close? 

NDOT Agmt No. P292-13-004 250,000.00$       $    189,919.49 

Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT (South Point)
8th JD A-11-653502-C

 7/25/13 - 7/30/15 7/25/13 70,000.00$      

NDOT Agmt No. P293-13-004 70,000.00$        $    10,632.29 

Kemp, Jones & Coulthard NDOT vs. City of Los Angeles
8th JD A-13-687717-C
Boulder City Bypass Project

 9/1/13 - 9/30/15 9/1/13 250,000.00$      

NDOT Agmt No. P405-13-004 250,000.00$       $    197,497.67 

Sylvester & Polednak NDOT vs. Smith Family Trust
8th JD A-13-687895-C
Project Neon

 9/7/13 - 9/30/15 9/7/13 280,000.00$      

NDOT Agmt No. P465-13-004 280,000.00$    $   257,703.40 
Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. LGC, 231, LLC

 
 12/20/13 - 12/15/15 12/20/13 453,650.00$      

8th JD 
NDOT Agmt No. P561-13-004 453,650.00$       $    394,255.01 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Risk Management Analysis for Project NEON 1/13/14 - 12/13/17 1/13/14  $    900,000.00 
Costs for Risk Management Analysis  Amendment #1 8/21/14 310,000.00$      
NDOT Agmt No. P006-14-004 1,210,000.00$       $    274,072.20 

Chapman Law Firm McCarran Widening  5/14/14 - 5/30/16 5/14/14 200,000.00$      
2nd JD - Various Temporary Easements
NDOT Agmt No. P142-14-004 200,000.00$       $    140,787.93 

Armstrong Teasdale, LLP Legal Support for utility matters relating to 5/14/14 - 5/30/16 5/14/14  $    250,000.00 
Project Neon and Boulder City Bypass
NDOT Agmt No. P210-14-004 250,000.00$       $    245,570.00 

Sylvester & Polednak First Presbyterian Church vs. NDOT 7/17/14 - 7/30/16 7/17/14  $    280,000.00 
8th JD A-14-698783-C
Project Neon
NDOT Agmt No. P327-14-004 280,000.00$       $    254,774.11 

Item #14 Attachment A



Page 3 of 3

Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF December 17, 2014
Vendor Case/Project Name Contract and Amendment 

Amount
Total Contract 

Authority
Contract Authority 

Remaining
Carbajal & McNutt, LLP Las Vegas Golf & Country Club 9/8/14 - 8/30/15 9/8/14  $    375,000.00 

8th JD A-14-705477-C
Project Neon
NDOT Agmt No. P362-14-004 375,000.00$       $    371,144.70 

Kemp, Jones & Coulthard Walker Furniture  10/13/14 - 11/30/14 10/13/14 350,000.00$      
Project Neon
NDOT Agmt No. P431-14-004 350,000.00$       $    333,677.54 

Lambrose Brown Grant Properties  10/14/14 - 10/30/16 10/14/14 275,000.00$      
Project Neon
NDOT Agmt No. P433-14-004 275,000.00$       $    275,000.00 

Lambrose Brown Sharples  10/16/14 - 10/30/16 10/16/14 275,000.00$      
Project Neon
NDOT Agmt No. P434-14-004 275,000.00$       $    275,000.00 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Project Neon - Eminent Domain Actions  8/25/14 - 11/10/14 11/10/14 100,000.00$      
Interim Agreement
NDOT Agmt No. P270-14-004 100,000.00$       $    5,268.00 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Project Neon  11/10/14 - 11/30/15 11/10/14 600,000.00$      
Eminent Domain Actions
NDOT Agmt No. P480-14-004 600,000.00$       $    600,000.00 

Varela, Lee, Metz & Guarino Sequoia Electric K3409  10/16/14 - 10/30/16 10/16/14 250,000.00$      
NDOT Agmt No. P526-14-004 250,000.00$       $    250,000.00 

Lambrose Brown Paralegal Services - Project Neon 11/20/14 - 11/30/16 11/20/14 250,000.00$      
NDOT Agmt No. P547-14-004 250,000.00$       $    250,000.00 

* BH Consulting Agreement Management assistance, policy recommendations, 
negotiation support and advice regarding NEXTEL 
and Re-channeling of NDOT's 800 Mhz frequencies.

6/30/12 - 6/30/16 6/30/12  $     77,750.00  $    77,750.00  $    76,340.00 

 $    77,750.00  $    76,340.00 
*  Pass Through - Federally mandated 800 MHz rebanding project fully reimbursed by Sprint Nextel.
** The firm of Varela, Lee, Metz & Guarina, LLP took over the Pacific Coast Steel vs. NDOT Case as of 2/28/14 from the firm of Watt, Tieder, Hoffar & Fitzgerald.

Contracts Closed Since Last Report:

Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT
(Cactus Direct and Inverse)
8th JD A-10-631520-C & A-12666482-C

 7/25/13 - 12/15/14 

NDOT Agmt No. P292-13-004

Item #14 Attachment A



Page 1

Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - December 15, 2014       

Fees Costs Total
Condemnations
NDOT vs. Chavez, Dawn R.   Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 42,853.75$       16,358.32$         59,212.07$         
NDOT vs. City of Los Angeles, et al.   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 49,749.00$       2,753.33$           52,502.33$         
NDOT vs. Custom Landco. (Walker Furniture)   Eiminent domain - Project Neon 16,079.50$       242.96$              16,322.46$         
NDOT vs. Fitzhouse/Westcare  Eminent domain  - Project Neon 66,350.00$       32,395.00$         98,745.00$         
NDOT vs. Gendall Trust   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 360,826.30$    69,103.60$         429,929.90$       
NDOT vs. Hackler, Connie L. 2    Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 42,853.75$       16,358.32$         59,212.07$         
NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980, LLC   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 36,761.25$       5,456.78$           42,218.03$         
NDOT vs. I-15 and Cactus, LLC   Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 100,750.00$    12,883.59$         113,633.59$       
NDOT vs. Jenkins, Carrie, aka Carrie Sanders   Eminent domain - Project Neon 291,797.75$    99,830.28$         391,628.03$       
NDOT vs. Jensen, Allan B. 2   Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 42,853.75$       16,358.32$         59,212.07$         
NDOT vs. K & L Dirt Company, LLC   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 76,150.00$       13,717.58$         89,867.58$         
NDOT vs. LGC 231, LLC - (Holsom Lofts)   Eminent domain - Project Neon 56,868.75$       2,526.24$           59,394.99$         
NDOT vs. Las Vegas Golf & Country Club   Eminent domain - Project Neon 3,832.75$         22.55$                3,855.30$           
NDOT vs. Manaois, Randy M. 2   Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 42,853.75$       16,358.32$         59,212.07$         
NDOT vs. Marsh, Nita, et al. 2   Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 42,853.75$       16,358.32$         59,212.07$         
NDOT vs. Miller, Bruce B.   Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 42,853.75$       16,358.32$         59,212.07$         
NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA   Eminent domain - Project Neon 185,086.25$    27,211.93$         212,298.18$       
NDOT vs. Railroad Pass Investment Group   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 151,700.00$    178,089.55$       329,789.55$       
NDOT vs. Smith Family Trust, et al   Eminent domain - Project Neon 20,375.00$       1,921.60$           22,296.60$         
NDOT vs. Stanford Crossing, LLC   Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 42,853.75$       16,358.32$         59,212.07$         
NDOT vs. Turner, Ronald Lee 2   Eminent domain - McCarran Widening * 42,853.75$       16,358.32$         59,212.07$         
NDOT vs. Wykoff Newberg Corporation   Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 192,125.78$    30,189.56$         222,315.34$       

Inverse Condemnations
54 B LLC   Inverse condemnation 43,668.53$       9,864.55$           53,533.08$         
AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (NEON)   Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 495,234.36$    113,562.82$       608,797.18$       
AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (NEON-Silver Ave.)   Inverse condemnation - Project Neon
Eastman, Brandon vs. NDOT   Inverse condemnation - Project Neon
First  Presbyterian Church of LV vs. NDOT   Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 24,125.00$       1,100.89$           25,225.89$         
JYTYJK, LLC dba Wireless Toyz vs. NDOT   Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 29,630.25$       9,224.85$           38,855.10$         
Nassiri, Fred vs. NDOT  Inverse condemnation 228,364.68$    8,187.87$           236,552.55$       
Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust vs. NDOT   Inverse Condemnation - Project Neon 67,717.33$       2,705.01$           70,422.34$         

Cases Removed from Last Report:
NDOT vs. Jericho Heights, LLC   Final Order of Condemnation

* McCarran Widening fees and costs are under one contract.

Case Name J
u

Nature of Case Outside Counsel to Date

Item #14 Attachment B



Page 2

Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - December 15, 2014 

Fees Costs Total
Torts

Ariza, Ana, et al. vs. Wulfenstein, NDOT 5    Plaintiff alleges wrongful death

Discount Tire Company vs. NDOT; Fisher 8   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury

Francois, John A. vs. NDOT 6    Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury

Harris Farm, Inc. vs NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury

Heme, Sandra Lee vs. County of Clark; NDOT 8   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury

Jorgenson & Koka, LLP 8   Plaintiff alleges negligence causing property damage

Mullen, Janet vs. NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges personal injury

NDOT vs. Tamietti   NDOT seeks injunct. relief to prevent closing access

Oneal, Brenda vs. NDOT 8   Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury

Richard, Eboni vs. NDOT 8   Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury

Windrum, Richard & Michelle vs. NDOT 8   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury

Woods, Willaim and Elaine 2   Plaintiff alleges wrongful death

Zito, Adam vs. NDOT 8   Plaintiff alleges negligence and property damage

Contract Disputes
None currently in litigation

Personnel Matters
Akinola, Ayodele vs. State, NDOT  Plaintiff alleges 14th Amendment  - discrimination

Cerini, Cheri          Petition for Judicial Review

Cases Removed from Last Report:

Minagil, Randall vs. Intermountain Slurry Seal, NDOT Dismissed

Case Name J
u

Nature of Case Outside Counsel to 

Item #14 Attachment B



                                                                                                                                                  12/29/2014

TO: PUBLIC SAFETY, DIRECTOR NDOT,  HIGHWAY SAFETY COORDINATOR, 
NDOT TRAFFIC ENGINEERING, FHWA, LVMPD, RENO PD.

FROM: THE OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY, FATAL ANALYSIS REPORTING SYSTEM (FARS)

SUBJECT: FATAL CRASHES AND FATALITIES BY COUNTY, PERSON TYPE, DAY, MONTH, YEAR AND PERCENT CHANGE.

Crashes Fatals Crashes Fatals Crashes Fatals

12/28/2014 0 0 12/28/2013 1 1 -1 -1
MONTH 16 18 MONTH 15 16 1 2
YEAR 261 284 YEAR 243 264 18 20

CRASH AND FATAL COMPARISON BETWEEN 2013 AND 2014, AS OF CURRENT DATE. 

2013 2014 2013 2014

COUNTY 2013 2014 % 2013 2014 % Alcohol Alcohol % Alcohol Alcohol %

Crashes Crashes CHANGE Fatalites Fatalities Change Crashes Crashes Change Fatalities Fatalities Change

CARSON 4 4 0.00% 5 5 0.00% 2 1 -50.00% 3 1 -66.67%
CHURCHILL 1 4 300.00% 1 4 300.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
CLARK 177 159 -10.17% 188 170 -9.57% 51 35 -31.37% 55 39 -29.09%
DOUGLAS 6 4 -33.33% 6 4 -33.33% 2 0 -100.00% 2 0 -100.00%
ELKO 5 10 100.00% 7 13 85.71% 2 5 150.00% 3 8 166.67%
ESMERALDA 2 2 0.00% 2 3 50.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
EUREKA 2 4 100.00% 3 5 66.67% 1 1 0.00% 1 1 0.00%
HUMBOLDT 2 9 350.00% 3 10 233.33% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
LANDER 0 3 300.00% 0 3 300.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00%
LINCOLN 5 3 -40.00% 5 3 -40.00% 2 0 -100.00% 2 0 -100.00%
LYON 4 10 150.00% 6 12 100.00% 1 4 300.00% 1 4 300.00%
MINERAL 3 0 -100.00% 3 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00%
NYE 8 10 25.00% 11 11 0.00% 1 2 100.00% 1 2 100.00%
PERSHING 2 4 100.00% 2 4 100.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00%
STOREY 0 2 200.00% 0 2 200.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
WASHOE 19 33 73.68% 19 35 84.21% 6 10 66.67% 6 11 83.33%
WHITE PINE 3 0 -100.00% 3 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

YTD 243 261 7.41% 264 284 7.58% 69 60 -13.04% 75 68 -9.33%
TOTAL 13 245 ----- 6.5% 266 ----- 6.8% 72 ----- -16.67% 79 ----- -13.92%

2013 AND 2014 ALCOHOL CRASHES AND FATALITIES ARE BASED ON VERY PRELIMINARY DATA.

COMPARISON OF FATALITIES BY PERSON TYPE BETWEEN 2013 AND 2014, AS OF CURRENT DATE.

2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014

COUNTY Vehicle Vehicle % 2013 2014 % Motor- Motor- % 2013 2014 % Other Other

Occupants Occupants Change Peds Peds Change Cyclist Cyclist Change Bike Bike Change

moped,at

v

moped,at

v

CARSON 3 1 -66.67% 2 1 -50.00% 0 3 300.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

CHURCHILL 0 3 300.00% 0 0 0.00% 1 1 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

CLARK 84 72 -14.29% 53 50 -5.66% 41 38 -7.32% 5 4 -20.00% 5 6

DOUGLAS 4 2 -50.00% 1 1 0.00% 0 1 100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0

ELKO 7 13 85.71% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

ESMERALDA 2 3 50.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

EUREKA 1 5 400.00% 2 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

HUMBOLDT 3 8 166.67% 0 0 0.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 1

LANDER 0 2 200.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

LINCOLN 4 3 -25.00% 0 0 0.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

LYON 4 6 50.00% 0 4 400.00% 1 2 100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0

MINERAL 2 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

NYE 8 8 0.00% 1 1 0.00% 2 2 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

PERSHING 1 4 300.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

STOREY 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

WASHOE 5 13 160.00% 8 11 37.50% 6 6 0.00% 0 3 300.00% 0 2

WHITE PINE 3 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

YTD 131 144 9.92% 68 69 1.47% 53 55 3.77% 7 7 0.00% 5 9

TOTAL 13 131 ----- 9.92% 69 ----- 0.00% 54 ----- 1.85% 7 ----- 0.00% 5 -----

Total 2013 265

CURRENT SAME DATE LAST YEAR # CHANGE

Item #14 Attachment C


	Agenda
	Item #2
	Item #4
	Item #4 Attachment A
	Item #4 Attachment B
	Item #4 Attachment C

	Item #5
	Item #5 Attachment A
	Item #5 Attachment B
	Item #5 Attachment C
	Item #5 Attachment D

	Item #7
	Item #8
	Item #9
	Item #10
	Item #11
	Item #12
	Item #12 Attachment A

	Item #13
	Item #13 Attachment A

	Item #14
	Item #14 Attachment A
	Item #14 Attachment B
	Item #14 Attachment C

	Item #4.pdf
	FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director




